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PROCEEDINGS
{9:34 a.m.)
CHAIRMAN OMAS: Good merning. Today we
continue hearings to receive testimony of Postal
Service witnesses in support of Docket No. R2006-1,
Regquest for Rate and Fee Changes.
Does anyone have a procedural matter to
discuss at this point this morning?
(No response.)
CHAIRMAN OMAS: Two witnesses are scheduled
to appear today. They are Witnesses Yeh and Kiefer.
Mr. Rubin, would you please identify your
witness so that I may swear her in.
MR. REITER: Scott Reiter, Mr. Chairman,
representing the Postal Service this morning.
CHAIRMAN CMAS: Excuse me. I'm sSOrry.
MR. REITER: Our first witnesg is Nina Yeh.
CHAIRMAN OMAS: Would you please stand, Ms.
Yeh?
MS. YEH: Yes.
Whereupon,
NINA YEH
having been duly sworn, was called as a
witness and was examined and testified as follows:
CHAIRMAN OMAS: Be seated.

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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(The document referred to was
marked for identification as
Exhibit No. USPS5-T-38.)
DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. REITER:

0 Ms. Yeh, I’'ve handed you two copies of a
document entitled Direct Testimony of Nina Yeh on
Behalf of United States Postal Service designated
USPS-T-38. This contains the revisions that were
filed yesterday, August 10.

Was this testimony prepared by you or under
your direction?

A Yes, 1t was.

Q And if you were to testify orally here today
would your testimony be the same?

A Yes.

MR. REITER: Mr. Chairman, with that I will
hand the two copies of the testimony to the reporter
and ask that they be entered into evidence.

CHAIRMAN OMAS: Is there any objection?

(No response.)

MR. REITER: I'm sorry, Mr. Chairman.

BY MR. REITER:

0 Ms. Yeh, were there any library references
associated with your testimony?

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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A Yes.
0 Which one was that?
A Library Reference 41.

MR. REITER: Mr. Chairman, I ask that that
alsc be entered into the record with her testimony.

CHAIRMAN OMAS: Without objection.

Hearing none, I will direct counsel to
previde the reporter with two copies of the corrected
direct testimony of Nina Yeh.

That testimony 1is received into evidence.
However, as 1s our practice, it will not be
transcribed.

{The document referred to,
previously identified as
Exhibit No. USPS-T-38, was
received in evidence.)

CHAIRMAN OMAS: Ms. Yeh?

THE WITNESS: Yes?

CHATIREMAN COMAS: Have you had an opportunity
to examine the packet of designated written cross-
examination provided to you in the hearing room this
morning?

THE WITNESS: Yes, I have.

CHAIRMAN CMAS: 1If the questions contained
1n that packet were posed to you orally today would

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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your answers be the same as those you previously
provided to us in writing?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

CHATRMAN OMAS: The Commission has just
received your responses to two Presiding Officer
Informaticon Requests. I want the answers to that POIR
5, Question 3, and POIR 10, Question 5, made part of
the record.

I am handing the reporter two copies, and I
direct that they be admitted into evidence.

Are there any corrections or additions that
yvou would like to make to those answers?

THE WITNESS: No.

MR. REITER: Excuse me. There are
corrections.

CHAIRMAN OMAS: Counsel, would you please
provide two copies of the corrected designated written
cross-examination of Witness Yeh to the reporter?

That material is received into evidence and
is to be transcribed into the record.

THE WITNESS: Yes.

(The document referred to was
marked for identification as
Exhibit No. USPS-T-38 and was
received in evidence.)

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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Interrogatories

Respectfully submitted,

Steven W. Williams
Secretary
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[nterrogatory Designating Parties
PRC/USPS-POIR No.4 - Q19 redirected to T38 PRC

PRC/USPS-POIR No.4 - Q20 redirected to T38 PRC
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PRC/USPS-POIR No.5 - Q2h redirected to T38 ABA-NAPM, PostCom, PRC

PRC/USPS-POIR No.5 - Q8b redirected to T38 PostCom, PRC
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS YEH
TO INTERROGATORY OF AMAZON.COM, INC.

AMZ/USPS-T38-1.
Please refer to USPS-LR-L-41, BPM Spreadsheets, tab FY2005 Presort Billing Det.
(WP-BPM-3), and tab FY2005 SP Biliing Det. (WP-BPM-4}.

a. Were the data shown in these two spreadsheets prepared by you, or under your
supervision? If so, please provide the source or sources used to compile or
prepare these data.

b. Are you sponsoring the data in the tables in these two spreadsheets? If not,
please identify the witness or withnesses who can sponsor and verify the billing
determinants data in these two spreadsheets.

RESPONSE:

a. Yes. The source used to compile these data is the FY2005 Bound Printed Matter
Billing Determinants,

b. Yes.


http://AMAZON.COM
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS YEH
TO INTERRCGATORY OF AMAZON.COM, INC.

AMZ/USPS-T38-2.

Piease refer to USPS-LR-L-41, Media Mail and Library Spreadsheets, tab FY 2005
Billing Determinants (WP-MM-2).

a. Were the data that appear in this spreadsheet prepared by you, or under your
supervision? If so, piease provide the source or sources used to compile or prepare
these data.

b. Are you sponsoring the data in this spreadsheet? If not, please identify the
witness or witnesses who can sponsor and verify the billing determinants data in this
table.
RESPONSE:

a Yes. The source used to prepare these data is the FY 2005 Media Mail and

Library Mail Biiling Determinants.

b Yes.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS YEH
TO INTERROGATORY OF AMAZON.COM, INC.

AMZ/USPS-T38-3.

Please refer to your testimony at page 12, lines 17-19, and your statement that “[m]ost
Media Mail and Library Mail pieces consist of small parcels: half weigh less than one
pound ...."

a. Please indicate where this datum fer parcels under one pound can be found in,
or computed from, your workbook, USPS-LR-L-41, Media Mail and Library
Spreadsheets.

b. If this datum is not contained in your workbook, USPS-LR-L-41, Media Mail and
Library Spreadsheets, but is derived from this workbook, please show the derivation.
C. If this datum is neither contained in nor derived from your workbook for Media

Mail and Library Mail Spreadsheets in USPS-LR-L-41, please provide the source.

RESPONSE:

a. This datum is not contained in USPS-LR-L-41, Media and Library Mail
Spreadsheets.

b. This datum was not derived from USPS-LR-L-41, Media and Library Mail
Spreadsheets.

c. This datum was derived from the FY2005 Media Mail Billing Determinants.
Please note that the percentage stated in my testimony should be 39 percent of
Media Mail and Library Mail weighs less than one pound, and 97 percent weigh

less than six pounds. Corrections to my testimony will be filed.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS YEH
TO INTERROGATORY OF AMAZON.COM, INC.

AMZ/USPS-T38-4.

Please refer to your testimony at page 13, lines 9-12.

a. Please confirm that your proposed rates for Media Mail and Library Mail do not
have a three-part rate structure, such as that which exists today, and which has

been in existence since 1975 for Media Mail, and since 1978 for Library Maii. If you do
not confirm, please provide the different rates you used for: (i) pounds two through
seven, and (ii) each additional pound.

b. If you confirm preceding part a, then please provide all reasons why you rejected
the existing three-part rate structure.

RESPONSE:

a. Not confirmed. Please see USPS-LR-L-41 Media and Library Mail
Spreadsheets, WP-MM-11, Column [J]. My proposed rates were derived from a
per-piece and per-pound rate construction manifested in a three-part structure
that resulted in one rate for the first pound, a separate lower rate for additional
weight up to 7 pounds and the same lower rate for additional weight over 7
pounds.

In previous dockets, large rate increases potentially affecting the first pound rate
were mitigated by increasing the heavier pound rates. For example, in Docket
R2001-1, Witness Kiefer “mitigated large first pound rate increases by shifting
some of the increase from the first pound to the second through seventh pounds
and. to a lesser extent, to heavier rate cells.”

In this case, | found that if | had allowed the preliminary rate elements to flow
through without adjustment, they would have resulted in unacceptably large
increases in the first pound rate cells of Basic Presort and 5-Digit Presort. To

mitigate this rate impact, | increased passthroughs of Basic Presort and 5-Digit

Presort cost savings to over 100 percent and applied a lower mark-up to non-

1908
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS YEH
TO INTERROGATORY OF AMAZON.COM, INC.
weight related non-transportation costs. | then offset the potential revenue loss
by applying a slightly higher markup for the weight-related costs. These

adjustments resulted in a rate structure of $2.09 for the first pound and $0.38 for

additional pounds.

b. Not applicable.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS YEH
TO INTERROGATORY OF AMAZON.COM, INC.

AMZ/USPS-T38-5.
Please refer to your testimony at page 16, lines 7-9.

a. Piease define the term “standard ... rate-development approach to rate
development” as used here in your testimony.
D. Would you agree that the per-piece and single per-pound rated approach which

you use for Media Mail and Library Mail has not been a “standard” approach for these
two subclasses at any time sine 19787 If you do not agree, please explain when the
per-piece and single per-pound approach which you use was the “standard” approach
for Media Mail and Library Mail.
RESPONSE:
a&b | described my rate-development approach as “standard” to signify that | used
the same rate-development methodology as in Docket Nos. R2001-1 and R2000-

1. The only difference was in the way | mitigated the rate impact, as described in

my response tc AMZ/USP3-T38-4(a).
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS YEH
TO INTERROGATORY OF AMAZON.COM, INC.

AMZ/USPS-T38-6.

Please refer to USPS-LR-L-41, Media Mail and Library Spreadsheets, tab Adjusted
Rate (WP-MM-12), and in particular refer to columns E to G and columns M to O,

a. Please explain all changes in rate design you made that resuited in a reduction in
rates in some individual rate cells of up to 6.1 percent (e.g., the 7-b., 5-digit Presort
Library rate in column N), while other rate cells experienced increases as high as 44.4
percent (e.g., the 1-Ib., 5-digit Presort Media Mail rate in column F).

b. Please confirm that the proposed rate changes for Media Mail range from -5.3
percent to +44.4 percent, and from lowest to highest, your proposed changes in rates
for Media Mail span a total range of 49.7 percent. If you do not confirm, please provide
the correct range.

C. Please confirm that the rate changes for Library Mail range from -6.1 percent to
+44.2 percent, and from lowest to highest your proposed changes in rates for Library
Mail span a total range of 50.3 percent. If you do not confirm, please provide the correct
range.

d. Ptease explain your rationale for proposing such wide-ranging changes,

RESPONSE:
a. The rate changes result primarily from changes in costs. My rate design
attempts to mitigate rate impact, as | explain in my answer to AMZ/USPS-T38-
4(a), to the extent practicable.
t. Confirmed.

c. Confirmed.

d. Please see my response to part (a).


http://AMAZON.COM
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS YEH
TO INTERRGGATORY OF AMAZON.COM, INC.

AMZ/USPS-T38-7.

Please refer to your testimony at page 15, lines 21-22, where you state that “the Postal
Service proposes no fundamental changes to the Media Mail or Library Mail rate
designs.” |

a. Please explain why you believe that proposed changes in rates that range from a

reduction of 5-6 percent to an increase of 44 percent do not represent “fundamental
changes to the Media Mail or Library Maii rate designs.”

b. Within the limits of the law requiring rates for Media Mail and Library Mail to be
unzoned. please describe what you would consider to constitute a fundamentai change
in rate design for Media Mail, and provide at least one example that, in your opinion,
would represent a fundamental change to Media Mail rate design.

RESPONSE:

a The range of rate changes is not an indicator of whether “fundamental changes
to the Media Mail or Library Mail rate designs” were made. My approach
mitigates what would have been even greater increases based purely on cost
changes.

b Hypothetically speaking within the limits of the taw requiring rates for Media Mail
and Library Mail to be un-zoned, eliminating presort discounts would be an

example of a fundamental change in Media Mail rate design.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS YEH
TO INTERROGATORY OF AMAZON.COM, INC.

AMZ/USPS-T38-8.

Please refer to USPS-LR-L-41, Media Mail and Library Spreadsheets, tab Adjusted
Rates (WP-MM-12).

a. Please explain which data in your Media Mail workbooks you reviewed to study
the impact on maiiers of lighter weight pieces (e.g., under 1 pound, and between 1 and
2 pounds), whose rates would increase by 19 to 44 percent under your proposed rates.
b Before finalizing your proposed rate changes for Media Mail and Library Mail, did
you review the criteria in Section 3622(b) of the Postal Reorganization Act?

If so. please explain the rationale which enabled you to determine that your propesed
rates comply with subsection (b){(1), fairness and equity for users of Media Mail.

C Is it your opinion that rate changes of 31.4 to 44.4 percent for 1-pound Media
Mail pieces comply with criterion (h}(4) regarding the effect of rate increases on
mailers? If so. please explain the rationale which enabled you to determine that your
proposed rate increases will not have an undue effect on those users of Media Mail who
send light-weight {(i.e., under 1 pound) pieces.

RESPONSE:

a 1reviewed all the data in my Media Mail workbooks before finalizing the Media
Mail proposed rates. The size of a rate change must be considered in context.
Given my evaluation of cost changes, the cost coverage proposed by witness
(O'Hara, and the rate changes, | determined that the proposal as a whole was
appropriate.

b. Yes. | have reviewed the pricing criteria in section 3622(b). Itis my
understanding that the pricing criteria are applied in witness O'Hara's
determination of the appropriate cost coverage for each subclass. Inlines4to 7 ;g F‘fj‘ 2”}
of his testimony, witness O'Hara stated, “The 18 percent increases will clearly
have some adverse effect on current users of Media and Library Mail rate
(criterion 4), but the rate increases reflect cost increases and the revenue they
generate provides only a small margin above costs.”

c. Please see my response o AMZ/USPS-T38-8(b).


http://AMAZON.COM

RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS YEH
TO INTERROGATORY OF AMAZON.COM, INC.

AMZ/USPS-T38-9.

In order to isolate and help understand the impact of your methodological change in rate
design, please provide rates for Media Mail using the three-part rate structure which
exists today, and which has been in existence since 1975 for Media Mail. Such rates
should achieve the same coverage and revenues as your proposed rates.

RESPONSE:

Please see my response to AMZ/USPS-T38-4(a).

1914
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS YEH
TO INTERROGATORY OF AMAZON.COM, INC.

AMZ/USPS-T38-10.

Please refer to your testimony at page 7, lines 17-19, and explain the procedure that

you used to aliocate total volume variable costs of BPM between Nonpresort costs and
Presorted mail costs.

RESPONSE:

41
Please refer to Library Reference USPS-LR-L?Q, Bound Printed Matter Spreadsheets,
WP-BPM-9.


http://AMAZON.COM

RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS YEH
TO INTERROGATORY OF AMAZON.COM, INC.

AMZ/USPS-T38-11.

When a mailer sends a book or catalog at BPM rates, can a CD or DVD be included as
pant of the mailing (i} if the jacket holding the CD or DVD is bound permanently into the
book or catalog, or (ii) if the CD cr DVD is not attached in any way to the book or
catalog, but relates to the book or catalog? Please expiain under what circumstances, if
any, a CD or DVD can be included as part of a BPM mailpiece.

RESPONSE:

I am unaware of any proposed changes to current eligibility requirements for Bound
Printed Matter Please refer to DMM sections 163.4.0(b), 363.2.4.3(b), or 463.2.4.3(b)

as applicable.

1916
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS YEH
TO INTERROGATORY OF AMAZON.COM, INC.

AMZ/USPS-T38-12.
Please refer to USPS-LR-L-41, BRM Spreadsheets, tab Rate Comparisons, WP-BPM-
21, which shows percentage increases ranging from 4.4 to 18.2 percent. What is the
average rate increase for all Single Piece (Nonpresort) BPM? Please show how you
compute the average rate increase, including the volume to which the average rate
tncrease is applicable.
RESPONSE:
Please note that | have not performed this calculation in USPS-LR-L-41, BPM
Spreadsheets. One way of calculating the average rate increase for all Single Piece

(Nonpresor) BPM would be to divide the Single Piece TYAR Revenue (see line [aa] in

WP-BPM-27) by total Singie Piece Volume (see item [Ba] in WP-BPM-26).
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS YEH
TO INTERROGATORY OF AMAZON.COM, INC.

AMZ/USPS-T38-13.

Please refer to USPS-LR-L-41, BRM Spreadsheets, tab Rate Comparisons, WP-BPM-
22. which shows percentage increases ranging from 11.9 to 26.8 percent. What is the
average rate increase for all Basic Presort BPM? Please show how you compute the
average rate increase, including the volume to which the average rate increase is
applicable.

RESPONSE:

Please note that | have not performed this calculation in USPS-LR-L-41, BPM
Spreadsheets. One way of calculating the average rate increase for all Basic Presort
BPM would be to divide the Basic Presort TYAR Revenue by total Basic Presort Volume
(see item [Fal in WP-BPM-26}. However, | am unable to perform this calculation

because TYAR revenue was not separately calculated by presort level. Please refer to

WP-BPM-27.
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AMZ/USPS-T38-14.

Please refer to USPS-LR-L-41, BRM Spreadsheets, tab Rate Comparisons, WP-BPM-
23, which shows percentage increases ranging from 8.3 to 23.0 percent. What is the
average rate increase for all Basic Presort BPM entered at a Destination Bulk Mail
Center/Auxiliary Service Facility ("DBMC/ASF"}? Please show how you compute the
average rate increase, Iincluding the volume to which the average rate increase is
applicable.

RESPONSE:

Please note that | have not performed this calculation in USPS-LR-L-41, BPM
Soreadsheets. One way of calculating the average rate increase for Basic Presort BPM
entered at DBMC/ASF would he to divide the Basic Presort TYAR Revenue by Basic
Presort Volume entered at DBMC/ASF. However, | am unable to perform this
calculation because TYAR revenue was not separately calculated by presort level.

Please refer to WP-BPM-26 and WP-BPM-27.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS YEH
TO INTERROGATORY OF AMAZON.COM, INC.

AMZ/USPS-T38-15.

Please refer to USPS-LR-L-41, BRM Spreadsheets, tab Rate Comparisons, WP-BPM-
24, which shows percentage increases ranging from 12.2 to 28.3 percent. What is the
average rate increase for all Carrier Route Presort BPM? Please show how you
compute the average rate increase, including the volume to which the average rate
increase is applicable.

RESPONSE:

Please note that | have not performed this calculation in USPS-LR-L-41, BPM
Spreadsheets. One way of calculating the average rate increase for all Carrier Route
Presort BPM would be to divide the Carrier Route Presort TYAR Revenue by total
Carrier Route Presort Volume (see item [Ja] in WP-BPM-26). However, | am unable to

perform this calculation because TYAR revenue was not calculated separately by

presort level. Please refer to WP-BPM-27.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS YEH
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AMZ/USPS-T38-16.

Please refer to USPS-LR-L-41, BRM Spreadsheets, tab Rate Comparisons, WP-BPM-
25, which shows percentage increases ranging from 11.3 to 25.2 percent. What is the
average rate increase for all Carrier Route Presort BPM entered at DBMC/ASF? Please
show how you compute the average rate increase, including the volume over which the
average is applicable.

RESPONSE:

Please note that | have not performed this calculation in USPS-LR-L-41, BPM
Spreadsheets. One way of calculating the average rate increase for Carrier Route
Presort BPM entered at DBMC/ASF would be to divide the Carrier Route Presort TYAR
Revenue by Carrier Route Presort Volume entered at DBMC/ASF. However, | am

unable to perform this calculation because TYAR revenue and Volume were not

calculated separately by presort level. Please refer to WP-BPM-26 and WP-BPM-27.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS YEH
TO INTERROGATORY OF AMAZON.COM, INC.

AMZ/USPS-T38-17.

Please provide any available data showing (i) the percentage of Bound Printed Matter

{("BPM") that consisted of non-catalogs (e.g., books) and (ii) the percentage of BPM that
consisted of catalogs in Base Year 2005.

RESPONSE:

These data are not available.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS YEH
TO INTERROGATORY OF AMAZON.COM, iNC.

AMZ/USPS-T38-18.
Please provide FY 2005 data for BPM that show the relationship between (i) weight (by

pound increments, up to 15 Ibs.), and (ii) cube, or density. If FY 2005 data are not
available, then please provide data for the most recent year available.

RESPONSE:

These data are not available .
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AMZ/USPS-T38-19,

Please refer to Docket No. R2001-1, USPS-T-33, page 42, lines 15-26, where witness
Kiefer describes adjustments to his preliminary rate elements for Media Mail and Library
mail. Atlines 19-22, he states that:

In the past, both the Postal Service and the Commission have mitigated these
farge first pound rate increases by shifting some of the increase from the first pound to
the second through seventh pounds and, to a lesser extent, to heavier rate cells.

a  Did you review witness Kiefer's testimony prior to finalizing your testimony in this
case”?

b Did you consider following what witness Kiefer described as the Postal Service

and Commission practice of mitigating large first pound increases for Media and

Library Mail?

Please explain why you did not mitigate the large first pound increases in line

with prior Postal Service and Commission practice.

(@]

RESPONSE:
a. Yes
b Yes.

¢ Please see my response to AMZ/USPS-T38-4a.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS YEH
TO INTERROGATORY OF AMAZON.COM, INC.

AMZ/USPS-T38-20.

In Docket No. R2005-1, witness Bradley, USPS-T-14, modeied separately the delivery
cost for "large” and “small” parcels. In developing your proposed rates for BPM and
Media Mail, piease explain what consideration you gave to the different delivery costs
for small and farge parcels, as recommended by witness Bradley in Docket No. R2005-
1 and implemented in this docket by witness Kelley (USPS-T-30).

RESPONSE:

Please note that | am not familiar with the details of those cost studies. My rate design
did not attempt to incorporate any separate information regarding unit costs of small
versus large parcels, as | am not proposing separate rates for large and small parcels.
It is my understanding that total BPM and Media Mail volumes and delivery costs are
not calculated separately by size. In Witness Kelley's response to AMZ/USPS-T30-1,
he provided base year 2005 volumes and base year volume variable regular delivery

ttme cost for "small” and "arge” parcels delivered on city letter routes. Witness Kelley

also stated, "The corresponding test year unit cost is unavailable.”
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AMZ/USPS-T38-21.

Please refer to your testimany at page 11, lines 4-7, where you state that “[t]he lower
cost savings passthroughis] for DSCF and DDU help mitigate unacceptable rate
increases for non-dropshipped mail...."

a.

b.

Had you used 100 percent passthroughs for DSCF and DDU, what would have
been the percentage increase for non-dropshipped mail?

Please explain what criteria you used to conclude that the percentage increase
for non-dropshipped mail was unacceptable if passthroughs for DSCF and DDU
entry were set at 100 percent.

Under the circumstances of this docket, what do you consider to be the
maximum acceptable rate increase for rate cells within BPM, including but not
limited to non-dropshipped BPM.

Under the circumstances of this docket, what do you consider to be the
maximum acceptable rate increase for rate cells within (i) Media Mail, and (ii)
Library Mail?

If your maximum acceptable rate increase for BPM differs from your maximum
rate increase for Media Mail, please explain why similar figures for acceptability
do not apply to each subclass.

RESPONSE:

d.

b.

it is not clear that a 100 percent passthrough of the cited discounts would have resulted

! have not performed hypothetical calculations.

See my response to part a. The rate design must balance numerous factors, and

in a set of prices that would have met those objectives, and would have actually been

proposed.

C.

Matter. The rate design was an iterative process that led to the proposed rates. Given

my evaluation of cost changes, the cost coverage proposed by witness O'Hara, and the

I had no explicit maximum acceptable increase for rate cells within Bound Printed

rate changes, the proposed rates were deemed consistent with all the rate design

objectives.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS YEH
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d. | had no explicit maximum acceptable increase for rate cells within Media Mail
and Library Mail. The rate design was an iterative process that led to the proposed
rates. Given my evaluation of cost changes, the cost coverage proposed by witness
O’Hara, and the rate changes, the proposed rates were deemed consistent with all the
rate design objectives.

e. Not applicable,
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AMZ/USPS-T38-22.

Your testimony at page 4 discusses how BPM evolved to inciude books. Your testimony

at page 12 (li. 5-8) states that books also can be entered as Media Mail. At page 6,
footnote 2, you expiain the Postal Service's intention that BPM will effectively cease to
exist as a retail offering. And at page 7 (Il. 7-9), you note that in FY 2005 the
Nonpresort volume of BPM was less than 5 percent of total volume, which implies that
BPM has effectively become a low-cost bulk subclass (as it was intended to be when
criginalty established). When items like (i) scund and video recordings, and (ii)
computer readable media such as computer programs weigh less than 15 pounds and
could be part of a bulk mailing, what is the rationale for excluding such items from
BPM? Please explain fully, on the assumption that a 1.5 to 3 pound box containing
either a video recording or computer readable media is indistinguishable in size or
shape frorn a 1 5to 3 pound box containing a book.

RESPONSE:

The Postal Service has not proposed changes to content eligibility for Bound Printed
Matter or Media Mall in this case. Therefore | have not looked into the rate design
repercussions of such a proposal and note that there would be issues raised that go
heyond the scope of my testimony. Also, while | have not examined the issue, it is not
evident that a box containing a book weighing 1.5 pounds would be the same size as a

box of CDs weighing 1.5 pounds.
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TO INTERROGATORY OF AMAZON.COM, INC.

AMZ/USPS-T38-23.

Please refer to USPS-LR-L-41, file R2006_USPS-LR-L-41_Media and Library

Spreadsheets.xls, tab FY 2005 Billing Determinants, WP-MM-2. The volume data
shown there for both Media and Library Mail are broken down by (i) first pound, (i)

second through seventh pound, and (iii} eighth pound and over.

a. Do you have base year volume and weight data for Media Mail and Library Mail

broken down by finer weight increments, such as one pound increments?
0. If so, please provide such data.

RESPONSE:

a Yes.

b Please see the tollowing tabie:

Estimated Number of Pieces
FY 2005 Billing Determinants

Media Mail .{. Media Mail Library Mail - |- Library Mail
Pounds Single Piece | - Presort Single Piece | - Presort -
0-1 60,131,676 10,314,021 5872,152 289,355
1-2 46,996,753 16,400,825 4,487,621 272,273
2-3 16.936.882 6.101.051 1,545,532 87.647
3-4 7,764,969 1,731,479 680,717 23,126
4-5 4,219,123 565,460 380,588 22,005
5-6 2,316,824 296,803 194 261 1,528
6-7 1.414 239 186,452 112,207 5717
7-70 3.660.429 563.589 366,691 13,476

1829
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS YEH
TO INTERROGATORY OF AMAZON.COM, INC.

MZ/USPS-T38-24.
Please refer to USPS-LR-L-41, file R2006_USPS-LR-L-41_BPM Spreadsheets.xls, tab ‘FY 2005
SP Billing Det.”, "FY 2005 Billing Determinants — Single Piece Bound Printed Matter, * WP-BPM-4
and tab ‘FY 2005 Presort Billing Det.’, “FY 2005 Billing Determinants- Presort Bound Printed
Matter, " WP-BPM-3.

a. Forthe 405,929,811 Basic Presort pieces of BPM shown by zone under tab WP-BPM-3,
piease provide a breakdown by weight and zone similar to the data for the 27,880,869
pieces of singie piece BPM shown under tab WP-BPM-4, {f the data for Basic Presort
cannot be broken down by weight and zone, please provide a breakdown of aggregate
volume by weight, using the same increments as those shown in the single piece
tabulation.

b. Forthe 149,862,520 Carrier Route pieces of BPM shown by zone under tab WP-BPM-
3 please provide a breakdown by weight and zone similar to the data for 27,880,869
pieces of single piece BPM shown under tab WP-BPM-4. If the data for Carrier Route
cannot be broken down by both wetght and zone, please provide a breakdown of
aggregate volume by weight, using the same increments as those shown in the single
piece tabulation.

RESPONSE:
a & b Please see the following tables for FY2005 Presorted BPM volume estimates by weight

and zcne.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES

TO INTERROGATORY OF AMAZON.COM, INC.

FYZ005 Carrier Route Presort BPM volume by pound apd zone.

Non-destination entered

Foundgs
1 2 3 4
Zones

182 16,435 957,122 132.029 8922
3 15,737 179,999 51.450 12.987

4 15776 213.235 42.227 17,466

5 14,145 387820 62,548 10,327

6 2.372 88.136 50.438 12,298

7 2.837 408072 65,250 8,483

8 13,896 415224 §3.731 10,267

FY2005 Carrier Route Presort BPM volume by pound and zane.
DBMC

Pounds
1 2 3 4
Zones
182 25,197 7,984,456 1,806.890 368,717
3 1,341 4,058 740 880,263 148,174
4 8,491 937,104 182,849 38,149
5 0 100224 65 2,968

FY2005 Basic Presort BPM voluma by pound and zona,
DSCF & DDU
Pounds
1 2 3 4
DSCF 955,202 58,083,909 14,011,935 9.070.976
Dby 386710 21,154,414 7,174,744 15,828,908

3417
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6
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Total

1,123,683
264,032
298268
483,258
154516
493.647
521,465

Total

10,364,030

5,141,279 -

1,179,793
103,257

Total
83,191.983
46,641,958
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS YEH
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AMZ/USPS-T38-25.
Please refer to your testimony at page 4, lines 6-7.
a. Please explain what the purpose was of allowing the weight of BPM mail pieces to

increase to 15 pounds.

b. Please discuss the extent to which that purpose has been achieved.

¢. To what extent has increasing the weight limit to 15 pounds resulted in an increase
in the average unit cost of BPM?

d. Would you characterize such increase in unit cost as has occurred a
disproportionate increase in unit cost? Please expiain.

RESPONSE:

a. Ptease see pages 4 — 6 of Withess Adra's testimony in Docket No. R97-1.

b. To the extent there is volume between 10 and 15 pounds, the purpose has been
achieved. Please see the data to be provided in response to AMZ/USPS-T38-24.

c-d. Redirected to the Postal Service
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS YEH
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AMZ/USPS-T38-26.

a. Please confirm that your work paper WP-BPM-8 (“Caiculation of TYBR Pieces and
Pounds") in file R2006_USPS-LR-L-41_BPM Spreadsheets.xls of USPS-LR-L-41
shows that parcels/IPPs account for (i) 61 percent of Basic Presort BPM, (ii) 35
percent of Carrier Route BPM, and (iii) 54 percent of Basic and Carrier Route BPM
combined. If you do not confirm, please provide the correct percentages.

b. Over the past 10 years, has the share of parcels in Basic and Carrier Route BPM
increased? If so by approximately how much?

RESPONSE:

a Confirmed.

b BPM by shape data are only available for test years used in Docket R2001-1 and the
current docket. Please refer to Witness Kiefer's workpaper WP-BPM-26

{"Calculation of TYBR Pieces and Pounds”) in file BMPWP .xIs of USPS-LR-J-106.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS YEH
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AMZ/USPS-T38-27.
Please refer to your testimony at page 4, lines 18-21, where you state that:

The rates for BPM and for Media Mail (formerly Special Rate
Fourth-Class Mail and then Special Standard Mail) evolved in such a
way that, in some instances, BPM rates became cheaper than the
corresponding rates for Media Mall (which was a preferred subclass).

a. Please confirm that, at your proposed Single-Piece (zoned) rates for BPM and
{unzoned) rates for Media Mail, for parcels that weigh more than 1 pound, the
BPM rates to zone 5 are always less than the Media Mail rates for the
corresponding weight. If you do not confirm, please indicate those zones, in
zones 1-5, where the Media Mail rate is lower than the BPM rate for the
corresponding weight.

b. Please confirm that, at your proposed Basic Presort (zoned) rates for BPM and
your (unzoned) rates for Media Mail for parcels that weigh more than 1 pound,
the BPM rate to zone 6 is always less than the Media Mail rates for the
corresponding weight. If you do not confirm, please indicate those zones, in
zones 1-5, where the Media Mail rate is iower than the BPM rate for the
corresponding weight.

c. Please confirm that, at your proposed rates for Basic Presort Destination Entry
BPM, the rate for parcels {and flats) is always less than the Media Mail rate for
the corresponding weight. If you do not confirm, please list all excepts.

d. Please confirm that, at your proposed rates for Media Mail, the BPM rate for
parcels to zone 7 is always less than the Media Mail rate for the corresponding
weight. If you do not confirm, please indicate those zones, in zones 1-7, where
the Media Mail rate for parcels is lower than the corresponding BPM rate.

e. Please confirm that your proposed Destination Entry rates for carrier route
oresorted BPM parcels (and flats) are always less than the Media Mail rate for
the corresponding weight. Please explain any non-confirmation.

f.  For those items that can be mailed as BPM or Media Mail (e.g. books), would
you agree that BPM generally offers lower rates to mailers who presort and enter
their mail at destination facilities?

g. Would you agree that the rate structure for BPM, which (i) is zoned, (ii) has both
presort and destination entry rates, (iii) has automation (barcode) discounts for
mail that can take advantage of automated processing, and (iv) has a flat/parcel
shape differential, is more economically efficient than the rate structure for Media
Mail, which by law is unzoned and has no destination entry rates? Please explain
any disagreement.

RESPONSE:

a. Confirmed.
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. Confirmed

Not Confirmed. The exceptions are:

Media Mail less than
5-Digit 1lb.

. Not confirmed. The exceptions are:
Media Mait 11b. less than

Single Piece
5-Digit Presort
Basic Presort

Media Mail Single Piece less than

Pounds 1-15
Pounds 1 - 12

Media Mail Basic Presort less than

Pounds 1 - 15
Pounds 1 -7
Pounds 1 -4
Pounds 1-3
Pounds 1 -2

Media Mail 5-Digit less than

Pounds 1 - 15
Pounds 1-13
Pounds 1-7
Pounds 1-5
Pounds 1 -4

. Confirmed.

Based on the proposed rates, yes.

BPM Basic Presort

DBMC Zone 5 1lb.

BPM Single Piece 1Ib.

Zones 1-7

BPM Single Piece

Zone 7
Zone 6

BPM Single Piece

Zones 6 and 7
Zone 5

Zone 4

Zone 3

Zones 1& 2

BPM Single Piece

Zones 6 and 7
Zone 5
Zone 4

Zone 3
Zones 1& 2

1936
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g. No. Please see the exceptions | provided in my response to parts [c] and [d].
The rate structure should be considered in context. The proposed rates satisfy a

balance of all the rate design objectives.
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TO INTERROGATORY OF AMAZON.COM, INC.

AMZ/USPS-T38-28.

For the proposed Media Mail rates shown in USPS-T-38, Attachment C, please provide
a table showing TYAR allocated costs, including contingency by rate cell, in a format
similar to that provided for Priority Mail in USPS-T-33, Attachment F, Table 18.

RESPONSE:

These data are not available because costs are allocated by rate element, not by rate

cell.
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TO INTERROGATORY OF AMAZON.COM, INC.

AMZ/USPS-T38-29.
For the proposed BPM Basic Presort rates in USPS-T-38, Attachment A, page 2,
please provide a table showing TYAR allocated costs, including contingency by rate
cell, in a format similar to that provided for Priority Mail in USPS-T-33, Attachment F,
Tabie 18.
RESPONSE:

These data are not available because costs are allocated by rate element, not by rate

cell.
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AMZ/USPS-T38-30.
For the proposed BPM Basic Presort Destination Entry rates in USPS-T-38,
Attachment A, page 3, please provide a table showing TYAR allocated costs, including
contingency by rate cell, in a format similar to that provided for Priority Mail in USPS-T-
33, Attachment F, Table 18.
RESPONSE:

These data are not available because costs are allocated by rate element, not by rate

cell
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS YEH
TO INTERROGATORY OF DAVID B. POPKIN

DBP/USPS-T38-1. Please refer to your testimony at page 6, fn. 2. If the Postal Service
proceeds with its plan to issue the regulation described in your testimony, please advise
the changes that will be necessary to the DMCS for this proposed curtailment of
service.

Response: [ am not proposing any changes to the DMCS language for Bound Printed

Matter in this regard other than the name change referred to on the page you cited.
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DBP/USPS-T38-2. Please refer to your testimony at page 6, fn. 2. If the Postal Service
proceeds with its plan to issue the regulation described in your testimony, please advise
the changes that will be necessary to the DMM for this proposed curtailment of service.

Response: Please note that revision of specific DMM provisions is not within the
scope of my testimony or the rate case generally. 1tis my understanding that revising
the DMM is an ongoing process and will be finalized by the Postal Service based on the

outcome of the case.
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TO INTERROGATORY OF DAVID B. POPKIN

DBP/USPS-T38-3. Please refer to your testimony at page 6, fn. 2. If the Postal Service
proceeds with its plan to issue the regulation described in your testimony, will a
customer seeking to send a single piece of Bound Printed Matter be able to either pay
part, all, or an excess amount of postage by means of a postage meter stamp or stamps
and the rest, if any, by any other maans, including, but not limited to regular postage
stamps. H not, please explain the rationale behind your response.

Response: The postage for the piece would be required to be paid using customer-
generated postage meter, including PC postage, or by permit imprint. My
understanding is that it is the Postal Service's view that Bound Printed Matter is
essentially a commercial product Limiting payment options to those typically used by

commerciai mailers wiil help clarify our product offering.
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DBP/USPS-T38-4. Please refer to your testimony at page 6, fn. 2. If the Postal Service
proceeds with its plan to issue the regulation described in your testimony, will a
customer seeking to send a single piece of Bound Printed Matter be able to either pay
part, all, or an excess amount of postage by means of an Automated Postal Center
[APC] stamp or stamps and the rest, if any, by any other means, including, but not
limited to regular postage stamps. If not, please explain the rationale behind your
response.

Response: Please see my response to DBP/USPS-T38-3 and DFC/USPS-T38-3.
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DBP/USPS-T38-5. Please refer to your testimony at page 6, fn. 2. If the Postal Service
proceeds with its plan to issue the regulation described in your testimony, will a
customer seeking to send a single piece of Bound Printed Matter be able to either pay
part, all, or an excess amount of postage by means of a computer generated stamp or
stamps such as those provided by stamps.com and the rest, if any, by any other means,
including but not limited to regular postage stamps. If not, please explain the rationale
behind your response.

Response: Please see my response to DBP/USPS-T38-3.
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DBP/USPS-T38-6. Please refer to your testimony at page 6, fn. 2. If the Postal Service
proceeds with its plan to issue the regulation described in your testimony, will a
customer seeking to send a singlte piece of Bound Printed Matter be able to mail the
article with a rural delivery letter carrier? If not, please explain the rationale behind your
response.

Response: | am not an expert on mail entry issues but it is my understanding that a
customer will be able to mail a Nonpresort BPM piece with a rural delivery letter carrier,

given that the customer-generated postage is appropriate.
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DBP/USPS-T38-7. Please refer to your testimony at page 6, fn. 2. If the Postal Service
proceeds with its plan to issue the regulation described in your testimony, will a
customer seeking to send a single piece of Bound Printed Matter be able to mail the
article with a city delivery letter carrier? If not, please explain the rationale behind your
response.

Response: | am not an expert on mail entry issues but it is my understanding that a
customer will be able to mail a Nonpresort BPM piece with a city delivery letter carrier,

given that the customer-generated postage is appropriate.
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DBP/USPS-T38-8. Please refer to your testimony at page 6, fn. 2. If the Postal Service
proceeds with its plan to issue the regulation described in your testimony, will a
customer seeking to send a single piece of Bound Printed Matter be able to mail the
article with a highway contract delivery letter carrier? If not, please explain the rationale
behind your response.

Response: | am not an expert on mail entry issues but it is my understanding that a
customer will be able to mail a Nonpresort BPM piece with a highway contract delivery

letter carrier, given that the customer-generated postage is appropriate.
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DBP/USPS-T38-9. Please refer to your testimony at page 6, fn. 2. If the Postal Service
proceeds with its plan to issue th.e reguiation described in your testimony, will a
customer seeking to send a single piece of Bound Printed Matter be able to mail the
article with any of the ancillan’ services such as, but not limited to, Certificate of Mailing,
Delivery Confirmation, Signature Confirmation, Insurance, COD? If so, please describe
the method that would be utilized If not, please explain the rationale behind your
response

Response: No, because this situation would involve a retail transaction.

1949



RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS YEH
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DBP/USPS-T38-10. Please refer o your testimony at page 6, fn. 2. [a] Please advise
why the Postal Service believes that it is necessary to simplify window service
operations. [b] Please describe how you believe this proposed regulation will achieve
that objective.

Response: Although the subject is outside the scope of my testimony, it is my
understanding that simplifying operations could potentially reduce waiting time and
reduce window costs. My understanding is that under the planned change, window

clerks would offer only those services most likely to be used by retail customers.
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DBP/USPS-T38-11. Please refer to your testimony at page 6, fn. 2. [a] Please advise
why the Postal Service believes that it is necessary to reduce the complexily of retail
transactions for customers. [b] Please describe how you believe this proposed
regutation will achieve that objective.

Response: Please see my response to DBP/USPS-T38-10.
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TO INTERROGATORY OF DAVID B. POPKIN

DBP/USPS-T38-12. Please refer to your testimony at page 6, fn. 2. Please enumerate
and fully discuss any other reasons that exist for introducing this regulation other than
those specified in interrogatories 10 and 11. If there are no other reasons, so state.

Response: The footnote and my answers to interrogatories concerning it provide all

the reasons of which | am aware.

1952



RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS YEH
TO INTERROGATORY OF DAVID B. POPKIN

DBP/USPS-T38-13. Please refer to your testimony at page 6, fn. 2. Please describe
the characteristics of a mailpiece that would be eligible for mailing as Media Mail but

would not be eligibie to mail as Bound Printed Matter.

Response: Please refer to sections 163 and 173 of the Domestic Mait Manual.

1953



RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS YEH
TO INTERROGATORY OF DAVID B. POPKIN

DBP/USPS-T38-14. Please refer to your testimony at page 6, fn. 2. Please describe
the characteristics of a mailpiece that would be eligible for mailing as Bound Printed
Matter but would not be eligible to mail as Media Mail.

Response: Please see my response to DBP/USPS-T38-13.
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DBP/USPS-T38-15 Please refer to your testimony at page 6, fn. 2. Please describe
the characteristics of a mailpiece that would be eligible for mailing as Bound Printed
Matter but would not be eligitle to mail as either Express Mail, Priority Mail, First-Class
Mail, or Parcel Post.

Response: Please refer to sections 113, 123, 133, 153, and 163 of the Domestic Mail

Manual.
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DBP/USPS-T38-16. Please refer to your testimony at page 6, fn. 2. Please describe
why you believe a retail customer can not make an easily distinguishable choice to use
Bound Printed Matter [if the contents of the mailpiece are authorized] over Media Mail or
Parcel Post.

Response: ltis not my testimony that a retail customer cannot “make an easily
distinguishable choice to use Bound Printed Matter over Media Mail or Parcel Post.” My
understanding is that having clerks offer only those services most likely to be used by
customers will help streamline the retail transaction for both customers and clerks. The
change discussed affects only the postage payment options for those customers who

choose 1o use Bound Printed Matter.
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TO INTERROGATORY OF DAVID B. POPKIN

DBP/USPS-T38-17. Please refer to your testimony at page 6, fn. 2. Please confirm
that the delivery service standards for Bound Printed Matter are the same as for Parcel
Post and/or Media Mail. If not, please explain.

Response: Confirmed.
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DBP/USPS-T38-18. Please refer to your testimony at page 6, fn. 2. Please discuss
why you believe that this reduction in service will not be a change in the nature of postat
services which will generally affect service on a nationwide or substantially nationwide
basis.

Response: | am not a lawyer and cannot provide the legal opinion sought.



1959

RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS YEH
TO INTERROGATORY OF DAVID B. POPKIN

DBP/USPS-T38-19. Please refer to your testimony at page 6, fn. 2. Please confirm, or
explain if you are unable to confirm, that the postage rates for single piece Bound
Printed Matter will in all cases be less than that for Parcel Post.

Response; Confirmed.
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DBP/USPS-T38-20. Please refer to your testimony at page 6, fn. 2. Please confirm, or
explain if you are unable to confirm, that the postage rates for single piece Bound
Printed Matter will either be more or less than that for Media Mail depending on the

20one.

Response: Confirmed.
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DBP/USPS-T38-21. Please advise the Rate Schedule and Page Number of
Attachment A of the R2006-1 Reguest showing the current and proposed rates for
Bound Printed Matter, Media Mail, and Library Mail.

Response: Please refer to pages 58 to 64 of Attachment A filed on May 4, 2006 under

the title, “Att A - Rate Fee Scheds REV.pdf.*
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DFC/USPS-T38-1. Please refer to your testimony at page 6, fn. 2. Please provide all
documents and other information suggesting that the option to send single-piece Bound
Printed Matter at a retail window is too complex for customers.

Response: Ilis not my testimony that the option to send Single-Piece Bound Printed
Matter at a retail window is too complex for customers. The footnote you cite merely
relates my understanding of a management decision to have window clerks offer only
those services most likely to be used by customers in order to streamline the retail

transaction for both customers and clerks.
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DFC/USPS-T38-3. Please refer to your testimony at page 6, fn. 2. If the Postal Service
proceeds with its plan to issue the regulation described in your testimony, will the Postal
Service accept postage generated by an Automated Postal Center? (Please note that a
knowledgeable customer could generate a label for the necessary postage for single-
piece Bound Printed Matter from an APC even though the APC does not offer the option
for Bound Printed Matter.)

Response: As stated in the footnote you cite, the Postal Service’s intention is to
require that Bound Printed Matter "be paid either by customer-generated postage meter
or by permit imprint.” My understanding is that Postal Service-generated postage, such
as from an APC, is not considered either “customer-generated postage meter” or

“permit imprint.”
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DFC/USPS-T38-4. Please refer to your testimony at page 6, fn. 2.

a. If the Postal Service proceeds with its plan to issue the regulation described in
your testimony, will a customer seeking to send single-piece Bound Printer
Matter with insurance for $300 be required to pay all the postage, or only the
Bound Printed Matter postage, using a postage meter or permit imprint?

b. If the Postal Service proceeds with its plan to issue the regulation described in
your testimony, will a customer seeking to send single-piece Bound Printer
Matter with insurance for $300 be permitted to conduct this transaction at a retail
window?

Response:

(a} It is my understanding that the planned requirement that "Bound Printed Matter”
be pad only by these two methods refers to the Bound Printed Matter piece, which
would include any extra services on that piece, and not just the BPM postage as

your question posits.

(b} My understanding is no, based on the reasons [ mention above.
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DFC/USPS-T38-5. Please refer to your testimony at page 6, fn. 2. Please provide all
other examples of a single-piece postal service that is available to business and
individual customers who pay postage using a postage meter or permit imprint but not
to customers who use postage stamps.

Response: | am not aware of any.
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DFC/USPS-T38-6. Please refer to your testimony at page 6, fn. 2. Suppose a
customer uses a postage meter to pay the postage for a single-piece Bound Printed
Matter parcel, but the customer is unable to use a collection box, either because the
collection time has passed or the item will not fit in the collection box, and the
customer’s post office does not have a collection drop for parcels. Under the Postal
Service's planned regulation, may the customer bring the parcel to a retail window?
Please explain.

Response: 1 am no! an expert on mail entry issues but it is my understanding that a
customer may drop off properly paid BPM {or any other class of mail) at a retail window

even when no other transaction is involved.
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DFC/USPS-T38-7. Please refer to your testimony at page 6, fn. 2. Please confirm that
the rate to mail a particular item as single-piece Bound Printed Matter may be lower
than the rate for any other postat service for which that item would qualify. f you do not
confirm, please explain.

Response: Confirmed.
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DFC/USPS-T38-8. Please refer to your testimony at page 6, fn. 2. Please confirm that
some items that qualify as Bound Printed Matter do not qualify for Media Mail rates. If
you do not confirm, please explain.

Response: Confirmed.
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DFC/USPS-T38-12. Please refer to your testimony at page 6, fn. 2. Does the Postal
Service take the position that preventing customers from mailing single-piece Bound
Printed Matter at retail windows would be fair or equitable?

Response: | am not proposing to make any classification changes. My understanding
is that it is the Postal Service's view that Bound Printed Matter is a commercial product.
Limiting payment options to those typically used by commercial mailers will help clarify

our product offering.
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DFC/USPS-T38-13. Please refer to your testimony at page 6, fn. 2. At present, does
the Postal Service routinely suggest Media Mail to customers who bring large flats or
parcels to the retail window?

Response: | am not testifying on retail operations, but my understanding is that Media

Mail is, and will remain, an option for customers sending eligible parcels at retail

windows
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PB/USPS-T38-1. Please confirm that the Postal Service's current and proposed rate
design for Bound Printed Matter provides dropship discounts. If you cannot confirm
fully, please explain fully.

RESPONSE

Confirmed.
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TO INTERROGATORY OF POSTAL COMMERCE

POSTCOM/USPS-T38-1.

Please refer to page 8 of your testimony where you state that you propose to “pass
along” approximately 123% of the difference in estimated costs between BPM flats and
BPM parcels and irregular pieces, and states that this passthrough “will help distinguish
flats and parcel rates and aid in providing reasonable contributions from both shapes.”

a.

Please confirm that there are three shapes in the Bound Printed Matter
category: flats, parcels, and irregular parcels which may otherwise, in fact,
meet the dimensions of a flat. If you do not confirm, please explain your
answer in detail.

Please explain why it is important to your rate design to “distinguish” flats
and parcels by an amount that is greater than the cost differential between
the types of mail that comprise this category.

Please provide any data you relied upon showing the number of pieces
that meet the definition of a Bound Printed Matter fiat, but are treated as
“irregular parcels” and therefore subject to the rate differential described in
your testimony. If vou do not have such data, please set forth in detail the
assumptions you made with respect to the volume of irregular parcels.
Please provide any worksheets or other calculations you have made in
reaching the conclusion that a 123% passthrough of the flat-parcel
differential is appropriate to achieve a-“reasonable-contribution™from-each
of the shapes of mail matter referred to at page 9 of your testimony. If you
have no such calculation, please explain the basis for your statement
concerning “reasonable contributions.”

1972

RESPONSE:

a. Not confirmed. It is my understanding that flats and parcels are the only two

shapes in the BPM category and that irregular parcels are a subset of the parcel

category. A mail piece may be approximately flat-shaped but if it does not satisfy

the DMM definition of a BPM flat, it is treated as an irregular parcel.

b. Please see my response to P.O.L.R. No. 5, 2b.

c. These

data are not available. | did not make any separate assumption with

respect to the volume of irreqular parceis.

d. As stated in my response to P.O.1.R. No. 5, question 2.b, estimates of mail

processing cost differences between BPM flats and parcels were not availabie to
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me at the time | developed BPM rates. However, after inspecting witness
Smith’'s estimates of the mail processing costs for BPM flats (23.71 cents) and
parcels (62.28 cents), | believe my proposed flat-parcel differential is modest and
reasonably acknowledges that the cost differences between parcels and flats are
not limited to delivery cost differences. Please refer to witness Smith’s
worksheet titied “Summary of All Volume-Variable Mail Processing Unit Costs —
Letters, Flats, Parcels, Ali Shapes” in file “shp08usps.xls.” in library reference,
USPS-LR-L-53. In my testimony, | stated, "My proposal will help distinguish fiats
and parcels rates and aid in providing reasonable contribution from both shapes.”

By “reasonable” | meant the proposed rates as a whole satisfied all the rate

design objectives: cover costs, maintain reasonable rate relationships, and resuit

in acceptable rate changes.
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POSTCOM/USPS-T38-2.

Please refer to your response to P.O.I.R. No. 5, question 2.b in which you state that “in
the spirit of recognizing that mail processing cost differences may be an additional cost
difference between BPM flats and parcels,” you propose to pass through in excess of
100% of the delivery cost differences for the BPM flat-parcel differential.

a. Please set forth in detail any data upon which you have relied in estimating
that the difference in mail processing costs as between BPM flats and BPM
parcels may be as much as 23-24% of delivery cost differences.

b. Please confirm that the 124% passthrough of the BPM flat parcel differential
you have proposed is based on an average cost difference that does not
reflect differences between parcels, irregular parcels and flats by level of
sortation or extent of drop entry. If you do not confirm, please explain your
answer in detail.

RESPONSE:

a. Please see my response to POSTCOM/USPS-T38-1.

1974

b. - Confirmed if the passthrough stated-was meantto-be-123%:
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e

POSTCOM/USPS-T38-3.
Please refer to page 10 of your testimony where you describe manner in which you
have computed the destination entry rates for BPM.

a. Please confirm your understanding that the unit cost saving estimates for
drop shipped BPM reflects the combined avoided costs of drop entered
flats and drop entered parcels at all of the entry levels specified. If you do
not confirm, please state your understanding of the data from witness
Miller that you relied upon in the development of the drop entry rates.

b. Please provide any data you relied upon showing separately the average
weight of BPM parcels and flats and the average density of BPM parcels
and flats. If you have no such data, please explain any assumptions you
made concerning differences in weight and density in developing the BPM
drop entry discounts you have proposed.

c. Please provide any worksheets, or other data, showing the manner in
which you calculated the passthroughs of cost savings for drop entry rates
as set forth at page 11 of your testimony.

RESPONSE:

1975

a. Not confirmed. Itis my understanding that witness Miller's unit cost saving
. estimates for drop shipped BPM reflect the avoided costs of drop entered parcels.

_b. These data are not available. | did not make any assumption concerning differences

in weight and density between flats and parcels in developing the proposed BPM
drop entry discounts.

c. The passthroughs of cost savings for drop ship rates were exogenously chosen to
produce rates that are consistent with all the rate design objectives There are no

workpapers for the passthrough seiection process.



1876

RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS YEH
TO INTERROGATORY OF POSTAL COMMERCE

POSTCOM/USPS-T38-4.

Please refer to the attached DMM Advisory and accompanying DMM language
concerning a new drop ship “option” applicable to Bound Printed matter machinable
parcels to certain 5-digit zip codes prepared on 3-digit pallets or in 3-digit boxes
when entered at a sectional center facility.

a. ls it your understanding that BPM mailers preparing shipments as described in
DMM Section 466.3.0 and entering such pallet or pallet boxes at a DSCF will
quality for the DSCF rates you have proposed? If that is not your understanding,
please explain your understanding of this "option” and what effect, if any, it will
have on the revenues and avoided costs of drop entered Bound Printed Matter
parcels under your rate schedule.

b Were you aware of the drop entry “option” referenced in the DMM Advisory at the
time you prepared your {estimony concerning BPM rates?

RESPONSE:
a. itis my understanding that DBMC rates apply, not DSCF rates. Since it is my

understanding that these gieces formerly-would-havereceived-the DBMC rates;— -

. no revenue impact is anticipated. | have not estimated any changes in costs.

b. No.
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18. Please refer to USPS-LR-L-46. The addendum on page 75 states, “Afler results of
the initial models were incorporated into the analysis of the downstream witnesses,
errors were discovered in the calculations of the Parcel Post, Bound Printed
Matter, and Media/Library Mail cost estimates.”

b. Please refer to USPS-LR-1-41, workbook "R2006 USPS-LR-L-

41 BPM.xls,” sheet “Inpuls.” ltems 12d, 12e, 13b, and 13c on this sheel
use cost figures from USPS-LR-L-46. Please update these figures with
data from USPS-LR-L-46, workbooks “"Bound Printed Matter REV xls,” and
“Parcel Post REV xls.”

C. Please refer to USPS-LR-L-41, workbook "R2006_USPS-LR-L-46_Media
and Library Spreadsheets xlIs,” sheet “Inputs.” items 9-11 use cost figures
from USPS-LR-L-46 Flease updale these figures with data from USPS-
LR-L-46, workbooks “Media — Library Mail REV .xls,” and “Parcel Post
REV xls.”

RESPONSE:

b. Please see altached spreadsheets, R2006 USPS-LR-L-41_BPM POIR3_18b.xls
for updated “Inputs” sheet The following table depicts the passthroughs as
proposed and the implied passthroughs that result from comparing the revised
costs lo the proposed rates The imphcit passthroughs are in most instances,
within a few percentage points of those filed' Using the implicit passthroughs, and

thereby maintaining the rates as proposed. is consistent with the objectives of the

rate design.

As Filed Implicit
Dropship passthroughs:
DSCF 85 0% 94.0%
DDU 80 0% 85.5%
Barcode passthroughs:
Single-Piece Parcels 100.0% 109.2%
Presort Parcels 100.0% 109.2%
Single-Piece Flats 100.0% 109.2%
Presort Fiats 100.0% 109.2%

! implicit passthroughs are the passthroughs that, if entered in the rate design
spreadsheets, along with Witness Miller's revised cost data, would generate the rates
as proposed.
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c. Please see altached spreadsheets, R2006_USPS-LR-L-41_Media and
Library POIR3 18c.xIs for updated “Inputs” sheet. The following table depicls the
passthroughs as proposed and the implied passthroughs that result from
comparing the revised costs 1o the proposed rates. The implicit passihroughs are
in mos! instances, within a few percenlage points of those filed’. Using the implicit
passthroughs, and thereby maintaining the rates as proposed, is consistent with

the objectives of the rate design.

As Filed Implicit

Presort passthroughs:
5-Digit 170.0% 180.0%
Basic 140.0% 134.8%

‘ The implicit passthroughs are the passthroughs that, if entered in the rate design
spreadsheets, along with Witness Miller's revised cosl data, would generate the rates
as proposed.
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RESPONSE OF POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS YEH TO
POIR NO. 4, QUESTION 19

19.  Please refer lo USPS-LR-L-41, workbook "R2006_USPS-LR-L-41 BPM
Spreadsheets,” sheet "Inpuls.” Items 15 and 16 show TYBR Fees as $1,154,329
and TYAR Fees as $1,383,000, respeclively. In contrast, USPS-T-39
workpapers (USPS-LR-L-123) show TYBR fees of $1,256,179 (WP-29, cell E64)
and TYAR fees of $1,495,483 (WP-30, cell E65). Please reconcile the foregoing
amounts.

RESPONSE:
Flease see POIR 4.2 19 attach.xIs, attached. It is my understianding that Witness
Berkeley is revising Bound Printed Matter fees. The “inputs” sheet has been updated

with revised fees from Witness Berkeley.
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RESPONSE OF POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS YEH TO
POIR NO. 4, QUESTION 20

20.  Please refer to USPS-LR-L-41, workbook "R2006 USPS-LR-L-41 Media and
Library Spreadsheels,” sheet “Inputs,” ltem 13 shows TYBR fees of $434,103 for
Media Mail and $47,473 for Library Mail. ltem 14 shows TYAR fees of $467,000
for Media Mail and $53,000 for Library Matil. In contrast, USPS-T-39 workpapers
(USPS-LR-L-123) show TYBR fees of $460,184 for Media Mail and $49,559 for
Library Mail (WP-29, cells G64 and H64), and TYAR fees to be $493,710 for
Media Mail and $54,663 for Library Mail (WP-30, cells G65 and H65). Please
reconcile the foregoing amounts.

RESPONSE:
Please see POIR.4.Q .20 altach.xls, altached. 1tis my understanding that Witness
Berkeley 15 revising Media Mall and Library Mail fees. The “Inputs” sheet has been

updated with revised fees from Witness Berkeley.
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RESPONSE OF POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS YEH TO
POIR NO. 4, QUESTION 23

23.  Please refer to USPS-LR-L-41, workbook “R2006 _USPS-LR-L-41_BPM
: Spreadsheels xls,” sheet “Revenue Leakages.” Column [D] shows the rate

difference per piece. Please confirm that in past rate cases, the rate differences
per piece were rounded to the nearest hundredth or thousandth o reflect the
actual rate difference used. Please make the necessary corrections or explain
why the rate differences per piece should not be rounded to reflect the actual rate
difference used.

RESPONSE:

Inspection of the Postal Service's workpapers from Docket No. R2001-1 confirms that

the rate differences per piece were rounded lo the nearest thousandth 1o reflect the

actual rate differences used The rate differences per piece, shown in the "“Revenue

Leakages” sheet, column [D], are preliminary rate elements. Rates are finalized by

making necessary mathematical adjustments to preliminary rate elements. In order to

avoid introducing potential rounding anomalies, preliminary rate elements are rounded

to more than two decimal places before the final rates stage.
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RESPONSE OF POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS YEH TO
POIR NO. 4, QUESTION 24

24, Please refer lo USPS-LR-L-41, workbook “R2006_USPS-LR-L-41_BPM
Spreadsheets xIs,” sheet "Pound and Piece Charges.” For the per pound
component each cost markup in column [F] is derived by adjusting the cost
coverage markup factor including contingency (125%) by some positive or
negative set amount. Please explain how the adjustments to the markup factor
were derived for each per pound charge, and the reasoning behind using each.

RESPONSE:

The adjustrents to the markup factor for each per pound charge were derived
Heratively to satisfy three rate design objeclives: generate sufficient contribution,
produce acceplable rate increases and maintain reasonable rate relationships. in most
cases. had no adjustments been made, lower zone rates (zones 1, 2, and 3) would
have seen unacceptably high rate increases. For Single-Piece and Non-Drop-shipped
Presort rales, | applied below average markups to fower zone rates. | then applied
above average markups to higher zone rates (zones 4 — 8) in order 1o recover revenue
o=t from the lower zones For Drop-shipped Presort rates, | applied below average
markups to DBMC rates o offset unacceptably high DBMC rate increases and above

average markups to DSCF and DDU rates to recover revenue lost from DBMC.
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RESPONSE OF-UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS YEH

TO PRESIDING OFFICER'S INFORMATION REQUEST (POIR) No. 5
2b The rate design for Bound Printed Matter (BPM) proposed by the Postal Service is
aiso inconsistent with the precedent established in Docket No. MC95-1. The proposed
presort differentials are based on unit mail processing attributable cost only, which is
consistent with past rate cases, but the flat-parcel differential is based on only
differences in unit attributable delivery cost. Similarly, Media Mail presort discounts are
based on differences only in unit attributable mail processing costs, ignoring unit
attnbutable delivery costs. In Docket No. R2001-1, the Postal Service acknowledged
that BPM shape-related cost differences could include mail processing cost differences,
adding that it would explore this possibility in future rate cases. (See Docket No.
R2001-1, USPS-T-33 at 30.) The Postal Service is requested to have its rate design
witness for BPM and Media Mail provide a rationale for departing from the MC-95-1
approach, or alternatively, to proviae revised rate design spreadsheets thal incorporate
unit attributable costs for both mait processing and delivery.

RESPONSE

My rate design approach for BPM and Media Mail is consistent with the Postal Service's
methodology in R2001-1. Estimates of ma processing cos! differences between BPM
flals and parcels were not available to me at the time | developed BPM rates. Inthe
spirit of recognizing that mail processing cost differences may be an additional cost
difference between BPM flats and parcels. ! propoesed to passthrough over 100 percent
of delivery cost differences for the BPM flal-parcel differential. Inspection of witness
Marc Smith's estimales of the mail processing cost differences between BPM flals and
parcels reveals thal a more than 100 percent passthrough for delivery-only BPM flat-
parcel differential was justified. The Poslal Service intends to examine the combined
delivery and mail processing cost differences more in depth and propose an appropriate
passthrough for use in future rate cases

Media Mait presort discounts are based on differences only in unit atiributable mail
processing coslts, not unit attributable delivery costs because it is my understanding that

data reflecting differences in unit attributable delivery costs among Media Maii are not
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS YEH
TO PRESIDING OFFICER'S INFORMATION REQUEST (POIR) No. 5

available, and there is little reason to expect delivery costs to vary by presort tier for

these pieces.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS YEH
TO PRESIDING OFFICER'S INFORMATION REQUEST NO. 5

9b USPS-LR-L-41, workbook “R2006 _USPS-LR-L-41_ Media and Library
Spreadsheets x1s," sheet “TYBR Per Unit Costs, " WP-MM-8, calculates the value of
leakage from 5-Digit Presort and Basic Presort in column [C] using cost savings from
the “inputs” sheet rather than the actual proposed discounts. Please provide the
rattonale for using unit savings rather than the aclual proposed discounts in the
calculation of their value for Media/Library Mail. Alternatively, please provide revised
workpapers showing the calculation based on aclual discounts.

RESPONSE

My approach to Media and Library Mail calculation of the value of leakages is consistent
with the Media and Library Mail rate design in R2001-1. Calculating the value of
teakages from 5-Digit Presort and Basic Presort using the cost savings from the “input”
sheet rather than the actual proposed discounts is equivalent 1o using a 100 percent
passthrough of the cost savings. This method helps reveal how much the passthrough

had to be adjusted in order to obtain the appropriate rate relationships.
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CHAIRMAN OMAS:

1986

I have provided two copiles

of the answers co the reporter and direct that it be

admitted into evidence and transcribed.

/7
//
/7
!/
//
/7
//
//
/7
//
/7
//
//
//
/7
//

(The documents referred to
were marked for
identification as Exhibit No.
PCIR 9, Question 3, and POIR
10, Question 5, and were

received 1in evidence.)
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RESPONSE OF POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS YEH
TO POIR NO. 9, QUESTION 3

3. The Postal Service proposes to change the eligibility for Single-Piece Bound
Printed Matter (BPM) by, among other things, restricting postage payment
options to either customer-generated postage meter or permit imprint.
USPS-T-38 at 6, n.2. Apart from any consideration of its merits, this proposal
represents a classification change. The Postal Service is requested to address
the statutory criteria set forth in section 3623 of the Postal Reorganization Actin
support of this proposal.

RESPONSE:

The Postal Service no longer intends to impose such restrictions. Please see the

revision to USPS-T-38, at 6, n.2.



RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS YEH TO PRESIDING
OFFICER'S INFORMATION REQUEST NO. 10

5 To develop a rate differential between flats and parcels for Bound Printed Matter
(BPM), witness Yeh (USPS-T-38) uses unit delivery costs from witness Miller (USPS-T-
21) that represent only cost segment 7. However, withess Kelley (USPS-T-30)
develops a unit delivery cost for BPM flats and parcels that reflects cost segments 6, 7,
and 10. Similarly, witness Kelley develops unit delivery costs for other subclasses of
mail which have been used by other rate design witnesses, e.g., witness Kiefer's rate
design for ECR subclass. Please provide the rationale for using witness Miller's unit
delivery cost rather than witness Kelley's.

RESPONSE

My approach in developing the proposed flat-parcel rate differential for BPM is
consistent with the Postal Service s methodology in Docket No. R2001-1. In that
docket, witness Eggleston explained that her flat-parcel cost differential estimates only
the difference in elemental load cost, which is a portion of cost segment 7. (Please see
page 24 of her testimony, USPS-T-25). To develop the proposed flat-parcel rate
differential for BPM, | relied on the cost differential estimated by witness Miller, which
also reflects a portion of cost segment 7 onfy. It is my understanding that withess
Keliey's estimate of unit delivery cost for BPM flats and parcels have not been used in
the development of the flat-parcel differential in previous rate cases. The Postal Service
intends toc examine witness Kelley's delivery costs to develop a passthrough for use in
future rate cases. Witness Kelley's unit delivery costs suggest a 28.8 cents flat-parcel
delivery cost difference. Given my rate design objectives, had | retied on witness
Kelley's costs, it 15 untikely that | wouid have proposed a 123% passthrough of the flat-

parcel cost differential.

1988
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CHAIRMAN OMAS: Is there any additional
written cross-examination for Witness Yeh?

(No response.)

MR. REITER: Mr. Chairman, I think the
witness would like to tell you the changes she has
made.

CHAIRMAN OMAS: Okay.

THE WITNESS: For the record, the changes I
made to interrogatory Amazon Question No. 10, there 1is
a typo there. The typographical error should read
Library Reference 31, not 42.

For interrogatory also for Amazon, Question
No. 8, the response to Part (b} should read on the
third line "in lines 4 to 7 on page 34 of his
testimony, Witness O'Hara stated."

Those are the only corrections.

CHAIRMAN OMAS: Are there any cbjections?

{No response.)

CHAIRMAN OMAS: Hearing none, they will be
included in the record. Thank you.

This brings us to c¢ral cross-examination.
Three parties have requested oral cross-examination:
Amazon.com, Inc., Mr. QOlson; Assoclation of Postal
Cemmerce and Mailing Fulfillment Services Association;
and the Office of the Consumer Advocate.

Heritage Repcrting Corporation
{(202) 628-4888
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Mr. Olson, for once you’re at the top of the
list. You may begin.

MR. OLSON: It’s nice to be on the A list.

CHAIRMAN OMAS: Excuse me. Before we
proceed, are there any additional -- I'm shocked to
see you at the top.

Is there any other participant who would
like to cross-examine Witness Yeh?

{(No regponse.)

CHAIRMAN OMAS: Mr, Olson?

MR. OLSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
William Olson representing Amazon.com.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. OLSON:

QO Ms. Yeh, I understand this is your first
time testifyving, so welcome to the Commission.

B, Thank you.

Q From the standpecint of the lawyers anyway.
We want to begin with your response to our Amazon 17,
Question 17.

A Yes?

0 Do you have that? We asked you there to
please provide any available data showing the
percentage of bound printed matter that consisted of
non-catalogs, e.g. books, and the percentage of BPM

Herirage Reporting Corporation
(202) 628-4888
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1991
that consisted of catalogs in base year 2005.

You sald that these data are not available,

correct?
A Correct.
Q Are there any avalilable data from which an

estimate can be made of the percentage of boocks or
catalogs in base year 20057

A Not to my knowledge.

Q Okay. Pricor to the fourth quarter of 1976,
going back into history, it’'s my understanding books
were not allowed to be sent in BPM, and that’'s
detailed in a nice piece of history by Mr. Thress at
page 186 of his testimony, which is USPS-T-7. 1Is that
consistent with your understanding?

A I'm sorry. I don’t have that document.

Q Well, I could show it to you, bhut the Key
peoint is that at a certain point there were no boocks
allowed in BPM. That’s consistent with your
understanding, correct?

A Right.

Q And then sgtarting in 1977, from our
research, books with advertising were allowed to be
sent at BPM rates, correct?

A I believe so.

Q And then in Docket R90-1, books without

Heritage Reporting Corporation
(202) 628-4888
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advertising were allowed to be sent at BPM, correct?

A Yes, I believe so.

Q Are you aware of any data on the percentage
of books or catalogs in BPM for any years prior to
20057?

A No, I'm not.

Q Are you aware of the testimony of Witness
Lyons in Docket R90-1? I happen to have it, but I can
just read you the operative part.

He testified that 37 percent of BPM

consisted of bocks. Is that something you’ve read

before?
A No.
Q Do you have any idea where that estimate

might have come from?

A No, I don‘t.

Q In Docket R2000-1 there was a witness,
Steven Siwek of the Association of American
Publishers, who argued that 63.7 percent of BPM volume

consisted of books. That's AAP-T-2, just for the

record.

A Mr. Olson; could you repeat the witness
name?

Q Yes. It’s S-I-W-E-K. It’'s at page 5 of his
testimony.

Heritage Reporting Corporation
(202) 628-4888
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He said according to the latest available

USPS Household Diaries study, 63.7 percent of BPM

consists of books. 1Is that something you’ve seen
before?

A I'm not familiar with that testimony.

Q OCkay. In the Postal Service’'s reply brief

in that case they took issue with that estimate, and
they said in the reply brief in R2000-1 at page V-33
that the 63.7 percent figure was for 1998 only.

They said that the same data show that from
1994 to 1998 as a whole the percentage of books and
BPM received by househcolds is just under 51 percent.
Then they talk about Witness Mayes referring to RPW
data saying that books were 52 percent.

Have you read that reply brief and this
discussion of the percentage of books that Witness
Mayes testified to?

A No. I'm unaware of that.

MR. OLSON: If counsel would like, I have
copies of all these.

BY MR. QLSON:

Q Let me see if I can find this. In his
testimony in this case, Witness O’'Hara at page 33
states, "Over a period of years, an increasing number
of books have been mailed as BPM."

Heritage Reporting Corporation
(202) 628-4888
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When Dr. O'Hara comes to the stand I’'1l]l ask
him about that, but for now let me just ask you if you
know if Witness O'Hara has access to any information
you don’t have about the percentage of books in BPM?

A Could you repeat that question?

Q Yes. Witness O’'Hara said over a period of
years an increasing number of books have been mailed
as BPM. I will ask him what he was referring to, but
I wanted to know if you knew if there was any data to
support his statement.

MR. REITER: Mr. Chairman, I don’'t see how
this witness can answer that question. She can
certainly answer what she has available to herself. I
don’t see how she can answer what counsel is asking.

MR. OLSON: I’'ll rephrase.

MR. REITER: He can ask Witness O’'Hara.

MR. OLSON: I'll rephrase.

CHAIRMAN OMAS: Thank you.

BY MR. OLSON:

Q Do you have any personal knowledge of any
information that anyone could use to make the
statement that over a period of years an increasing
number of books have been mailed as BPM?

A No.

Q Since the Postal Service wrote their reply

Heritage Reporting Corporation
{202) 628-4888
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brief in R2000-1 saying that the number was about 51
or 52 percent of books in BPM, do you believe the
trend could have increased it to a level of perhaps 80
percent or 90 percent?

A I have not looked intc this further.

Q Do you know whether the Commission has given
weight to the percentage of books within BPM in
setting the coverage for the subclass?

MR. REITER: Mr. Chairman, I think setting
the cost coverage is also within the scope of Witness
O’'Hara’s testimony, not this witness’.

MR. OLSON: T think rthat’'s true in the first
instance, but this is the pricing witness who uses
that number. If she doesn’t know, that’s fine.

CHAIRMAN OMAS: If the witness knows. Would
you answer, please?

THE WITNESS: Would Mr. Olson please repeat
the question?

MR. OLSON: Sure.

BY MR. OLSON:

Q I just want to know if you know if the
Commission has given weight to the percentage of books
within BPM as a factor in deciding the coverage for
BPM r tes?

A If I'm understanding, you’re asking if I

Heritage Reporting Corporation
(202) 628-4888
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know the Commission has given weight to --

Q Yes. Whether it's given weight to the --

A I can’t comment on what the Commission has
given weight to. What do you mean? Historically?

Q Yes. In their opinions and recommended
decisions where they discuss coverage of bound printed
matter, I'm asking you if you know whether they’ve
given weight to the percentage of books within BPM as
a factor that affects coverage.

A I do not know.

MR. QLSON: OQkay. Ms. Yeh, insocfar as there
is apparently some information at the Postal Service
about the percentage of books within BPM over time
that might be relevant.

Is that something that your counsel would
agree to allowing us to ask you to provide 1if it
happens to be available, something that we can make an
estimate of the percentage of books for this
particular docket?

I'm talking about base year 2005, but
whatever the most recent data is that you might have.

MR. REITER: The only thing that we’'re aware
of, Mr. Chairman, and I believe this was referenced in
one of the earlier citations that Mr. Olson read, is
the Household Diaries study which locks at mail that

Heritage Reporting Corporation
{202} 628-4888
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is received only by households. That information is
already on the record in this case as well.

MR. OLSON: Well, Mr. Chairman, the other
reference that the Postal Service made in their reply
brief in Docket R2000-1 was to testimony apparently of
Witness Mayes or cross-examination of her. I’'m sorry.

It says, "Review of the above-referenced
cross-examination of Witness Mayes revealed she was
referring to RPW data which indicated that books
comprised approximately 52 percent of the bound
printed matter subclass."

That's the Postal Service’s reply brief.
That must have been based on something, Witness Mayes’
testimony.

MR. REITER: I hope it was based on
something. We can look into that, Mr. Chairman, and
let you know.

CHAIRMAN OMAS: Mr. Reiter, I would
appreciate it, and I'm sure Mr. Olson would. If you
could provide that to us we’d be most appreciative.

MR. REITER: I will do so.

CHAIRMAN OMAS: Thank you.

MR. OLSON: Thank you.

BY MR. OLSON:

Q Let’s turn to a discussion of BPM unit

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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costs. I’'d like to begin with a discussion of a
response we got, an institutional response we got from
the Postal Service.
We originally directed the question to you.
It was Amazon/USPS-T-38-25(c) and (d). Do you happen

to have that with you?

A Could you give me cne second?
Q Sure.
{Pause.)
A Yes.
Q Okay. In that question, which the Postal

Service answered, it provided unit costs for bound
printed matter from the CRA from 198% to 2005. Does
that look correct to you?

A Correct.

MR. OLSON: Now, we made a cross-examination
exhibit which is very simple. It just toock those unit
costs and it plotted them.

If I can hand this out, Mr. Chairman?

THE WITNESS: Thank vyou.

CHATIRMAN OMAS: Mr. Olson?

MR. OLSCN: .es?

CHAIRMAN OMAS: Before you continue may I
ask the witness a question, please?

MR. OLSON: Certainly, sir.

Heritage Reporting Corporation
(202) 628-4888
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me.

Before designing rates, did you read any
previous PRC decisions?

THE WITNESS: Yes, I did.

CHATIRMAN OMAS: Well, you just stated a
while ago you were not aware of something that was in
a previous decision.

THE WITNESS: What I meant to say is I
wasn’'t aware of that particular issue Mr. Olson was
referring to.

CHATRMAN OMAS: All right. Thank you, Mr.
Olson. I apologize.

MR. OLSON: Yes, sir.

BY MR. OLSON:

Q Ms. Yeh, I'd like you to take a look at the
graphs that we plotted. Can you just take a brief
look at the data provided by the Postal Service in
their response institutionally to our interrogatory?

Can you see that we’ve plotted the unit
costs of bound printed matter from 1589 through 2005?

A I see the chart you’ve handed to me, yes.

Q And you can see, for example, the unit cost
in 1989 was .466 dollars, and it appears on here at

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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about 46 cents?

A There’s no specific number on the chart, but
I assume you’re right.

Q It’s a little bit more than half of the way
between 40 and 50, so I'm just asking you to confirm
that you see where the point is there. It looks like
it’s about the right spot?

A Yes, I see the dot there. Yes.

Q For example, in year 2002 the unit cost of
BPM was 91.7 cents. Do you see that plotted there
just over the 90 cent line?

A Yes, I see the point there.

Q Okay. So all we did was make a graph out of
the table provided from 1989 to 2005. While we were
at it, we made another chart which had to do with
year-to-year percentage changes in unit costs.

In other words, if the cost went up 20
percent one year it would show positive 20 percent.
If they went down 20 percent, it would show negative.
Do you see how this chart was designed to
show the annual percentage change in unit cost of BPM?

A Yes, I follow your explanation.

Q Okay. Now, the response we got from the
Pogtal Service, the institutional response we got from
the Postal Service says that, "It is worth noting that

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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observed changes in unit cost between FY 2004 and FY

2005 reflect not only actual changes in cost,

but also

the impact of changes resulting from IOCS redesign as

well." Do you see that part of the response?

a Yeg, I do.

Q Okay. Do you know 1if there are any other

changes in costing methodology that occurred during

this period which could affect the unit cost of BPM in

a significant way?

MR. REITER: Mr.

pricing witness and is not an expert on costing.

Chairman, Ms. Yeh is

the

If Mr. Olson wants to ask a guestion about

pricing in light of these costs that would be fine,

but I don‘t believe that’'s what he’'s asked.

MR. OLSON: Okay.

I'11 withdraw that.

CHATIRMAN OMAS:

MR. OLSON: Yes.

Thank you.

T think that’s fair.

Let me ask you to take a

look at the first document we gave you, the one

labeled BPM Unit Costs.

Just for clarity, I‘m going to ask we

designate that as Amazon-XE-1 and the other one

Amazon-XxE-2 as cross-examination exhibits.

that’s

XE-1 is the one that says BPM Unit Costs,

the line graph, and XE-2 is BPM Unit Cost Percentage

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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Change, the bar graph, ockay?
(The documents referred to
were marked for
identification as Exhibit
Nos. Amazon-XE-1 and Amazon
XE-2.)
BY MR. OLSON:

Q If you take a look at XE-1, the unit cost
line graph, would you say that the year-to-year
percentage changes are fairly uniform?

A You want me to describe the unit costs,

whether it’'s fairly uniform, based on your graph?

Q Yes.
A I would have to compare it to something
else. I can't say for sure whether this is uniform

compared to --

CHAIRMAN OMAS: Ms. Yeh, excuse me. Your
answers, we hear you over the mic, but they’'re a
little soft. Could you just speak with a little more
force, please?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

CHAIRMAN OMAS: Thank you.

BY MR. OLSON:

Q It is fair to say that the lowest unit cost

on here I believe is 46.6 cents and the highest is
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91.7 cents. Would that be correct according to the
chart that’s appended?
A Are you referring to the points

corresponding to 1989 and 20027

Q Yes.
A And your gquestion was?
Q My question was that unit costs for BPM

varied from a low of 46.6 to a high of 91.7 cents,
correct, over that period?

A Yes, it seems so.

Q Okay. In some years there are sharp
percentage increases in unit costs, and other years
there are substantial declines in unit costs. Isn’t
that true?

A And by substantial meaning? I can'’'t comment
on the costs.

Q Well, a percentage. Let’'s take the bar
graph, XE-2. In 1993, the unit cost for BPM went down
20 percent. 1I’d call that substantial. Let's
stipulate that 20 percent is substantial.

Do you see that at least in one year it was
a 20 percent decrease?

A Yes, I see it in the graph. Yes.

Q Okay. And in 1996 the increase was over 30
percent. Do you see that?
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A Yes, I do.

Q Okay. Wouldn’'t you call those sharp
percentage increases and decreases?

MR. REITER: Mr. Chairman, I think we can
all observe the chart. I was hoping that Mr. Clson
was moving on to actual pricing gquestions, but he
continues to ask the witness to comment on the changes
in cost.

MR. OLSON: Mr. Chairman, the witness has
testified in her responses to at least three
interrogatories, and I’'1l1 lay this as a predicate to
the question, that you have done an evaluation of cost
changes of BPM in doing your pricing.

BY MR. OLSOCN:

Q Do you recall using those words, or would
you like me to direct you to those interrogatories?

A Could you direct me to those
interrogatories, please?

Q Sure. One would be 21{(c). Let me ask you
this first. Did you make an evaluation of cost
changes for BPM in setting prices?

A Yes, I did.

Q Okay. That’s all I'm trying to establish.
You looked at trends in BPM costs over years before
you set your prices?
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A I have locked at them.

o And considered that as a factor?

A I am not an expert on costing.

Q No. I understand. I'm not asking you to be

an expert on costing. I'm just trying to look at it
from the standpoint of what you called your evaluation
of cost changes and ask you to draw some conclusions
from the costs that you had in front of you as you
were making pricing decisions.

Let me just ask this. Are you saying that
when you made your evaluation of cost changes you were
looking at just say the change from the last case and
not historic costs?

A I locked at the cost changes.

Q Including changes like the ones we’'re
loocking at here today?

y:\ Yes. I’ve seen the costs provided in the
response to 25.

Q And when you locked at those did you
question the accuracy of costs that had such sharp
increases and decreases in a given yeaxr?

A Do you mean did I wonder why? The cost data
was supplied to me by the costing experts.

Q And therefore whatever they give you you
work with and that’s the end of it?

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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A My opinion as to whether they are
substantial or not does not play into my decision in
choosing rates necessarily.

Q If you had examined these cost data as you
say you had and drawn a conclusion that there was a
problem with the costing data, would that affect you
in pricing decisions?

A Can you repeat that, please?

Q Yes. You say you examined these very data
about unit cost changes over time, and I'm asking you
if you were to examine them and conclude that there
was a problem with BPM costing would that affect you
at all in how you set prices?

A I think that’'s kind of general when you say
there’s a problem with the costing. As I said, I'm
not a costing expert and I’'m provided with cost data
so I can’'t comment as to whether there’s a problem
with the costing.

Q Let me just ask this last question. Did the
wide swings that we’ve been discussing in unit costs
over this period of time instill confidence in you in
the validity of the costs that you were given
admittedly?

A Yes, I am confident in the cost data I was
given based on the fact that they are the only ones
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available to me.
MR. QLSON: Ckay. Mr. Chairman, while we're
here could I ask that the two cross-examination
exhibits be transcribed in the record at this time?
CHAIRMAN OMAS: Without objection. So
ordered.
(The documents referred to,
previously identified as
Exhibit Nos. Amazon-XE-1 and
Amazon-XE-2, were received in
evidence.)
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BY MR. OLSON:

Q Could I ask you to go to Interrogatory 14,
Amazon 147

A Yes.

Q Okay. And there the gquestion asks you for
the average rate increase for all basic presort BPM
entered at a DBMC, and you sald that you were unable
to calculate it because test year after rates revenue

was not separately calculated by presort level,

correct?
A Correct.
Q Let me ask you this. Do you have volume Dby

presort level?

A Yes.

Q Do you have the volume broken down by weight
and zone?

A Could you specify which volume? Volume of

what by weight and =zone?

Q Basic presort bound printed matter entered
at DBMCs.

A Not in my workpaper, no.

Q Do you know 1f that information is collected

and if it exists?
A If I may have a second to check on
something?
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Q Sure.
{Pause.)
A It may exist, but I don‘t have it in my
workpaper.
Q So when we asked you to calculate an average

rate increase you said you could take test year after
rates revenues and divide by volumes, correct?

A Correct.

Q And you then say you can’t do that because
you don’t have test year after rates revenues,
correct, but you said you do have the volume that you
could use?

A Correct.

Q Okay. Do you know if you are given costs at

that level of detail for BPM?

A I'm not sure. I don’t know.

Q You don't know if they gave you that cost
data?

A If they gave me cost at that detail? No,

they haven’t.

Q So I guess you’ve not able to take, for
example, basic presort BPM entered at DBMCs and
calculate the unit contribution under your rates?

A I have not done so, no.

Q Well, if you don’'t have the costs you can’t
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calculate unit contribution, correct?

A That’'s right.

Q Do you have an opinion as to whether the
coverage of basic presort BPM entered at DBMCs is
about the subclass average target coverage of 125?
For BPM I think 125 is the coverage, correct?

y:\ Correct.

Q Do you think that the coverage for this
subset of BPM is about 125, if you know?

A I don't know. I haven’'t locked into it.

Q Could you look at your response to our
Interrogatory 157

A Yes.

Q There we asked about carrier route presort
BPM, correct?

a Correct.

0 And you gave us basically the same response.
Would the series of questiocns I've just asked you get
the same answers? In other words, you don’t have the
total revenues for carrier route BPM, correct?
Correct.

But you do have volumes, correct?
Correct.

And you don’t have the costs?

o0 o 0 p

Correct.
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(202} 628-4888



10

11

12

13

14

i5

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

2013

Q Okay. So you can’'t calculate the coverage
of that component of BPM, carrier route presort?

A Correct. The cost coverage is calculated on
the total BPM.

Q Do you think i1t’'s important to know the
implicit coverage on different components of BPM, or
are you satisfied that on average 125 is the coverage
for all BPM?

A Am I personally satisfied?

Q Well, as the pricing witness for the Postal
Service in the case making recommendations to the
Commission about rates, does it matter 1if say scme BPM
had a coverage of 250 and some had a coverage of a
negative contribution, of 80 percent let’'s say of
their costs? Would that matter?

A The cost coverage is provided to me by
Witness Don O’Hara. That applies to the entire BPM.

I evaluated the rate changes based on the cost data
given to me and Witness O’Hara’'s cost coverage.

Q Well, what you’ve already said I think is
that you didn’t have cost data detailed sufficiently
to be able to calculate contribution from even this
big component of BPM known as carrier route presort
BPM, correct?

A Correct.
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o So you don’t really know, I think you have
said, what the implicit coverage is of that component

of BPM or any other specific component of BPM,

correct?
y:y Correct.
Q You just know on average 1it’s 125 percent

for all BPM?

A Right, and this is consistent with previous
dockets.
Q What I‘m trying Lo dget at is as a pricing

witness deces it concern you that you have no way to
know whether some of the product lines within BEFM such
as carrier routes presort BPM could be under your

pricing priced under cost or substantially over cost?

A Aand you‘re asking if it mattered to me?
Q Yes.
A It concerns me, but for the purpose of the

rate design I did not have those cost data in detail.
Hence, I'm not able to calculate the implicit cost
coverage.

Q Did you ask for that information from the
costing witnesses?

A It was my understanding it’s not available.

Q If you could look at the next interrogatory,
16, just to have the record, but to do this quickly?
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We ask there about carrier route presort BPM entered
at DBEMCs.
We would have the same exchange of
information, would we not, if I asked you all the
questions about carrier route presort BPM entered at

DBMCs as we just did for the other couple of

subcategories?

A Yes.

Q Okay. Could you look at your testimony on
page 7°7?

A Yes. I'm on page 7.

Q There you say in lines 7 and 8,

"Consequently, non-presort BPM’es volume share has
qu P

gradually shrunk, and in 2005 it was less than five

percent of total volume," correct?
A Correct. That’s what it says.
Q Non-presort is what’'s now called single

piece BPM, correct?

A Correct.

Q And you’'re preoposing to change the name?
A Yes.

Q Qkay. There are three big components of

BPM, are there not? There’s single piece, which ycu
now call non-presort, there’s basic presort and
carrier route presort, correct?
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A Correct.

Q Okay. So carrier route presort or basic
presort and carrier route presort are 95 percent of
the volume of BPM, correct?

A Correct.

Q And for those two presort categories that
have 95 percent of the volume, we don’'t know the
revenues, the costs or the coverage, correct?

A We do, but we den‘t have it at the detail
that your questions asked for.

Q Well, do you have it for all? I mean, our
question was --

A Yes. You would be able to calculate for all
presort, the combined basic presort and carrier route
presort, if you refer to my workpaper in the billing
determinants area.

Q Okay. Let’s take it first the other way.
Can you look at basic presort separately and come up
with revenues, costs and contributions?

A You cannot come up with revenue per piece

for basic presort separately.

Q Or costs or contributions?
A Not that I'm aware of.
Q Okay. And for carrier route bound printed

matter you can’'t come up with revenues, costs or
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contributions, correct?

A Correct.

Q But when you put them together, the two
presorted components of BPM, there the data is in your
workpapers? Is that what you’'re saying?

A The data to calculate revenue per piece for
the combined presorted is in my workbook, yes. T
didn’t do those calculations, but you can take the
data in the workbook to do it.

Q If you didn’'t do those calculations, do you
have an opinion that the rates that you’ve designed
and are proposing for BPM for the two presort
categories are cost-based?

A They’'re not solely cost-based, but cost is

an element that I looked into, ves.

0 Within the confines of what costs are
available?

A Correct.

Q Let me ask you some questions about media

mail. What I understand is that you’re proposing
three rate categories for media mail and library mail
that are comparable. There’'s single piece and there’'s
basic presort and five-digit presort. Is that
correct?

A Correct.
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Q Ckay. Let’'s take single piece media mail.
For single piece media mail did you examine the
revenues from your proposed rates?

A Are you referring to a specific
interrogatory that discussed this question?

Q No. No. I'm just trying to get at how you
went about recommending the rates that appear in your
testimony, as well as 1n Rate Schedule 523 and 524 for
library mail.

I'm wondering if you were able to isclate
single piece media mail in this question and estimate
revenues from what rates you’re proposing.

A 1f you turn to page 42 of my library
reference -- excuse me. Let me correct that.

If you would turn to WP-MM-14 of my media
and library spreadsheet, which happens to be page 187
The table is labeled Media Mail and Library Mail TYAR
Revenue Calculation.

Q One of the problems that occurs occasionally
is that sometimes the printouts don’'t -- we were just
discussing this before that the printouts and .pdf
don’t show up quite the same way as they do in the
Excel spreadsheets and such.

If you’'re looking at page 18, the heading on
the printout I have is for bound printed matter.
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A I'm referring to Workpaper Media Mail-14

Q I thought you said page 18 of your
workpapers. I’'m sorry. What page is it?

A It’'s page 18 of the media and library mail
workpapers.

Q Okay. If you could just go ahead while I

try to find that? You say the information is there?
A Correct.
Q So you know the single piece media mail

revenues, and they’'re in there?

A Yes.

Q And the same thing for library rates?

A Yes.

Q Okay. Now, as I understand it, media mail

and library rate have combined costs. They’'re not
separated, correct?

A Correct.

Q Loocking at, if you would, your response to
our Interrogatory 28, this interrogatory has to do
with medial mail. We asked you to provide a table
showing test year after rates allocated costs in a
format similar to that provided for Priority Mail
elsewhere in the case.

You said, "These data are not available
because costs are allocated by rate element, not by
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rate cell," correct?

A Yes.

Q When you say not by rate cell I think I know
what you mean, but when you say they’re allocated by
rate element do you mean that they’'re allocated to
single piece media mail and basic and five-digit? TIs
that what you mean?

A If you would turn to Workpaper Media Mail-10
titled Preliminary Rate Calculation of my media and
library mail spreadsheet? The costs are allocated by
the rate elements that are listed in the Cost/Rate
Element column.

Q Okay. Could you tell me what those are,

just for reference?

A Yes.

Q Because I can’‘t find the page --

A Do you want me to read through the entire
column?

Q Please.

A Okay. There’s the total cost per pound, the
total cost per piece, which is then used to calculate
the first pound total and the additional pound total.

0 Okay. So those are considered rate
elements, not rate cells, are you saying?

A Those are the costs that are allocated to
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those rate elements. Correct. Those are not rate
cells.

Q Are you able to state whether your single
piece media mail rates covered attributable costs?

CHAIRMAN OMAS: Excuse me, Mr. Clson. T
don’t think your mic is on.

MR. OLSON: I'm sorry. Something happened.

CHAIRMAN OMAS: Thank you.

THE WITNESS: Could you repeat that question
again?

BY MR. OLSON:

Q Sure. Are you able to say whether the
single piece media mail rates that you’ve proposed
cover attributable costs?

a I have not loocked further into that, but my
costs are derived from allocating them to the rate
elements as I had listed earlier. They do not include
specifically just single piece or just basic piece.

Q So you also wouldn’t be able to calculate

the coverage of gingle piece mail in media mail,

correct?
A Correct.
Q Okay. For basic presort would the answer be

the same?
A Yes.
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Q And for five-digit presort would the answer
be the same?

A Yes.

Q Could you look at your response to 28 one
more time? Strike that. I don’t need to ask that. I
think we’ve already covered it.

Let me ask you to look at your testimony on
page 13, please.

A Yes.

Q Lines 8 through 12 talk about the rate
structure of media mail changing in 1975, and this
begins on page 9.

The three-part structure that exists, 1is
that one rate for the first pound and a second rate
for pounds two through seven and a third rate for each
additional pound? Do you see that?

A Yes, I do.

Q In the existing rate structure do you know
what the rate is for pounds two through seven? I
looked it up. It’s 48 cents. Would you accept that?

A Okay.

Q Okay. And fur each additional pound over
seven, 34 cents. Does that sound about right?

A Uh-huh.

Q So the rates currently in effect for pounds
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two through seven are different than the rates that
are applicable to pounds over seven, correct?

A Correct.

Q Now if you can look at your response to our
Interrogatory 47

A Yes.

Q In {(a) starting in the second sentence you
say, "My proposed rates were proposed from a per piece
and per pound rate construction manifested in a three-
part structure that resulted in one rate for the first
pound, a separate lower rate fcr additional weight up

to seven pounds and the same lower rate for additional

weights over seven pounds," correct?
A Correct.
" Q So what 1is your proposed rate for pounds two

through seven?

A Thirty-eight cents.

Q All right. And what’'s your proposed rate
for pounds over the seventh pcund?

A Thirty-eight cents.

Q So in what sense does charging the same
identical pound rate for two through seven and over
seven conform with the precedent of having different
rates for those different pound ranges?

A I follow what you’re saying. My intention
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was not to deviate from the previous docket’s three-
part rate structure.

It so happens that when I adopted a
different mitigating strategy for the large first
pound rate increases in the five-digit and basic
presort rate it resulted in the second to seven pound
rate to be gimilar to the eight to 70 pound rate.

Q I guess what I'm saying 1s you're asserting
that you have not broken with precedent, that there 1is
still a three-part rate structure, the first pound,
pounds two through seven and pounds eight to 15.

I'm saying under that logic couldn’t you
have proposed a 38 cent rate for pound one, two,
three, four, five, six, seven, eight, nine, 10 and say
you had a 15 element rate structure?

If you don’'t have different rates, how can
you say you’re maintaining the existing rate structure
which has different rates?

A What I‘'m saying is that my intention is not
to deviate from the three-part rate structure, and it
doesn’t mean that in future rate cases there will be
no three-part rate structure.

I'm saying simply that my mitigating
strategy and given the factors of all the rate design
objectives it led me to these rates.
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Q Would you at least agree with me that your
38 cent recommendation for two through seven and over
seven, that there’s nothing that distinguishes that to
the mailer in terms of the prices that they pay? For
the mailer it’'s not a three-part rate structure. It's
a two-part rate structure.

A One can view it as that if they don’t know

the background, vyes.

Q Could you take a look at your Interrogatory
187

A Yes.

Q That's where we asked you about what Witness

Kiefer had done in R2000-1.

A Correct.

Q Isn‘t it true that he proposed different
rates for media mail for two through seven and eight
through 157

A Yes, he did.

Q And in part (b) of this question we asked
you did you congider following what Witness Kiefer
described as the Postal Service and Commission
practice of mitigating large first pound increases for
media mail and library mail, and you said yes, you
consilered 1it, correct?

A Correct.
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Q And you rejected it to avoid I think you
called them unacceptably large first pound rate cell
increases or something like that?

A Yes, that is my testimony. In Witness
Kiefer’'s R2001-1 testimony he also adopted a
mitigating strategy to mitigate the large first
pound -- the unacceptably large first pound rate
increases.

0 Okay. Let’s look at what we’re mitigating
here. Look at your response to No. 6. That’s one
place where you say, "My rate design attempts to
mitigate rate impact," as explained in response to NoO.
4, correct?

A Correct.

Q And there the question we asked you has to
do with one pound five-digit presort media mail, and
we asked you to confirm that your proposed rate
changes range from minus 5.3 percent to plus 44.4
percent and that that is a range of 49.7 percent. You
confirmed that, correct?

A Correct.

Q Did you give any consideration to a rate
design which would mitigate a 44 percent rate
increase?

A My rate design adopted the mitigating
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strateqgy that I saw best to mitigate those increases,
those increases just like cost increases.

Q Let’s look at what you said your objectives
were. You responded to POIR 4, Question 24, I

believe, correct?

A Correct.
0] Aand do you have that with you by chance?
A Yes. One second.
(Pause.)
A Yes.
Q Okay. In the first sentence there you say

the adjustments, the markup factor, for each pound
charge were derived iteratively to satisfy three rate
design objectives -- generate sufficient contribution,
produce acceptable rate increases and maintain
reasonable rate relationships.
Is that it? Are those your objectives in

your rate design for media mail?

A Yes, these are my rate design objectives.

Q I guess this question had to do with BPM,

but they apply to BPM, media mail, library mail?

A Yes.

Q Any other objectives?

A As I said, they summarize my objectives.

Q Okay. In response to 21(b) you say -- I'll
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let you get there. You say rate design must balance
numerous factors.

Am I to conclude then that the factors you
set out in response to the Presiding Officer’s inguiry
are the factors that you’re referencing there, the

numerous factors?

A Correct.

Q No other factors?

A They summarize the factors.

Q Go back to 24. You say twice that you want

to avoid unacceptably high rate increases. Do you see

that? It’'s in the fifth line and the next to the last

line.
A Do you mean Question 24 or 47
Q No. 24.
A Of the POIR?
Q Yes.
A aAnd which line were you referring to?
Q The fifth line uses the phrase "unacceptably

high rate increases," and the next to the last line

talks about "unacceptably high rate increases,"

correct?
A Correct.
Q In developing rates, how high in percentage

terms would a rate have to go to be unacceptably high?

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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A I believe you asked me that question too in

an interrogatory.

Q I remember the answer too.

A I didn't have a specific maximum acceptable
increase.

Q How about asking the guestion this way?

What criterion or criteria do you use to help you
decide whether something is unacceptably high?

A My evaluaticn of my proposed rates loocks at
the coverall results rather than just the specific rate
increase.

Q Well, you said to the Commission that one of
the reasons that you mitigated in the way you
mitigated was, in the next to the last line here, to
"offset unacceptably high DBMC rate increases."

A Correct.

Q So you do look at specific effects within
the product?

A Yes, I do lcok at the specific effects, but
I don’'t have a specific maximum increase.

Q I understand you don’'t have a specific
number you’‘d want to testify to, but a moment ago I
thought you had said you don’'t look at the effect on
specific products. You look at overall. I thought
that’s what you said.
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I said T don't just look at --
Just. I'm sorry.

-- specific effect on rate increases.

[ORE- N &

In your development of rates for BPM and for
media mail and library mail, do you use the same
methodology and criteria to identify unacceptably

large rate increases?

A I'm afraid that’'s a very general statement.
Q It’'s a gquestion.
A A guestion. You’re asking me if I have a

specific criteria that I follow?

Q Do you approach mitigating unacceptably high
rate increases the same in bound printed matter --

A It really depends on the --

Q Let me just finish the gquestion. Bound
printed matter, library mail and media mail.

A Do I have a specific criteria?

Q Do you approach it the same way? No, I
didn’t ask about criteria. Do you approach it the
same way?

A I would say so given the circumstances.

Q Would you lock at our Interrogatory 127
Now, this goes back to BPM rates. I just want to ask
you to confirm some things out of this series of
interrogatories.
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In Interrogatory 12, for single piece BPM
you propose percentage increases that range from 4.4

to 18.2 percent, and you confirm that, correct?

A I believe so.

Q And that's a range of 13.8 percent?

A Okay.

Q In the next interrogatory, 13, for basic

presort you propoese increases for BPM from 11.9 to
26.8 percent, and that’'s a range of 14.9 percent,
correct, just subject to check?

A Okay. Yes.

Q And in Interrogatory 14 for DBMC basic
presort they are in a range of 14.7 percent, your
increases, 8.3 and 23.0, correct?

A Correct.

Q And in the next interrogatory, 15, for

carrier route presort it‘s a range of 16.1 percent,

correct?
A Correct.
Q And in the next one, 16, for DBMC carrier

route presort it’s a range of 13.9 percent, correct?
A Correct.
Q Ckay. So in summary, for all the BPM
produ_ts when you did your pricing there the range of
increases were kept within a fairly small band from a
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low of 13.8 percent to a high of 16.1 percent,

correct?
A If those are the numbers, right. Correct.
Q Okay. But if you look at Amazon 6(b) you

confirm that your percentage lncreases in media mail
span a range of 49.7 percent, correct?

a Correct.

Q Can you explain to me why you avoided that
type of income in BPM, but in media mail vou found
rate increases from minus 5.3 percent up to positive

44 .4 percent to be acceptable?

A The two subclasses are different.
Q and how does that bear on what's acceptable?
A I have to look at them separately. The rate

increases or the range of rate increases should be
considered in context.

Q And how in this context does it cause you to
keep the range of increases for BPM to be between 13.8
and 16.1 percent and within media mail to be 49.7
percent?

A As I said, the range of increases resulted
from my proposed rates, but I can’'t compare that to
BPM because it has a different set of cost
characteristics and different cost data.

Q So you‘re saying the reason that you thought
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that the rate increases were acceptable within media
mail is that it had higher costs than --

A They resulted from the best mitigating
strategy that I used. Without my mitigating strategy
they would be even greater, I believe.

Q And you could not identify a mitigating
strategy for media mail that would have resulted in an
increase of less than 44.4 percent?

.\ I deem mine as the best mitigating strategy.

Q And when you say best do you mean that you
couldn’t have gotten the maximum rate increase below
44 .4 percent?

A During my rate design process I did not come
acrogs any strategy that I thought would yield better
results.

MR. OLSON: Thank you so much for answering
my questions.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

THE WITNESS: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN OMAS: Thank you, Mr. Olson.

Mr. Volner, would you please introduce
yourself and who you represent?

MR. VOLNER: Good morning, Mr. Chairman,
members of the Commission.

CROSS-EXAMINATION
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BY MR. VOLNER:

Q Ms. Yeh, my name is Ian Volner, and I will
be discussing with you your rate propesals for both
bound printed matter and media services on behalf of
the Association of Postal Commerce and the Mail
Fulfillment and Services Organization, MFSA and
PostCom or PostCom and MFSA.

A Good morning.

Q Good morning. If we could start with page 8
of your testimony? I have a few questions about some
comments that you made there.

At line 4 you start by saying that Witness
Mayes has provided you with the estimated

transportation costs per pound for bound printed

matter.
A Can you give me one second, please?
Q Sure.
A Is that page 87
Q Page 8, lines 4 through 6.
{Pause.)
A Correct. Okay. I'm there.

Q and then you say, and I'm quoting, "I
included the standard two cent per pound allowance for
weight-related non-transportation costs.”

Now, you’re the pricing witness. Where did
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that allowance comes from?

A Yes. I believe you asked an interrogatory
on that.
Q So it did not come from Witness Mayes?

Let's turn to PostCom-5. I'm not trying to trap you.
I'm just trying to find out whether --

A The first sentence there says Witness Mayes
has provided me with the estimated transportaticn
costs per pound by zone for both drop ship and non-
drop ship BPM.

That includes other cost data. The standard

two cents i1s just one cost sector, another cost.

Q it’'s separate and apart --
a Separate.
o] -- from the information that Witness Maves

provided you with?

¥ Right.

Q Okay. Good. Then I ask where did that
standard two cent per pound allowance for weight-

related non-transportation costs come from.

y: Correct. Yes, yocu asked that.

Q And?

A From R84.

0) It came directly from the decision in R847?
A Not just R84, but you asked me to identify
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the source. That was the earliest docket that I
identified it in. It was also used in R2001 and the
recommended decisions in the previous dockets.

Q It was advanced in the workpapers that were
prepared by the witnesses in 2001 and the dockets in
between 1984 and 2001. Is that correct?

A I believe that standard two cents has been
used in those dockets, yes.

Q You believe so? Okay. Did you apply the
standard two cent allowance the same way as it was
applied in 19847

A I didn’'t specifically look at R84, but I did
apply it the same way as in R2001-1.

Q Well, do you know whether it was adjusted to
reflect the difference between local and non-local
transportation costs?

A I'm not sure.

Q Okay. And the way you applied it you’re not
sure either?

A No. I did apply it according to the way
E2001-1 had.

Q When you say R2000-1 (sic) you’'re talking
about what the Commission did or what Witness Kiefer I
believe did?

A What Witness Kiefer did.

Heritage Reporting Corporation
(202) 628-4888



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

2037

Q Okay. Have there been changes in the rate
design in bulk bound printed matter since 1584 when
this two cent allowance was created?

A Yes.

Q For example, there is now a machinability
factor, and there is alse drop entry which did not
exist in 1984.

A Correct.

Q Did you, in examining Witness Kiefer’s
workpapers, see whether he had applied it in 2001 in
the same way or whether he had changed the way it was
applied because of the changes in the construct not
just of bound printed matter, but also of parcel post,
which is where this whole allowance comes from,
doesn’t it?

A It is my understanding that he applied it in
the same way, but I will need to verify that.

Q Okay. Let’s leave that the way it is for
the moment.

Let me take this in a slightly different way
and a little bit out of order. Turn to page 16 of
your testimony, please. We're now in the media
services/library rate, but in discussing --

T Give me one second, please.

Q Sure.
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(Pause. )
A Okay.
Q You said that you there again applied the

customary two cent per pound add-on for weight-related

non-transportation cost to the total number of postage

pounds. Is that correct?
A Are you referring to lines 13 through 157
Q Yes.
A Yes.
0 And again that in your view is consistent

with what Witness Kiefer did in his testimony in 20017

A I believe so.

Q Now, if I am correct, and I can, if you
would prefer, read you from the 1984 decision, but
will you accept subject to check that it wasn’t
actually two cents across the board; it was two cents
based upon distance?

How do you do that in a subclass like media
services which is by statute arguably distance
insensitive? The rates do not vary by distance.

A Could you repeat that guestion?

Q Well, let me try it this way. We do agree
that media services rates are distance insensitive?

A They're required by law to be. Correct.

0 So they’'re therefore distance insensitive.
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Do you have by any category in media services in your
workpapers the average distance to which different
types of media services mail is transported?

A No, I don‘'t. The rates, according to you in
your terms, are distance insensitive does not -- my
opinion does not mean the costs are distance
ingensitive.

Q I certainly agree with you, but that’'s
precisely the point. If you don’'t have the data as to
how the mail is transported by separate subset and you
have a graduated allowance that is based upon local
transportation, long-haul transportation and so forth,
how do you apply this allowance®

A It is my understanding that we did not have
-- the information on the weight-related non-
transportation costs is not available, and the two
cents was applied to recognize that there is cost
there.

Q That helps. Now let’s go back to page 8 for
a moment, please. On page 8 you also talk about
another factor at lines 14 through 16 in discussing
how you derive the pilece component, and we’'re back in
bound printed matter.

"I apportioned these non-weight-related
costs between non-presort and presorted costs,
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employing the two to one ratioc for non-presorted
pieces to presort unit non-transportation costs used
by the Commission and the Postal Service in all recent
rate cases."

When you say used by the Postal Service, I
assume that that means Witness Kiefer used it in 20017

A Yes, he did.

Q Do you know whether it was used in the
preparation or the testimony for 2002, which was not a
litigated case?

A I don't know.

Q Do you know whether the twe cent allowance
was used in 2002, which was again not a litigated
case?

MR. REITER: Which case, Mr. Volner?

THE WITNESS: R2002.

MR. VOLNER: R2002, the last settled case.

MR. REITER: 20057

MR. VOLNER: I'm sorry. 2005. TI’'ve got my
numbers wrong.

CHAIRMAN CMAS: Mr. Reiter, vyour mic is not
on either.

THE WITNESS: I‘m not aware that it was used
in R2005-1.

BY MR. VOLNER:
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Q Okay. Let’s go back for a moment to page
16. There's no mention on page 16 of this two to one
ratio. Is that just an oversight, or did the two to
one ratio not factor into the development of media
services?

A I will have to double check with my
spreadsheets formula to correctly answer that.

MR. VOLNER: Rather than take the time
during the hearing, Mr. Chairman, if counsel does not
object, 1f counsel would prefer we can do a follow-up
written interrogatory to deal with this.

MR. REITER: We can also, if there’s a break
at some point, take a look at that and see 1f we can
provide an answer to Mr. Volner’s question. If not,
we can provide that in writing later.

CHAIRMAN OMAS: Thank you, Mr. Reiter.

MR. VOLNER: Thank you. Mr. Chairman. Thank
you, counsel.

BY MR. VOLNER:

Q Let’s turn now to PostCom-1. I have a few
questions -- it’s still in bound printed matter --
about the fabled parcel flat differential.

Let’s start by saying that am I correct that
you have proposed to pass through the putative cost
difference between flats and parcels by 123 percent of
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the rost difference?

A Could you repeat what cost difference you
said?

Q The parcel flat differential that appears in
the bound printed matter rates.

A Correct.

Q And your proposed pass-through was 123
percent of the cost difference?

A It was a pass-through of 123 percent of the
delivery cost difference provided to me by Witness
Miller.

Q Excellent. A couple questions about
parcels. In response to PostCom-1 you say that there
are only two shapes in bound printed matter because
irreqular parcels are treated as a subset of parcels.
Is that correct?

A Correct.

Q So you’'re saying that the irregular parcels

are not priced separately in bound printed matter?

A There's no price category just for irreqular
parcels.
Q Do you know whether they were costed

separately when the costing witnesses provided you
with the data?
A It was not provided to me.
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Q Okay. So what we're dealing with is
parcels, which includes the regular parcels, and
flats.
Now let’s talk about flats for a moment.
When you were using the term flats in developing your
rates, you were using the DMM definition of a bound

printed matter flat?

A Yes.
Q Now, there are actually two or arguably
two -- or are there two -- different bound printed

matter flats in your judgment, two different types?

A My definiticn of the bound printed matter
flats is based on the one in DMM.

Q Which is a machineable flat?

A Which is anything over a quarter inch and
less than three-guarter inch and the other criteria as
well. I don’t remember all of them.

Q All right. Maximum weight is 20 ounces. Is
that right?

A Right.

Q Okay. So it has to be less than three-
quarters of an inch?

A Correct.

- And will you accept subject to check, with
my addition, the definition you just gave us is a
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piece that is AFSM 1000 automation compatible?

A I believe so.

Q Okay. Good. Aall right. We’re not going
where we went the other day, so don’t get nervous
about this. I'm not looking for heoles. I am locking
to understand categories.

Let’'s take a piece that is less than three-
quarters of an inch thick, otherwise meets the
definitions of a AFSM 100, but 1s greater than 20
ounces. Is that in your development of rate revenues
treated as a parcel?

A My rates for flats are specifically for the
flats of BPM as defined in the DMM. I'm not sure.

I'm not following your questiomn.

Q S0 a piece that meets the shape but does not
meet the weight of a DMM machineable parcel, because
that’s the only thing the DMM defines in terms of BPM.
Accept that subject to check.

Well, instead of stating it let me try to
put it in a question. Will you accept subject to
check that the only DMM definition of a BPM flat is
that it meet the AFSM external criteria and that it
not exceed 20 ounces?

A I'1l accept that subject to check.

Q So now I have a piece that meets the
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external dimensions of an AFSM flat, but it’'s more
than 20 ounces. How is it treated for your rate
making revenue purposes? Is it treated as an
irregular parcel?

A If it meets all the other requirements and
eligibility of BPM. I would have to look into the DMM
on that.

Q Well, in developing your workpapers didn’t

you look at this question?

A Your specific question regarding irregular
parcels?
Q Yes, the specific question regarding

irregular parcels. We asked you to confirm that there
were three categories. You said no, there are only
two because irregular parcels are a subset of parcels.
Now I'm trying to understand i1f there are some other
pieces floating around here.

A But I didn’t have any information on the
volume of irregular parcels so for the purposes of my
rate design, which does not have a rate category for
irregular parcels, I did not look into how irregular
parcels --

Q You do have a rate difference between
parcels and flats, don’t you?

A A great difference?
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Q A rate.

A A rate difference, vyes.

Q Of about how much in dollar terms?

A 15.6 cents.

Q Well, then it becomes important, doesn’t it,

in determining whether you’re going to achieve the
revenue or perhaps overachieve the revenue target or
the coverage target to Xnow how some pieces are going
to be classifijed, doesn’'t it?

A I agree with you it’s important, but, as I
said, that data is not available.

Q I'm not talking about irregular parcels
anymore. I'm talking specifically about a piece that
is rectangular and that weighs more than 20 ounces.

MR. REITER: Mr. Chairman, could I? I am
losing your train, and so I wouldn’t mind if counsel
would repeat the question.

I would also throw out that the pricing
witness doesn’t do the classification of the pieces.
She’s already indicated she’s aware of that issue, but
if Mr. Volner could zero in on what she did that would
be helpful.

MR. VOLNER: I think, counsel, last time it
was a fair one. Let me try a slightly different
guestion.
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BY MR. VOLNER:

Q In the development of your rates you were
given costs by two categories basically. Is that
correct?

A If you are referring to the flat parcel
differential I was given a single delivery cost number
from Witness Miller that reflects the flat parcel cost
difference.

Q But were you given by somebody, whether it
was Mr. Miller or otherwise, a test year before rate
volume of parcels and flats?

A Not separately. Not separated like that,
no.

Q Wwell, then who did separate them into
parcels and flats? You?

A Based on my opinions and my workpapers. The
allocation of flats and parcels are derived from that.

Q The billing determinants is what derived the
difference between parcels and flats that you used in
developing the rates?

A It is the method I used to allocate, right,
the flats and parcels.

Q Okay. So that if I were to look at the
billing determinants for 2005 I presumably would find
a certain number of pieces that were rated as parcels
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and a certain number of pieces that were rated as
flats, and you didn’t goc any further than that?

A Correct.
Q Okay. Good. Let’'s go back to PostCom-1 for
one second.

On the second page of that you point out
that you had inspected, presumably after you had
prepared your rates, Witness Smith’s estimation of
mail processing costs for bound printed matter flats
and his mail processing costs for bound printed matter
parcels, and you said that in light of that your flat
parcel differential of 123 percent is modest.

Is that the source of your conclusion that

his characterization of parcels includes irregular

parcels?
A I do not know what his costs reflect.
Q Okay. So you don’t know whether those costs

include or exclude parcels, and you don’t know where
the kind of odd little piece that I just came up with
would fit into this scenario?

A As I wrote in my response, I see that he had
a cost for BPM flats and BPM parcels. I do not know
if it says irregqular or --

Q Okay. Excellent. Could you turn to
PogtCom-3 for a moment?
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A Yes.

o] We were talking about the drop ship savings,
and you say, "It is my understanding that Witness
Miller’'s unit cost savings for drop shipped bound
printed matter reflect the avcided cost of drop
entered parcels.”

A Correct.

Q We and indeed Amazon asked you in a number
of questions whether you were given averaée weight of
parcels versus average weight of a flat cube or
density, and in Item {(b) you said, "These data are not
available."

Did you mean not available to you or that
the Postal Service doesn’t have them?

A They’'re not available to me, and I’'m not
sure if the Postal Service has them somewhere.

Q Well, if the Postal Service had them
somewhere who would be the witness who would have had
them? Do you know?

A No, I don't know.

MR. VOLNER: Okay. Counsel, I'm going to
ask you to try to -- if you don’t mind, Mr. Chairman
-- identify the witness who had that data. T mean, it
may Lk . Witness Miller. In that case that’s fine.

BY MR. VOLNER:
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Q What has me puzzled is this, and let me
state it explicitly or ask a question about it.

You say that the unit cost savings estimate
for drop shipped bound printed matter reflect the
avolided cost of drop entered parcels, not the
combination of parcels and flats. That’'s your answer
to our interrcgatory.

What I'm trying to understand is how anybody
could have calculated the avoided cost of drop entered
parcels without having information concerning the
average welight, the density and the distance
transported.

If it becomes necessary to simply correct
this answer that’s fine with me too. I just need to
understand what the basis of this answer is. To be
fair to the witness, she begins by saying, "It is my
understanding that...”

MR. REITER: Which answer are you looking at
now, Mr. Volner?

MR. VOLNER: PostCom-3(a).

MR. REITER: Okay. 1 see it.

MR. VOLNER: 1It’'s (a), (b), and we’ll deal
wicth {c) at a later moment.

MR. REITER: All right.

BY MR. VOLNER:
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Q Let’s speculate for a few moments about this
business of average weights.

CHAIRMAN OMAS: Excuse me. What was the
decision? Will they supply you with what you just
asked forz

Mr. Reiter?

MR. REITER: If you ask me to, I will
certainly try.

CHATIRMAN OMAS: Would you please supply that
answer for the record for Mr. Volner?

MR. VOLNER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

MR. REITER: We shall, Mr. Chairman.

MR. VOLNER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

BY MR. VOLNER:

Q In developing your rates, did you kind of
think that the average weight of a parcel and the

average weight of a flat would be about the same?

A I didn’t think about that.
Q At all®?
A Not in those terms, no. The average weight

of flats being the same as the average weight of a
parcel? I didn’t think of that.

0 In what terms did you think about the
difference between parcel and flats other than the
difference in delivery time?
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have different cost characteristics.

Q They also might have different revenue
characteristics, might they not? Is the pound rate

for flats and parcels the same under your rate

proposal?

A I want to direct you to my workpaper.

Q Sure. Let’s try it a slightly different
way .

Let me direct you tc 522B of your rate
proposal. At the top of that schedule you have a
heading called Proposed Rates for flats.
A I'm sorry. Could you repeat what page
you’re on, what document?

0 I'm in Attachment A to the rate request,

2052

Page 60 of 82, Rate Schedule 522B. That’s the bound

printed matter --
A Proposed rates.
Q -- proposed rates. Well, current and

proposed rates.

A Okay. I don't have that document in front

of me.

MR. VOLNER: If counsel doesn‘t object, T
can I think make this easy.

MR. REITER: I have no objection to your
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making it easy, Mr. Volner.
THE WITNESS: Yes, I =see that.

BY MR. VOLNER:

Q And the proposal?
A Uh-huh. The per pound rate.
Q So that the record is clear on this

exchange, what I just showed the witness 1is the
proposed rate schedule that was a part of the Postal
Service’s attachment, and we looked at both current
and proposed rates arbitrarily for Zone 6. It didn't
matter.

What we agreed is that the current pound
rate for flats is 26 cents and the current pound rate
for parcels is 26.1 cents to be technically accurate
and that the proposed rate for flats at that Zone 6 1s
.322 and for parcels is .322.

We have I think arrived at the place where
we agree that the pound rate, both current and
proposed, for both flats and parcels is the same?

A Yes.

Q Now, indulge me in the following not-so-
hypothetical that the average weight of a parcel is
three pounds, and indeed the maximum weight of a flat
is 20 ounces. Which of the two pleces is going to
produce more revenue for the Postal Service
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A You’'re saying based on your example parcels
the costs -- are you saying holding everything
constant? You aren’t saying if there was an enriched
revenue it would produce more?

Q Yes, that’s exactly what I'm asking you. I
understand that the costs are not the same, and the
costs may vary to some extent by weight.

A So we don’t look at costs; just purely
revenue, based on your example?

Q In the mail processing category, which is
what we’'re soon to be focusing on here, to what extent
did the data you were provided show that parcels vary
by weight in the same measure that the revenues you
have calculated increase the revenues by weight?

a I'm sorry. I don’'t follow what your
question is.

Q Let’s go back to PostCom-1 and your
reference to the number from Witness Smith.

A Correct.

Q The mail processing cost for a flat is 23.7
and for a parcel, according to Witness Smith and
according to you according to Witness Smith, is 62.8.

That is based upon some characteristic, a
cost causative characteristic, of those two different
pieces, isn’t it?
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A I'm not Witness Smith. I did not know the
details of that cost number.

Q But you say that that is what leads you to
conclude that 123 percent is reasonable?

A It led me to conclude that 123 percent is
modest because --

Q All right. Modest. But in reaching that
conclusion that it’s modest you gave no consideration
-- indeed you couldn’t, could you -- to the difference
in average revenue per piece between these two
categories?

A I've given consideration to the fact that
there are costs, including unit processing costs and
other delivery costs, that were not available to me.

My 123 percent pass-through is solely based
on Witness Miller’s Cost Segment 7 delivery cost. To
recognize that there are other costs, I pass through
over 100 percent.

Q And in recognizing that there are

differences in costs you do not recognize that there

are differences in revenues. Is that a fair
statement?
A I'm not sure. What do you mean by

diffe _ences in revenues? It really depends on the
context.

Heritage Reporting Corporation
(202) £28-4888



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

2056

Q Well, if the average weight of a flat is
half that of the average weight of a parcel, will the
revenues of the two be the same?

A I suppose not.

Q Okay. That I think finishes this line.
Let’s go to PostCom-3 again, and now let’s take a look
at Part {c).

I think we’ve agreed you don’t have the cube
by shape. You don’t have the density by shape. You
don’t have the weight by shape. You did say that the
DBMC drop entry rate was set to avoid 100 percent?

Was set at 100 percent of avoided cost?

A I'm sorry. Could you repeat that?

Q The guestion is what percentage cf the
avoided cost did you pass through in establishing the

DBMC drop entry rate?

A For BPM, right?

Q Yes.

A I believe it was 100 percent,

Q Okay. Let me ask a guestion. Did you

attempt to do any calculations to figure out what the
avoided cost pass-through for parcels and flats would
be had they been calculated separately?

A I didn‘'t do such a calculation.

Q Okay. What did you mean when you said in
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response to Item (¢) that the pass-throughs were
exogenously chosen? Unrelated to cost? What does the
phrase mean?

A The pass-through is a way of passing on the
costs, so they are related to the costs. I don’t know
what you mean.

Q I'm just trying to understand what you meant
when you said that the pass-throughs were exogenously
chosen.

A It means I didn't have any specific
calculation process that led to those pass-throughs.

Q So that the pass-throughs were derivative?
When you told us in your testimony that 100 percent of
the cost was avoided in the DBMC drop entry, that
was --

A I said that based on all the factors of my
rate design objectives I passed through 100 percent of
the DBMC cost savings, ves.

Q So that it was chosen without reference to
the cost factors or the different cost positive
characteristics of the two kinds of pieces in the
system?

A I can’'t agree that they are chosen without
reference to the cost factors. They are chosen as a
way to treat those cost factors.

Heritage Reporting Corporation
{202) 628-4888



10

11

12

13

14

18

le

17

i8

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

2058

Q Is that what you meant by exogenously
chosen?

A Yes.

Q One last question on bound printed matter
and we can get on to media services. In response to

Presiding Officer’s Informaticn Request No. 5, Item
2(b}, and again in the one that was just introduced in
the record today, your response toc POIR 10, Question
5, you say:

"The Postal Service intends to examine," and
now you’ve gotten more specific this most recent time,
and I'm referring to 5. "...intends to examine
Witness Kelley's delivery cost to develop a pass-
through for use in future rate cases."”

We're talking about pass-through of the
letter/flat differential?

A The flat/parcel differential.
Q I'm sorry. The flat/parcel differential.

If you’'re not the appropriate witness,
please say so. Is all that you intend to examine the
difference in delivery costs, or do you intend to
examine the difference in shape, the difference in
weight, conceivably the difference in level of entry,
the difference in sortation?

A I don’t believe I'm the person to answer
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that.

MR. VOLNER: Okay. I will take that up with
Witness O‘Hara.

CHAIRMAN OMAS: Mr. Volner, excuse me.
Before you go to your next line of questioning I think
we’ll take a 10 wminute break.

MR. VOLNER: Sure. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN OMAS: Thank you. We’ll come back
at 11:35.

(Whereupon, a short recess was taken.)

CHAIRMAN OMAS: Mr. Volner?

MR. VOLNER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

BY MR. VOLNER:

Q Let’s turn to a different subclass which has

it’'s own complications, media services/library rate.

Am I correct in saying that the media
services/library rate subclass is unusual in terms of
rate design in that the way the rates work is you
round up to the nearest whole pound?

Well, let me give you an example since the
question seems a little unclear. Suppose I have a
media services eligible book that weighs a pound and a
half. Do I pay as if it weighed a pound and a half,
or do I pay as if it weighed two pounds?

A Two pounds.
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Q QOkay. So you round up to the nearest whole
pound. Do you round down if it’'s less than a pound
and a half?

A No.

Q No. So that a book weighing a pound and a
half pays the same as a book weighing 1.1 pounds?

A The media mail rate says the rates not over
one pound would pay the one pound rate.

Q But I've given you a book that weighs one-
tenth of a pound over one pound.

A So you’re right. It would pay the two pound
rate.

Q So the two books, though they differ
gsignificantly in weight --

A Significantly? I’'m not sure.

Q All right. Let’'s take it to the other
extreme. A book weighing 1.9 pounds pays the two
pound rate, and a book weighing 1.1 pounds also pays
the two pound rate.

A Correct.

Q Okay. Let’s turn to your Workpaper MM-2.
You use the term postage pounds, which you’re
referring to. I'm sorry.

A Yes.

0 You use the term in several of those
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columns, postage pounds. That’'s not the actual
aggregate weight. It is simply the postage calculated
weight because of the rounding?

A Like you said, they’'re not the actual
weight. They’'re the weight associated with the
postage.

Q Take a loock at the top column on that
schedule. You have RPW Rates. If you look at the RPW
weight, it is not the same for any of the categories
you’'ve shown as the postage pound Weight.

A Correct.

Q And so for example in the presort category
it’s about 1.5 million pestage pounds or about 1.5
pounds greater than the RPW pounds?

A Okay.

Q That's the function of the rate design for
media services? Is that correct?

A What do you mean by that is the function?

Q Well, is the RPW capturing postage pounds,
or is it capturing --

A Actual pounds.

Q The actual? And postage pounds, I think we
agreed a few minutes ago, are the result of the
round .ng?

A Yes,
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Q Okay. Did you do the rounding, or was that
rounding handed to you by somebody?

A The calculations are based from the billing
determinants, as you can see.

Q Okay. So it’'s the billing determinants that
provided you with the postage pounds, and the RPW
provided you with the actual pounds. Excellent.

Could you turn Lo Amazon-3 for a moment,
please? You said in your answer to that interrogatory
that 39 percent of media services is less than one
pound?

A I said 39 percent of the combined media mail

and library mail volume

Q Okay. The volume is less than one pound?
A Right. It weighs less than one pound.

Q Was that actual pounds or postage pounds?
4 That was the actual pounds.

Q Okay. So then we don’'t know what the

percentage is in terms of postage pounds?
A I don't know.

MR. VOLNER: We'’'ve discusged, Mr. Chairman,
the two cent piece and the two to one. I just want to
make a note that I have requested some information
about the testimony on that point.

BY MR. VOLNER:
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Q Now, there is another unusual
characteristic. Well, it’s not really so unusual. In
developing your media services/library rates do you
distinguish between retail and non-retail?

A No, I don't.

Q Do you have any cost data that distinguishes
between retail and non-retail?

A Not that I'm aware.

Q So that when, for example, you calculate the
revenue leakages resulting from, for example, the
barcode discount that does not distinguish between
retail and non-retail?

A Barcode discounts?

Q Well, let’s turn to page 11 of your
testimony I think it is. I‘m sorry. It is not page
11. Page 17. I'm sorry. You have a discussion there
of barcoded mail.

A Coxrect.

Q You say that you propose that machineable
media mail and library mail, parcels that are part of
a mailing of 50 of more pieces and that there is a
correct barcode receive a discount of three cents.

A Correct.

Q That barcode in theory applies to mail
whether it is taken to a post office retail window or
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applies tc mail that is presorted?

A Not to through retail window, no.

Q It is not through the retail window?

A I'm not sure of any individuals bringing to
the retail window a barcoded mail piece. It wouldn't

meet the regquirements of the barcode discount.

Q Well, you’'re probably correct. I mean, it
would be very difficult for an individual consumer to
put a barcode on his piece, but when you calculated
the revenue leakage did you separate out retail mail?

A I would have to lock at that in my

workpaper. One second.

Q Please do.
(Pause.)
A I don't believe so.
Q Thank you. Two more lines of questions and

we’re done with this.

I believe Mr. Olson asked you in the context
of bound printed matter, but let me ask you just to
make sure that I understand what’'s going on here.

There is no way from the way the rateg are
designed on the cost iuformation that you were given
that I could calculate an imputed cost coverage for
retail versus non-retail.

A Correct.
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Q There’s no way that I could calculate an
imputed cost coverage for piecesz less than a pound as

opposed to pieces more than a pound.

A For BPM?
Q For media services.
A Media? I haven’t done those calculations.

I don’'t know.

Q Do you think that you have the data to do
them?

A You want the cost coverages for just the
first pound? No, I don’'t have the data to do that.

Q As opposed to the cost coverages for pieces
over a pound?

A No. I have the cost coverages for just all
of it.

Q Okay. So that an implicit cost coverage
could not be calculated?

A Correct.

o] And it is entirely possible, isn‘t it, that
an implicit cost coverage for pieces over a pound, say
between two and six or two and seven, 1s greater than
109 percent?

A I do not know.

Q There is no way, is there, to calculate the
difference in revenue had you used actual pounds as
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opposed to postage pounds?

A I haven’t done those. I’'m not sure.
Q One last set of questions. Turn to page 18
of your testimony, please. 1It's actually 18 going to

15.

You say that on a consolidated basis the
media mail/library rate average revenue per piece
increases by 17.9 percent. Do you know what the 2005
rate case increase was?

A Not off the top of my head.

Q Well, will you accept subject to check that
it was on the order of 12 percent?

A Yes.

Q And if we take the 17.9 and the 12 percent
it’s just short of a 30 percent increase in two years
or three years?

A Which years are you comparing to?

Q I'm taking the 2005 increase, which was on
the order of 12 percent, and the 17.9, and I'm adding
the two together.

A Uh-huh.

Q Now, the 2005 rate increase went into effect
in 2006, right?

A Uh-huh.

Q And this rate increase will go into effect
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sometime in 2007, won't 1it?

A I don’t know for sure.

Q Well, accept hypothetically.

A Sure.

Q So that the two together is an approximate

30 percent increase in three years?

A Since R2001 rates?

Q No, no. Since 2005. If there was an
increase of 12 percent in 2005.

A Since R2001 rates? From R2001-1 through
R2005, the rate, like you said, 1s 12 percent subject
to check.

Q I'm sorxy. You’'re absolutely right.
Between the increase in 2001 and the increase in 2005
there was a 12 percent increace.

A Correct.

Q Between 2005 and 2007 there will be a 17.9
percent increase?

A Uh-huh.

Q Now, the Chairman asked earlier whether you
had looked at the Commission’s decisions. Did you
look at the Commission’s decision in the 2005 case in
the course as it relates to media services?

A Yes, I did loock.

Q I know you’'re not the costing witness. Did
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you ask your costing witnesses for any explanation of
why they had made no changes in the costing
methodology?

A My understanding is that R2005 was not a
litigated case, and I'm not sure why I would ask that
question to the costing witnesses.

Q Well, if you looked at the Commission’'s
decision, the Commission asked some questions about
the costing for media services and library rates,
didn’t they?

A Yes.

Q But you did not discuss that with your
costing witness?

A I did not discuss it. I don’t recall

discussing it with them for the R2005 rate case.

Q No, no. I'm talking about for this case.
A I'm sorry. I don’'t follow you.
Q The question is when you loocked at the 2005

decision the Commission said hey, there’s something
very strange going on with these cost of media
services/library rates. Postal Service, you ought to
be able to do something about it.

You then get the cost data from your costing
witnesses. Do you ask them whether they have done
anything about 1t?
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A I'm not their supervisor. I did not
specifically ask that question.
Q Did you generally ask that question, or did

you ask any questions about the Commission’s decision

in 20057
A Sure, I did.
Q Such as?
A I asked general questions. What were the

decisions? I was aware that costing for media mail
was brought up, was a concern.

MR. VOLNER: I have nc further questions,
Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN OMAS: Thank you, Mr. Volner.

Ms. Dreifuss, would you introduce yourself?

MS. DREIFUSS: Yes. I'm Shelley Dreifuss
from the Office of the Consumer Advocate.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MS. DREIFUSS:

Q Good morning, Ms. Yeh.
A Good morning.
Q The questions I’'m going to ask you concern a

revision to your testimony that was submitted
yesterday.

I believe the primary change takes place at
page 6 of your testimony and in particular Footnote 2.
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Is that right-?

A Correct.

Q It appears that the Postal Service wants to
change some of the ways that non-presort bound printed
matter will be handled in a retail setting, but
perhaps not going quite as far as originally planned.
Does that sound right?

A That sounds right.

Q T wonder if you could explain to me how
things will change for bound printed matter retaill
customers. How can they take advantage of a retail
getting teoday, and how will that be different once the
plan changes take place?

A It is my understanding that in today’s
environment a retail customer seeking to mail bound
printed matter could do so at the window even without
any postage paid on it or just a piece they brought
in.

With the change I propose, at the
management’s selection my understanding is that we
will no longer offer BPM as a retail option.

Q I see. Will chere be a requirement when a
customer approaches the window that the postage
already be applied to the piece under the planned
changes?
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A Yes, I believe so.

Q Do you know what would happen if a customer
came to the window hoping to use BPM and did not have
any postage applied to the piece? What do you think
would happen at the window?

A I'm not sure I could answer that question.

Q Are you unable to answer it because those

details have not yet been determined by the Postal

Service?
A Correct.
Q So we’‘re just not sure right now whether the

customer could go forward with the transaction or
would be unable to do so? Is that right?

A As I said in my footnoteé, 1t 1is the Postal
Service's intention to accommodate that customer who
wants to mail BPM at the window, but the details are
not available yet.

MS. DREIFUSS: I'm goling to ask you a few
more questions of that type, and if we find that you
today are not able to answer them, Mr. Chairman, I
would ask that OCA be able to submit some of these
questions to the Postal Service, either to Ms. Yeh,
giving her a chance to do further research, or to the
Postal Service generally to find out how the Postal
Service plans to implement these changes if Ms. Yeh is
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unable to answer the guestions this morning.

CHAIRMAN OMAS: Mr. Reiter?

MR. REITER: The question is?

MS. DREIFUSS: Can I submit gquestions?

CHAIRMAN OMAS: The gquestion is i1f Ms. Yeh
cannot answer the line of questioning she is about to
approach she would like to submit it to the Postal
Service for answers.

MR. REITER: I'm sure she can do that, yes.

CHAIRMAN OMAS: Well, we're not going to say
I'm sure. Will you do that and get it to us within
seven days, please?

MR. REITER: Will we answer her questions?

CHAIRMAN OMAS: Yes.

MR. REITER: Yes.

CHAIRMAN OMAS: Thank you.

MS. DREIFUSS: Let me ask counsel. Do you
have a preference whether I go over these guestions
this morning orally to see whether Ms. Yeh has
answers, or do you prefer that I submit them in
writing?

MR. REITER: I think that they would, even
if you directed them to the witness, be redirected to
the Postal Service since this is well outside the
scope of her testimony so it probably would be more
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productive for everybody if you submitted them in
writing.

MS. DREIFUSS: Okay. That’s acceptable.

Let me just try one or two more, and if T find that
Ms. Yeh doesn’t know the answers today then I think
putting them in writing is the best approach.

BY MS. DREIFUSS:

Q Do you know, Ms. Yeh, whether bound printed
matter customers will be able to use automated postal
centers to mail bound printed matter?

A To my knowledge, even in today’s environment
they are not able to do that.

Q I see. I went onto the Postal Service's
webgite this morning to see if information about using
non-presort or single piece bcund printed matter would
be available, and I did find under the pracedure for
calculating postage that I was able to obtain zone
information, weight informaticon and thereby determine
postage.

Do you know whether the Postal Service
intends to continue to make that available to bound
printed matter customers in the future?

A I'm not sure. I don’t know that.

o Would you happen to know whether the Postal
Service will answer questions about how to determine
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bound printed matter postage through its 1-800

telephone number?

A I'm not familiarxr with their processes
either.
Q Okay. Do you know whether in the Postal

Service’s changed environment a clerk might be willing
to weigh a bound printed matter package and determine
the zZone between two zip codes so that postage could
be determined?

A I'm not sure exactly formally how that
process will be in place, but I‘'m sure if you asked
one of our clerks to weigh something they’'d be happy
to do so.

Q Okay. I actually have just one more
question in connection with the plan change in the way
retail bound printed matter will be handled.

You preoposed to change the name of the
retail offering from single piece bound printed matter
to non-presort bound printed matter. Is that correct?

A The term single piece bound printed matter
also includes commercial as well as retail, not just
retail. Yes, I am proposing that name change.

Q At Section 522.21 of the domestic mail
classification schedule the Postal Service indicates
that it wants to change the current name, single piece
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bound printed matter, to non-presort bound printed
matter. Is that correct?

A It’'s our intention to do so, yes. I don’'t
have that document in front of me though.

Q And what’'s the reason that the Postal
Service wants to identify this mail differently now
calling it non-presort as opposed to single piece?

a I believe I answer that in an interrogatory.
It’s really to better reflect what the service 1is.

Q How deoes that name change better reflect
what the service is?

A It’s part of an effort to clarify bound
printed matter and non-presort versus presort. The
name non-presort makes it more clear, or we hepe it
does.

Q Who is the audience for this name change?
Is it commercial users of bound printed matter or
single piece users of bound printed matter?

A The name change should be useful to all, to
everyone who plans to use bound printed matter, not
just a specific audience.

Q Am I right that the term single piece
suggests that the mail is not presorted?

A It probably does suggest that.

Q I'm still not clear on what you may
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accomplish by that change of name.

A It was a decision based on management
intention to clarify the counterpart of BPM presort as
non-presort and so the name arose from that decision.

Q Well, I know you're proposing this change.
You didn’t necessarily develop the idea independently,
did you?

A Correct.

MS. DREIFUSS: Okay. I have no further
questions, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN OMAS: Thank you, Ms. Dreifuss.

Are there any additional follow-up
questions?

(No response.)

CHAIRMAN CMAS: Are there any questions from
the bench? Commissioner Goldway?

COMMISSIONER GOLDWAY: Thank you. I also
want to follow up on the -- when you were preparing
the issues regarding changing the service available
for BPM mail at the retail counter it sounds like from
the dialogue that you’ve just had with the
representative from the Office of Consumer Advocate
that when you were preparing your testimony management
told you to make these changes.

Who was that management, and did they give
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you an explanation as to why they needed to make these
changes in the name and the kind of service offered at
the retail window?

THE WITNESS: To your first question --

COMMISSIONER GOLDWAY: Who was the
management?

THE WITNESS: -- my immediate supervisor,
Joe Muller.

COMMISSIONER GOLDWAY: Did he indicate to
you that he was getting that information from somebody
else, somebody in operations, somebody who was
reviewing the overall service of BPM mail?

THE WITNESS: I belleve his management, his
superiors.

COMMISSIONER GOLDWAY: So perhaps we need to
ask somebody other than you for information?

THE WITNESS: I can relay my understanding
for management’s intention and that is --

COMMISSIONER GOLDWAY: What 1is that?

THE WITNESS: That is based on I believe it
was R-76-1. There’s a description of bound printed
matter as a catalog intended for commercial use as a
catalog mailing option and rules have evolved to allow
boocks without advertising to alsc be included, but
based on inspection of the volume history we know that
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retail represents about three percent of bound printed
matter and it is still predominantly used by
commercial mailers.

It is the management’s intention to clarify
our parcel offering by making it simpler for the
mailers who come to the window who understand which
parcel offering is more suitabkle for, is the easiest
for them to use for their mailing needs.

COMMISSIONER GOLDWAY: So what it sounds
like is that management would prefer to have bound
printed matter as a rate classification only available
for bulk mailers because only a small percentage 1s
currently used by retail and they want to simplify the
offerings, they want to move that out of retail
altogether. Am I paraphrasing you relatively
correctly?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

COMMISSICNER GOLDWAY: Bound printed matter
is a less expensive option for parcels isn’t it?

THE WITNESS: In most cases, yes.

COMMISSIONER GOLDWAY: So the simplification
locks like it’s also eliminating a less exXpensive
option for a consumer?

THE WITNESS: I'm not a cost expert, but my
understanding is that the relatively favorable BPM
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{202) 628-4888



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

2079

rates are due to the fact of the cost characteristics
of BPM that are mailed by commercial mailers.

COMMISSIONER GOLDWAY: Well, but we
traditionally average in retail and bulk mailers in
establishing rates. We do it for first-class mail, we
do it with -- may be doing less of it in the future,
but that’s certainly what we do do. So this was an
attempt to remove this classification from the retail
originally and now they’'re backed off on it somewhat,
but nobody seems clear as to how that’s going to
function.

THE WITNESS: My understanding is that the
intention is to make it easier for the mailers who
come to the window by clarifying our postal offering
because media mail was originally known as the book
rate and that was intended for retail customers to use
as well, and as I said it was due to changes that
evolved in BPM due to eliminating the rule of
requiring advertising in BPM that led to retail
customers being able to take advantage of the BPM
rates which really wasn’'t intended for commercial
mailers as I understood.

COMMISSIONER GOLDWAY: Okay. So who would
you :t :ggest then is the appropriate person within the
Postal Service for OCA to direct questions about the

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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policy of this change to?

MR. REITER: If I could, Mr. Chairman and
Commissioner Goldway --

COMMISSIONER GOLDWAY: Thank you.

MR. REITER: -- I think that we already
indicated that if Ms. Dreifuss had additional
questions she could direct it to the Postal Service --

COMMISSICNER GOLDWAY: It will be just an
institutional answer?

MR. REITER: Yes. I think so because this
isn’'t really within any particular witness’ complete
purview. We'’'d be happy to do the same 1f you have
questions.

COMMISSIONER GOLDWAY: Fine. Okay. If you
feel the institutional answers will be specific enough
then --

MR. REITER: I will do my very best to make
sure that they are --

COMMISSIONER GOLDWAY: Thank you.

MR. REITER: -- as specific as they can be
at the time you ask them.

COMMISSIONER GOLDWAY: Okay. Thank you.

MR. REITER: Sure.

COMMISSIONER GOLDWAY: I don’t have any
other guestions.

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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THE WITNESS: Thank you.

COMMISSIONER GOLDWAY: Thank you.

CHATRMAN OMAS: Is there anyone else?

Ms. Dreifuss?

MS. DREIFUSS: Mr. Chairman, I do want to
follow-up on one of the exchanges between Commissioner
Goldway and Witness Yeh.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MS. DREIFUSS:

Q Witness Yeh, you were indicating that vyou
believed or you were testifying that the reason that
bound printed matter has lower costs on the whole than
parcel post was due to its primarily commercial
character. Is that right?

A I said that was my understanding. Yes.

Q Isn’t it also true that bound printed matter
generally involves much denser pieces than one would
find in parcel post? Is that correct?

A I haven't looked at parcel post
characteristics, but I could assume you are correct in
that.

Q Yes. Well, let me just ask you to compare
the kinds of pieces that are sent as bound printed
matter as contrasted with parcel post. Bound printed
matter consists primarily of what kinds of mail?

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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A Catalogs, phone directories. Basically
bound printed matter and books of course.

Q All right. Would you call these items
fragile and in need of lots of extra packing material
around them to send them safely through the mail?

A I guess it depends. Each person has a
different opinion about how books should be handled,
but I consider them -- I would handle them carefully.

Q Let me switch to parcel post for a moment.
Parcel post can be used to send a variety of contents
for example, I'1ll give you one extreme example, if I
wanted to mail a glass vase as a gift to scmebody I
could use parcel post to send that vase couldn’'t I?

A I believe so.

Q Would you suppose that I would need to add a
great deal more packing material to transport that

glass vase safely than I would a book?

A I'm not sure. I mean, perhaps.
Q Okay. Here'’'s another thing I could do with
parcel post. I could send a pillow via parcel post

couldn‘t I?

A Yes. I belicve so.

Q A pillow is probably not as dense as a book
is it?

A Correct.

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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Q Would you happen to know whether different
density characteristics have cost consequences in the
way packages are handled at the Postal Service?

A I'm not familiar with that information. No.

MS. DREIFUSS: Okay. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN OMAS: Thank you, Ms. Dreifuss.

Mr. Reiter, would you like some time with
your witness to determine if you have any redirect?

MR. REITER: VYes. I would like some. Ten
minutes?

CHAIRMAN OMAS: All right. Ten minutes.

MR. REITER: Thank you.

(Whereupon, a short recess was taken.)

CHAIRMAN OMAS: Mr. Reiter?

MR. REITER: Mr. Chairman, we do not have
any redirect.

CHAIRMAN OMAS: Well, thank you very much,
Mr. Reiter.

Ms. Yeh, that completes your testimony here
today. We would like to thank you for your appearing,
and we appreciate your contribution to the record.

You are now excused.

THE WITNESS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

(Witness excused.)

CHAIRMAN OMAS: Are you counsel for the next
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witness?

MR. REITER: Yes, I am. Would you like to
continue to the next witness?

CHATRMAN OMAS: Yes.

MR. REITER: OQur next witness is James
Kiefer.

CHATRMAN OMAS: Okay. Mr. Kiefer.

Mr. Reiter, Mr. Kiefer has already appeared
here, and has been sworn in and is under ocath, so we
do not need to swear him in.

Please have a seat.

MR. REITER: Thank you.

Whereupon,

JAMES M. KIEFER

having been previously duly sworn, was
recalled as a witness herein and was examined and
testified further as follows:

(The document referred to was

marked for identification as

Exhibit No. USPS-T-37.)
DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. REITER:

Q I will show him two copies of a document
entitled direct testimony of James M. Kiefer on behalf
of United States Postal Service designated USPS-T-37
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as revised on August 10, 2006. Mr. Kiefer was this
testimony prepared by you or under your direction?

A As I indicated in the POIR response, late in
the development of the Postal Service'’s case there was
a staff change in the pricing office and because of a
staff reassignment I was asked to take over this
testimony after the main body of the pricing was
developed and the main body of the workpapers were
developed.

Because of the late time what I did was I
reviewed carefully all of the testimony and the
workpapers. As I went through I made corrections
where I found inconsistencies or errors, and I assured
myself of the essential validity of the assumptions
and of the pricing that came out of them.

I am fully confident in this work and
willing and able to adopt it as my own testimony and
workpapers.

Q If you were to testify orally here today
would this represent your testimony?

A Yeg, it would.

Q Do you have library references that you are
also sponsoring?

T Yes. I am sponsoring two library
references, USPS/LR-L-82 and USPS/LR-L-51.
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MR. REITER: Mr. Chairman, I will hand these
two copies to the reporter and ask that they be
admitted into evidence together with the library
references mentioned as the direct testimony of James
Kiefer.

CHATRMAN OMAS: Is there any objection?

(No response.)

CHATIRMAN OMAS: Hearing none I will direct
counsel to provide the reporter with two copies of the
corrected direct testimony of James M. Kiefer. That
testimony is received into evidence, however as is our
practice it will not be transcribed.

{The document referred to,
previocusly identified as
Exhibit No. USPS-T-37, was
received in evidence.)

CHAIRMAN CMAS: Mr. Kiefer?

THE WITNESS: Yes?

CHATIRMAN CMAS: Have you had an opportunity
to examine the packet of designated written cross-
examination that was made available to you in the
hearing room today?

THE WITNESS: Yes, I have, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN OMAS: If the questions contained
in that packet were posed to you orally today would

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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your answers be the same as those previously submitted
to us in writing?

THE WITNESS: They would, Mr. Chairman,
except for one exception. There’s a minor correction
on PSA/USPS-T-37-13. In the response in the sixth
line there’'s a figure there that says that the
adjustment factor or pass-through shown in WP-PP-29
would have been 51.5 percent. That is a typo. The
correct number is 51.1 percent.

I have made the correction on the two copies
here.

CHAIRMAN OMAS: Are there any additiocnal
corrections or additions you would like to make to
those answers now?

THE WITNESS: No. Nc¢, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN OMAS: Counsel, would you please
provide two copies of the corrected designated written
cross-examination of Witnegs Kiefer to the reporter?
That material is received into evidence and is to be
transcribed into the record.

(The document referred to was
marked for identification as
Exhibit No. USPS-T-37 and was
received in evidence.)

//

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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BEFORE THE
POSTAL RATE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, DC 20268-0001

Postal Rate and Fee Changes, 2006 Docket No. R2006-1

DESIGNATION OF WRITTEN CROSS-EXAMINATION
OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE
WITNESS JAMES M. KIEFER

(USPS-T-37)
Party interrogatories
Parce! Shippers Association PSA/USPS-T37-1-6, 7c, 8, 9b-¢, 10-13
Pitney Bowes Inc. PB/USPS-T37-1
Postal Rate Commission PRC/USPS-POIR No.3 - Q18a, 19-20, 21, 22,

23,24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 29, POIR No.4 - Q18,
22, POIR No.5 - Q9a redirected to T37
PSA/USPS-T37-1, 3-6, 7c, 8, 9b-¢, 10-13
UPS/USPS-T37-1-2, 3a-c, e, 4-5, 7-10, 11a-b,
d, 12-15

UPS/USPS-T21-18b-c redirected to T37

United Parcel Service PRC/USPS-POIR No.3 - Q18a, 19-20, 23, 28,
POIR No.4 - Q18, 22 redirected to T37
PSA/USPS-T37-1, 3, 7c
UPS/USPS-T37-1-2, 3a-c, e, 4-5, 8-10, 11a-b,
d, 12-15
UPS/USPS-T15-1d-e redirected to T37
UPS/USPS-T21-18b-c redirected to T37

Valpak Direct Marketing Systems, UPS/USPS-T37-10
Inc. and Valpak Dealers’
Association Inc.



Party

Vaipak Direct Marketing Systems,
Inc. and Valpak Dealers’
Association Inc.

Interrogatories

UPS/USPS-T37-10

Respectfully submitted,

/Zﬂ:__, & C”J-Q-Lv\ﬁ

Steven W. Williams
Secretary
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INTERROGATORY RESPONSES OF
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE
WITNESS JAMES M. KIEFER (T-37)

DESIGNATED AS WRITTEN CROSS-EXAMINATION

Interrogatory

PB/USPS-T37-1

PRC/USPS-POIR No.3 - Q18a redirected to T37
PRC/USPS-POIR No.3 - Q19 redirected to T37
PRC/USPS-POIR No.3 - Q20 redirected to T37
PRC/USPS-POIR No.3 - Q21 redirected tc T37
PRC/USPS-POIR No.3 - Q22 redirected to T37
PRC/USPS-POIR No.3 - Q23 redirected to T37
PRC/USPS-POIR No0.3 - Q24 redirected to T37
PRC/USPS-POIR No.3 - Q25 redirected to T37
PRC/USPS-POIR No.3 - Q26 redirected to T37
PRC/USPS-POIR No.3 - Q27 redirected to T37
PRC/USPS-POIR No.3 - Q28 redirected to T37
PRC/USPS-POIR No.3 - Q29 redirected to T37
PRC/USPS-POIR No.4 - Q18 redirected to T37
PRC/USPS-POIR No.4 - Q22 redirected to T37
PRC/USPS-POIR No.5 - Q9a redirected to T37
PSA/USPS-T37-1

PSA/USPS-T37-2

PSA/USPS-T37-3

PSA/USPS-T37-4

PSA/USPS-T37-5

PSA/USPS-T37-6

PSA/USPS-T37-7c

PSA/USPS-T37-8

PSA/USPS-T37-9b

PSA/USPS-T37-S¢

PSA/USPS-T37-10

PSA/USPS-T37-11

PSA/USPS-T37-12

PSA/USPS-T37-13

UPS/USPS-T37-1

UPS/USPS-T37-2

Designating Parties

Pitney Bowes
PRC, UPS
PRC, UPS
PRC, UPS
PRC

PRC

PRC, UPS
PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC

PRC, UPS
PRC

PRC, UPS
PRC, UPS
PRC

PRC, PSA, UPS
PSA

PRC, PSA, UPS
PRC, PSA
PRC, PSA
PRC, PSA
PRC, PSA, UPS
PRC, PSA
PRC, PSA
PRC, PSA
PRC, PSA
PRC, PSA
PRC, PSA
PRC, PSA
PRC, UPS
PRC, UPS
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Interrogatory Designating Parties
UPS/USPS-T37-3a PRC, UPS
UPS/USPS-T37-3b PRC. UPS
UPS/USPS-T37-3c PRC, UPS
UPS/USPS-T37-3e PRC, UPS
UPS/USPS-T37-4 PRC, UPS
UPS/USPS-T37-5 PRC, UPS
UPS/USPS-T37-7 PRC
UPS/USPS-T37-8 PRC. UPS
UPS/USPS-T37-9 PRC. UPS
UPS/USPS-T37-10 PRC, UPS, Valpak
UPS/USPS-T37-11a PRC, UPS
UPS/USPS-T37-11b PRC, UPS
UPS/USPS-T37-11d PRC, UPS
UPS/USPS-T37-12 PRC., UPS
UPS/USPS-T37-13 PRC., UPS
UPS/USPS-T37-14 PRC, UPS
UPS/USPS-T37-15 PRC, UPS
UPS/USPS-T15-1d redirected to T37 UPS
UPS/USPS-T15-1e redirected to T37 UPS
UPS/USPS-T21-19b redirected to T37 PRC, UPS

UPS/USPS-T21-19c¢ redirected to T37 PRC, UPS
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RESPONSE OF POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS KIEFER
TO INTERROGATORY OF PITNEY BOWES

PB/USPS-T37-1. Please confirm that the Postal Service's current and proposed rate

design for Parcel Select provides dropship discounts. If you cannot confirm fully, please
explain fully.

RESPONSE

Confirmed.
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RESPONSE OF POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS KIEFER (USPS-T-37) TO
PRESIDING OFFICER'S INFORMATION REQUEST NO. 3

18. Please refer to USPS-LR-L-46. The addendum on page 75 states, “After results
of the initial models were incorporated into the analysis of the downstream
witnesses, errors were discovered in the calculations of the Parcel Post, Bound
Printed Matter, and Media/Library Mail cost estiimates.”

a. Please refer to USPS-LR-L-82, workbook "WP-ParcelPost xis,” sheet
“Inputs.” All of item 17 except a and k. and all of item 19 use cost figures
from USPS-LR-L-46. Please updale these figures with data from the
USPS-LR-L-46 workbook “Parcel Post REV xIs”

RESPONSE:

a. Please see WP-ParcelPost-R0601 xis, attached. The updaled cost figures from
USPS-LR-L-46 cause lhe pricing model in WP-ParcelPost-R0601 xis to generale
values in some rate cells that differ slightly from the values | am proposing Since the
differences between the values in the updated workbook and my proposed rates are
small, | do not see any reason to change my proposed rates as a result of this

update.



RESPONSE OF POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS KIEFER (USPS-T-37) TO
PRESIDING OFFICER'S INFORMATION REQUEST NO. 3

19.  Please refer to USPS-LR-L-82, excel workbook “WP-ParcelPost.x!s,” sheet

“Inputs.”

a. Item 6l shows the estimated TYBR PRS growth, with the Nole section
saying, “Assumed PRS growth between FY 2006 and TY 2008." Please
explain the basis for this assumption.

b. ltem 13 shows the share of Parcel Select using no-fee Delivery
Confirmation. The Notes section says this value is an assumption.
Please describe the basis for this assumption.

C. Item 17k shows the Electronic Delivery Confirmation cost per piece. The
Noles section says this is an estimated value. Please provide workpapers
showing how this figure is derived.

RESPONSE:
a. The 15.5% growth between FY 2006 and TY 2008 represented the compounded
effect of two years of volume growth, one at 10% and one at 5%. These growth rates

were assumed by Postal Service pricing staff to generate conservative projections of

revenues from Parcel Return Service in the test year.

b. This value was developed by Postal Service pricing staff as an assumption
through discussions with Postal Service product management staff who are familiar with

the usage of Parcel Select products.

C. This estimate was developed by Postal Service pricing staff as a working
assumplion early in the rate development process, when it was not certain that an
alternative cost estimate would be developed by the Postal Service. It was not based on
any cost study for Delivery Confirmation. The cost estimate sponsored by witness Page
(USPS-T-23) was developed after the pricing staff assumption had been used to

develop Parcel Post rates and was not used in pricing.
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RESPONSE OF POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS KIEFER (USPS-T-37) TO
PRESIDING OFFICER'S INFORMATION REQUEST NO. 3

20. Please refer to USPS-LR-L-82, excel workbook “WP-ParcelPost xIs™ sheets that
show Billing Determinants information for Intra-BMC, Inter-BMC, and Parcel
Select {(WP-PP-4 to WP-PP-6). It appears there are mistakes with several of the
“Percent Nonmachinable Pieces” figures. The following table list the figures
given in USPS-LR-L-82 as compared with the figures that are listed in USPS-LR-
L-77, which is the library reference that shows the 2005 Billing Determinants:

Service LR-82 % Non-Mach Pieces I LR-77 % Non-Mach Pieces ]
Intra-BMC 18.920615% L 11902391% - ‘
Inter-BMC 13.216375% ,1331049%
DBMC 6.4011060% . 6.4029%

Please explain these differences and make any necessary corrections.
RESPONSE:
No correction is needed. The LR-77 nonmachinable piece shares include pieces paying
the Oversized rate. For use in my workpapers {LR-82) the percentages have been
recalculated to exclude Oversized-rate volumes as reported in the base year RPW
reports. The reason for the change was to get a more accurate estimate of revenue
from the Nonmachinable Surcharge, which is not applied to Oversized-rate pieces This
recaiculation of the nonmachinable parcel percentages was one of the "late breaking”
corrections cited in footnote 10 in my testimony (USPS-T-37). As a result of staff
reassignment, | was requested to sponsor the Postal Service's proposed pricing for
Parcel Post, along with the supporting testimony and workpapers, after most of the rate
design was performed and workpapers developed by other pricing staff. After accepting
this assignment, | thoroughly reviewed the Parcel Post rate design and pricing model
that had been prepared. As a result of my review, | was able to confirm its essential
validity and reliabiiity. In addition, | made several minor changes to the workpapers,
such as adjusting the nonmachinable parcel percentage calculations. See USPS-T-37,
footnote 10 for a discussion of the impact of these changes. Because of the limited time

available for review of the testimony and workpapers, | focused my attention primarily
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RESPONSE OF POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS KIEFER (USPS-T-37} TO
PRESIDING OFFICER'S INFORMATION REQUEST NO. 3
on ensuring the reliability of the data and calculations supporting the proposed pricing,
hence a number of documentation errors were not detected in the workpapers. All of the
documentation errors noted in this information request, as well as others that | note in
my responses, are corrected in the attached revised workbook, WP-ParcelPost-

R0O601 . xls.
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RESPONSE OF POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS KIEFER (USPS-T-37) TO
PRESIDING OFFICER'S INFORMATION REQUEST NO. 3

21.  Please refer to USPS-LR-L-82, workbook “WP-ParcelPosi.xls,” sheet "Cube-

Weight Relationships.” Please confirm that the note on the bottom of this sheet
should refer to USPS-LR-L-89, not to USPS-LR-L-47.

RESPONSE:

Confirmed. Please see WP-ParcelPost-R0601.xIs, attached, for the corrected note.



RESPONSE OF POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS KIEFER (USPS-T-37) TO
PRESIDING OFFICER'S INFORMATION REQUEST NO. 3

22. Please refer to USPS-LR-L-82, workbook “WP-ParcelPost.xls,” sheel "TYBR
Volumes,” to the notes section at the bottom of the sheet. The part of note (2]
explaining the derivation of pounds 1 and 2 for Intra-BMC volumes appears to be
incorrect. Please confirm that the methodology used to compute these values is
the same methodoiogy used to compute intra-BMC volumes for pounds 3 - 70
pounds, not the methodology referred to in note [2]. (It appears the note refers to
the methodology used in R2001-1, which is not used in this case.)

RESPONSE:

Confirmed. The note has been corrected in WP-ParcelPost-R0601 .xls, attached. The

corrected workbook also updates several other incorrect references to the Inputs

worksheet on the TYBR Volumes worksheet. In the original, several inputs were
referenced by the wrong number, e.g. Input [7k], where Input [6k] was intended; in

addition Inter-BMC TYBR volume was incorrectly referenced in Note 3 as Input [7g].

rather than as Input [6f}. These references have been corrected.
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RESPONSE OF POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS KIEFER {(USPS-T-37) TO
PRESIDING OFFICER'S INFORMATION REQUEST NO. 3

23. Please refer to USPS-LR-L-82, workbook “WP-ParcelPost.xis,” sheet “Balloon
Costs.” The per piece excess cost of balloon parcels is equal to the balloon
transportation cost minus the 15 pound transportaticn cost plus the balloon
weight-related non-transportation cost minus the 15 pound weight related non-
transponrtation cost (rows 11, 16, 21, 26, 31) The proposal in this case asks that
the balloon rate class maximum weight requirement be pushed up o0 20 pounds
{from 15) and that likewise it be charged the 20 pound rate. Why was the
15 pound costs used in the formula instead of the 20 pound cosis?

RESPONSE:

The Balloon Costs worksheet uses both unit costs and volumes developed from

historical data where balloon parcels topped out at 15 pounds. While the Postal Service

is proposing that the weight ceiling be raised from 15 pound to 20 pounds, no cost study
or any volume estimate for Parcel Post balloon parcels were available that used the
new definition. It is reasonable to assume that the unit transportation costs of ail balloon
parcels using the new definition would be higher than using the current defimition To be
sure, the unit transportation costs of the new reference parcels (20-pound parceis} are
higher than the unit costs for 15-pound parcels, but it is not clear whether the excess
costs (the difference between the balloon parcel costs and the reference parcel costs)
would be higher or lower. Consequently, while it is reasonable to conclude that raising

the threshold for balloon parcels to 20 pounds will increase the balloon parcel volume,

the net impact on excess balloon parcel transportation costs remains ambiguous.

It would, of course, be desirable to have estimates of costs and volumes based on the
new definition but, since they were not available, | believe that using the unit costs and
volumes based on the current definition shouid not pose any significant problems. |

base this view on the following:
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The purpose of the calcuiation is simply to shift cost recovery from the per-piece
rate element to the per-pound rate elemenls. The lotal amount of costs are
recovered whether or not this adjustment is made, or whether the excess cost
estimate is too high or too low. The costs that are not recovered in the per-pound
rate element is recovered in the per-piece element, and vice-versa.

The amount in question is refatively small As can be seen from the Balloon
Costs worksheet, the total excess costs that are shifted amount to $5.3 million,
about 0.4% of Parcel Post subclass cosls.

The preliminary rates for heavier weight pieces in many rale categories were
highly constrained, as described in my testmony. The rale change mitigaticn and
other constraints that were imposed significantly reduced the effects that prior
shifting of costs between per-piece and per-pound rate elements might have had.
Consequently, any alternative way of distributing these excess balloon costs

probably would not have had much impact on the final proposed rates.
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24 Please refer to USPS-LR-L-82, workbook “WP-ParcelPost.xls,” to the sheets thal
show the constrained rates (WP-PP-25 - WP-PP-27.) It appears that the
numbered notes on the bottom of the page do nol correspond with the numbers
that appear with the data. Please make the necessary corrections and provide a
revised version.

RESPONSE:
Please see WP-ParcelPost-R0601 xIs. In addition to revising the incorrect reference
numbers, the following notes have been revised 10 improve clarily: Note 5 on WP-PP-

25; Note 7 on WP-PP-26; and Note 4 on WP-PP-27.
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Please refer to USPS-LR-L-82, workbook “WP-ParcelPost.xlIs,” sheet "RDU

25.
Savings Calculations,” note {1]. Please confirm that the note should show that
the nonmachinable surcharge shouid be added for pounds 36 — 70, not pounds
1-35.

RESPONSE:

Confirmed. Note 1 has been corrected. Please see WP-ParcelPost-R0601 xls.
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26. Please refer to USPS-LR-L-82, workbook “WP-ParcelPost.xls,” sheet “Parcel
Post Financials,” note [Ab). Please confirm that the note should show that the
formula for [Ab] is: (Input 14a) + (Total Dimensional Wt. Volume). (The note
currently shows [Ab] is equal only fo Inputida.)

RESPONSE:

Confirmed. The second part of note 1 has been corrected. Please see WP-ParcelPost-

R0601.xls.
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27. Please refer to USPS-LR-L-82, workbook “WP-ParcelPost.xis,” sheet "PRS
Revenue Impacts,” note [2]. Please confirm that the section of note [2] that
shows the methodology for 36 pounds to 70 pounds should not show the
subtraction of the Intra-BMC Nonmachinable surcharge, as the actual formula
used does not perform this step.

RESPONSE:

Confirmed. The second part of note 2 has been correcled. Please see WP-ParcelPost-

RO601.xls.
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28. Please refer to USPS-LR-L-82, workbook “WP-ParcelPosli xis.” sheet “Dim-Wt
Migrants Unit Costs,” section [3] (Total Cosls including Basic per piece cost).
Please explain why the balloon costs for Intra-BMC {WP-PP-18 cell M13) are
added to each cell as opposed to the balloon cost for Inter-BMC (WP-PP-18, cell
M18).

RESPONSE:

The use of Intra-BMC balloon costs was an error Ptease see WP-ParcelPosl-

R0601 xls, where the formulas in WP-PP-40 have been changed to include the correct

balloan costs (Inter-BMC balloon costs). The change reduces the tolal estimated costs

shown in WP-PP-40 by about $36,000. or about 0 2% oi the originally reporied

estimate.
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29. Please refer to USPS-LR-L-82, workbook WP-ParcelPost.xis. Throughout this
workbook there appear to be multiple inaccuracies with references that refer to
information found in “Inputs.” The actual numbers used in these instances are
correct, but the references do not refer to the actual numbers used. Please
confirm, with respect to references 1o items from “Inputs,” that on sheet:

a. “TYBR Volumes™ note 2 should refer 1o item 6¢, note 3 should refer to ilem
6f, note 4 should refer to 6 (k, |, and 1} and note 4 shouid refer to 6p and
60;

b. “TYBR Adjusted Revenue” notes should refer to item 6 instead of 7 (with

6f instead of 7j for note [Bx]), 8 instead of 9, 9 instead of 10, 4 instead of
5, 10 instead of 11, 11 instead of 12. and 5 instead of 6;

C. “Cubic Foot Costs” notes should refer to item 16 instead of 19;

d. “Wt.-Related Non-Transp. Costs” note [3] should refer to item 17 inslead
of 20;

e. “Qversized Costs” notes should refer to item 17 instead of 20;

f. “| eakages and Surcharges” notes should refer to item 6 instead of 7, 8
instead of 9, 9 instead of 10, 10 instead of 11. 11 instead of 12, and 17
instead of 20;

g. “Per Piece Costs and Charges” notes should refer to item 15 instead of
18, 12 instead of 14, 6 instead of 7, 17 instead of 20, and 13 instead of 15,

h. “Preliminary Intra-BMC Rates” and “Preliminary Inter-BMC Rates™ notes
should refer to item 17 instead of 20;

i “Preliminary Parcel Select Rates™ notes shouid refer to item 17 instead of
20 and 9 instead of 10;

J- “Constrained Intra-BMC Rates,” “Constrained Inter-BMC Rates,” and
“Constrained Parcel Select Rates” notes shoutd refer to item 17 instead of
20;

k. “TYAR Volumes” notes should refer to item 14 instead of 17 (with 14
instead of 17n, 14m instead of 17k, and 14l instead of 17m);

L “RDU Savings Calculation” notes should refer to item 23 instead of 26, 16
instead of 19, 19 instead of 22, 14m instead of 17n, 9 instead of 10, and &
instead of 7;

m. "*RBMC Savings Calculation” and “PRS Oversize Cost Savings™ notes
should refer to item 19 instead of 22, 16 instead of 19, and 23 instead of
26.

RESPONSE:

a-m. All of the corrections cited in the question can be confirmed with one qualification
cited below. in almost all cases the discrepancies were due to the deletion of one

or more items on the Inputs worksheet that caused a renumbering of the input
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PRESIDING OFFICER'S INFORMATION REQUEST NO. 3
assumptions below the deleted item(s). This renumbering was evidently
overlooked when the notes were prepared. Please see WP-ParcelPost-
R0601.xls, where all of the changes cited in the question have been made to the
appropriate workpapers. In subpart (@) of the question the second reference to
note 4 is presumed o be erroneous and it 1s believed that nole 5 was the
intended reference. if “note 5" is subslituted for the second reference to “note 4,

the corrections following the second nole 4 reference can be confirmed.
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POIR NO. 4, QUESTION 18

18.  Please refer to USPS-LR-L-82, workbook “WP-ParcelPost xis,” sheet “Inputs.”
Item 20 shows TYBR Fees of $1,095,837; item 21 shows TYAR Fees of
$1,047,000. In contrast, the workpapers supporting USPS-T-39 (USPS-LR-L-
123) show TYBR fees of $1,163,212 (WP-29, cell D64) and TYAR fees of
$1,189,636 (WP-30, cell D65). Please reconcile the foregoing amounts. Also,
regarding USPS-LR-L-82, workbook “WP-ParcelPost.xls,” sheet “Inputs,” the
notes section cites USPS-T-31 as the source for the numbers. Please confirm
the source for these numbers.

RESPONSE:

The correct Parcel Post fee values should be TYBR $1.163.212 and TYAR:
$1,186,311. | understand witness Berkeley (USPS-T-39) will file revised workpapers
consistent with these corrected fees. Witness Berkeley (USPS-T-39) is the correct

source for these fees.
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POIR NO. 4, QUESTION 22

22. Please refer to USPS-[R-L-82, workbook “WP-ParcelPost xIs,” sheet “Leakages
& Surcharges.” Column [B] shows per piece rate differences and surcharges.
Please explain why the Intra-Inter BMC differential. all of the Drop Ship
discounts, and the RBMC nonmachinable surcharge are not rounded to reflect
the actual rate differences, as was done in past rate cases. Please make the
necessary corrections or explain why the rate differences per piece should not be
rounded to reflect the actual rate difference used.

RESPONSE:

In the “Leakages & Surcharges” sheet, a distinction 1s made between items that are final
rate elements (such as the barcode discount and nonmachinable surcharges) and those
that are intermediate quantities. Intermediate quantities, which include the Intra-inter
BMC differential and the drop-ship discount differentials, are combined with other
quantities {(including other intermediate guantities) to form, first, the preliminary rates,
and then, after adjustment, the conslrained, or final, rates. These intermediate
quantities, and even the preliminary rates themselves, receive further mathematical
manipulation before the final rates stage, and are carried forward with more than two
decimal places to avoid introducing potential rounding anomalies along the way. Once
the constrained, or final, rates are produced, they are subjected to the customary whole-
cent rounding constraint. These intermediate quantities, are therefore, not true rate
differences per se, and so are not rounded separately. Inspection of the Postal
Service's workpapers from Docket No. R2001-1 will show that this practice was followed

in that earlier case also.

The RBMC nonmachinable surcharge, also mentioned in the question, is a final rate
element and therefore should have been rounded to whole cents, as were the other

surcharges. Correcting this error has no impact on rates or estimated revenues.
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9. For Bound Printed Matter, the calculation of the value of leakages is based on
the actual discounts. (See USPS-LR-L-41, workbook "R2006_USPS-LR-L.-41 BPM
Spreadsheets.xls,” sheet "Revenue Leakages,” column {E].) This does not seem to be
the case for the other two Package Services, Parcel Post and Media/Library Mail

a. USPS-LR-L-82, workbook "WP-ParcelPost.xis,” sheet “Leakages & Surcharges,”
calculates the value of ieakages and surcharges in column [C] using the unit cost
savings form the “inputs” sheet rather than the actual proposed discounts and
surcharges. Please provide the rationale for using unit savings rather than the
actual proposed discounts and surcharges in the calculation of their value for
Parcel Post. Alternatively, please provide revised workpapers showing the
calculation based on actual discounts and surcharges.

RESPONSE
Please see my response lo UPS/USPS-T37-8, subpart (b}(i).
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PSA/USPS-T37-1. Please refer to WP-PP-29, WP-PP-30, and lines 8 through 13
on page 13 of your testimony where you state, “However, it is necessary to be
cautious in selecting the level of passthroughs for two reasons. First, the
benchmark Intra-BMC rates are already heavily constrained. And, second, the
average weight of a typical PRS piece is less than the average weight of a typical
Intra-BMC (benchmark) piece. As a result, moderated passthroughs are
appropriate to guard against potential overstatement of cost savings in PRS
discounts.”

{a) Please provide the average cost per piece and average revenue per piece
for intra-BMC parcels and your underlying calculations.

(b) Please provide the average weight of a “typical PRS piece” and a “typical
intra-BMC (benchmark) piece.”

(c} Do you believe that the transportation cost savings figures shown in WP-
PP-28 and WPPP-30 are potentially overstated? If so, please expiain why
the transportation cost savings figures are potentially overstated and the
extent to which you believe they may be overstated.

(d) Do you believe that the nontransportation cost savings figures shown 1n
WP-PP-29 and WP-PP-30 are potentiaily overstated? If so. please explain
why the transportation cost savings figures are potentially overstated and
the extent to which you believe they may be overstated.

{e) Please explain the meaning of the “adjustment factor” shown on WP-PP-29
and how it was developed.

RESPONSE

(a) The Postal Service does not develop costs for Parcel Post by rate category.
As part of the rate development process, certain costs are assigned to
individual rate categories and rate cells for recovery. The preliminary rates
for rate cells and rate categories are developed using these assigned costs
and these preliminary rates are subsequently adjusted as needed to
achieve rate design goals such as rate change mitigation. The best one can
do is to estimate these assigned costs by rate category. My per-piece
estimate for these assigned costs for Intra-BMC parcels is $5.36. This figure
was calculated as follows:

o The per-piece element is caiculated by taking the sum of Standard
Size Parcels Non-weight-related Costs ($761,671,513), pius Leakages
($644,462,674), less Surcharges and Other Revenue ($87,049,775)
and dividing this sum by the Number of TYBR Pieces (419,250,650).
All quantities are from the Per Piece Costs and Charges worksheet (in
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workbook WP-ParcelPost.XLS). The result ($3.146) is shown at the
upper left of the attached workbook PSA-USPS-T37-Rnd1.XLS.

¢ The per-piece rate element is added to the weight- and zone-related
assigned cost element, then the Inter-BMC/Intra-BMC cost differential
(from the Inputs worksheet in workbook WP-ParcelPost.XLS) is
subtracted, and the sum is multiplied by the relevant volume from the
TYAR Volumes worksheet (in workbook WP-ParcelPost.XLS). The
results of these cell by cell calculations are shown in the intra-BMC
portion of the attached workbook PSA-USPS-T37-Rnd1.XLS.

¢ The weight- and zone-related elements are calculated by dividing the
preliminary pound charges by weight and zone (from the Preliminary
Pound Charges worksheet in workbook WP-ParcelPost. XLS) by the
Gross Markup Factor (from the Per Piece Costs and Charges
worksheet in workbook WP-ParcelPost. XLS).

s The assigned costs by weight and zone are summed up as shown in
the attached workbook PSA-USPS-T37-Rnd1.XLS and are reported in
the summary table Adjusted TYAR Assigned Costs And Revenues in
cell R11. These costs are then adjusted for Intra-BMC barcode savings
and costs of nonmachinable parcels to obtain intra-BMC Non-Alaska
Assigned Costs, shown in cell $15.

+ The assigned costs total are divided by the non-Alaska TYAR volume
(from the Inputs sheet in workbook WP-ParcelPost. XLS) to produce
the per-piece assigned costs, $5.36.

{ do not know how close these per-piece assigned costs are to Intra-BMC

unit costs.

Average revenue per piece is calculated by dividing the Intra-BMC
Adjusted Revenue for non-Alaska bypass pieces from worksheet TYAR
Revenue Summary (in workbook WP-ParcelPost. XLS), cell F14, by the
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TYAR volume. The value, $5.39, is shown in workbook PSA-USPS-T37-
Rnd1.XLS at cell $19.

The average weight for a PRS piece is 2.6 pcunds. This is obtained by
summing up the postage pounds (weight times volume) in the PRS Billing
Det. Worksheet (in workbook WP-ParcelPos.. XLS) and dividing by the total
non-balloon, non-oversized volume. The comparable average weight for an
Intra-BMC piece obtained from the Intra-BMC Billing Det. worksheet {in
workbook WP-ParcelPost. XLS) is 4.4 pounds.

| have no reason 1o believe that the figures for transportation cost savings
per cubic foot in worksheets WP-PP-29 and WP-PP-30 arke overstated. The
concern expressed in my testimony that was referred to in the preamble to
this question focused on the application of these cost savings numbers in
developing appropriate discounts. As can be seen in WP-PP-29 and WP-
PP-30, the transportation cost savings per cubic foot are multiplied by
average cubic feet per piece figures to obtain average transportation
savings. The average cubic feet per piece figures were obtained from
witness Miller (USPS-T-21) and represent the average cubic feet per piece
for all Parcel Post. Using this figure for both the benchmark (Intra-BMC
parcels) and for PRS should pose no problems of overstating transportation
cost savings if there were convincing evidence that (on average) Intra-BMC
parcels and PRS parcels had the same cubic feet per piece. | do not know
of any studies that have compared the average cubic feet per piece for
intra-BMC and PRS parcels, so | cannot say definitively that PRS pieces are
smaller in cubic volume than Intra-BMC pieces. If that were so, it would be
reasonable to expect that the transportation cost savings would be smaller
than what | have calculated using the average Parcel Post figure. The
average Parcel Post cubic feet per piece for machinable parcels (the great
majority of Intra-BMC parcels fit into this category) is 0.541 cubic feet per
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piece. From worksheet WP-PP-8 (Parcel Post Cube-Weight Relationships),
it can be seen that a piece having this cubic volume would be expected to
weigh between four and five pounds. This comports well with the average
weight for intra-BMC pieces reported in my response to subpart (b} of this
gquestion. At the same time, the average PRS parcel weighs only 2.6
pounds. If both PRS and Intra-BMC parceis have the same density, one
could reasonably conclude that PRS parcels had smaller cubic feet per
piece and that the calculation of transportation cost savings per piece in
worksheets WP-PP-29 and WP-PP-30 was overstated. It might possibly be
true that PRS parcels are much less dense on average than intra-BMC
parcels and the actuatl PRS savings might be comparable to the savings
estimate shown in my workpapers, despite the smaller average weight, but |
have no evidence to support this conclusion. For this reason | consider it
prudent to pass through only a portion of the calculated transportation cost
savings per piece, in case the PRS and Intra-BMC pieces have comparable
densities and the calculated transportation savings per piece overstate the

actual savings.

For the purposes of answering this question, | am assuming that the word
“transportation” in the second sentence of subpart (d) was intended to be
“nontransportation,” as in the first sentence. While | cannot rule out that the
non-transportation cost savings in WP-PP-29 and WP-PP-30 are potentially

overstated, | have no basis to believe that they, in fact, are overstated.

The adjustment factor is used to adjust the amount of the calculated cost
savings per piece that is passed through in developing the proposed rate for
RDU parcels. It was developed judgmentally to balance the needs for
increased revenue from Parcel Post with pricing policy goals, including

increasing the share of savings that is reflected in the discounted price,
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guarding against potential overstatement of savings, and maintaining

reasonable rate relationships.
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PSA/USPS-T37-2. Please refer to WP-PP-39, which calculates the financial
impact of PRS. Please confirm that the Savings Passthrough shown in this
workpaper is calculated by dividing the total revenue difference between PRS
parcels and those parcels if mailed as intra-BMC parcels by the corresponding
total cost difference. if not confirmed, please explain fully.

RESPONSE
Confirmed.
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PSA/USPS-T37-3. Please provide the TYAR average revenue per piece and
TYAR cost per piece for Parcel Select - DDU parceis and expiain how these
figures were developed.

RESPONSE

See the response to PSA/USPS-T37-1a. As described in that response, cost per
piece estimates for Parcel Post rate categories do not exist. Nevertheless,
assigned costs per piece can be estimated for DDU parcels as follows:

¢ The per-piece element is calculated by taking the sum of Standard
Size Parcels Non-weight-refated Costs (3761,671,513), plus Leakages
($644,462,674), less Surcharges and Other Revenue ($87,049,775)
and dividing this sum by the Number of TYBR Pieces (419,250,650).
Al quantities are from the Per Piece Costs and Charges worksheet (in
workbook WP-ParcelPost.XLS). The result ($3.146) is shown at the
upper left of the attached workbook PSA-USPS-T37-Rnd1.XLS.

o The per-piece rate element is added to the weight-related assigned
cost element, then the inter-BMC/intra-BMC, intra-BMC/DBMC and
DBMC/DDU cost differentials (from the Inputs worksheet in workbook
WP-ParcelPost. XLS) are subtracted, and the usage-adjusted Delivery
Confirmation unit cost estimate is added. The sum is then muitiplied by
the relevant volume from the TYAR Volumes worksheet (in workbook
WP-ParcelPost. XLS). The results of these cell by cell caiculations are
shown in the DDU portion of the attached workbook PSA-USPS-T37-
Rnd1.XLS.

¢ The weight-related elements are calculated by dividing the preliminary
pound charges by weight (from the Preliminary Pound Charges
worksheet in workbook WP-ParcelPost. XLS) by the Gross Markup
Factor (from the Per Piece Costs and Charges worksheet in workbook
WP-ParcelPost. XLS).

e The assigned costs by weight are summed up as shown in the
attached workbook PSA-USPS-T37-Rnd1.XLS and are reported in the
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summary table Adjusted TYAR Assigned Costs And Revenues in cell
R21. These costs are then adjusted using the Parcel Select Revenue
Adjustment Factor (from the Inputs sheet in workbook WP-
ParcelPost.XLS) and the adjusted figure is reported in cell $23.

¢ The assigned costs total are divided by the DDU TYAR volume (from
the Inputs sheet in workbook WP-ParcelPost. XLS) to produce the per-
piece assigned costs, $1.19.

| do not know how close these per-piece assigned costs are to DDU unit
costs.

Average revenue per piece is calculated by muitiplying the calculated
DDU revenue from the worksheet TYAR Calculated Revenue, cell S86 (in
workbook WP-ParcelPost.XLS) by the Parcel Select revenue adjustment
factor (from the Inputs sheet in workbook WP-ParcelPost. XLS) and
dividing the adjusted revenue by the TYAR DDU volume. The value,
$1.70, is shown in workbook PSA-USPS-T37-Rnd1.XLS at cell S28.
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PSAJUSPS-T37-4. Please refer to WP-PP-24, WP-PP-27, and lines 19 through
22 on page 7 of your testimony where you state, “All Parcel Select DBMC
machinable parcels will be required to be barcoded. The cost savings from
barcoding will be reflected in the rates instead of being separately stated.”

(a)

(b)

(c)

Please confirm that the percentage rate changes shown for DBMC parcels
in WP-PP-24 and WP-PP-27 compare the preliminary rates and constrained
rates for barcoded DBMC parcels with the current rates for nonbarcoded
DBMC parcels. If not confirmed, please expiain fully.

Please confirm that the percentage difference between the preliminary and
constrained rates and the current rate for barcoded DBMC parcels is larger
than shown in WP-PP-24 and WP-PP-27_ If not confirmed, please explain
fully.

When you were designing Parcel Post rates, were you aware that the
average rate increase for barcoded DBMC parcels was larger than
estimated in your rate design spreadsheet?

RESPONSE

(&) Since, in my proposal, eligibility for DBMC rates will require barcoding, all

(b)

()

DMBC pieces are assumed to be barcoded, and the savings for barcoding
of machinable parcels were subtracted when the rates in WP-PP-24 and
WP-PP-27 were developed. The current rates used for comparison did not
have the barcode discount in them, so the statement can be confirmed.

it can be confirmed that if a piece paying my p-oposed DBMC rates were
compared with a machinable piece with a barcode paying current DBMC
rates, the percentage change for that piece would be larger than those
shown in WP-PP-24 and WP-PP-27.

The proposed percentage rate changes were developed in a way that
compared base DBMC pieces before and after rates. Currently, the base
DBMC piece does not require a barcode. Under my proposais, DEMC
pieces will be required to have a barcode or pay Intra-BMC rates, so the
relevant base piece must bear a barcode. No explicit account was taken of
the fact that currently-barcoded DBMC pieces would experience higher
percentage increases than shown in WP-PP-27 which contains my
proposed rates. It should be noted that the difference between the

increases experienced by a currently barcoded piece and a currently non-
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barcoded piece (what is shown in WP-PP-27) would be 1.6 percentage
points or less. This difference is rather small compared to the rate
adjustments proposed between the preliminary DBMC rates and my
proposed constrained DBMC rates.



)
poa
to
()

RESPONSE OF POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS KIEFER TO
INTERROGATORIES OF THE PARCEL SHIPPERS ASSOCIATION

PSA/USPS-T37-5. Please refer to lines 24 through 25 on page 4 of your
testimony where you state, “over 50 percent of Parcel Select is DDU-entered,”
WP-PP-1 and WP-PP-6.

(a) Please confirm that, in FY 2005, 75 percent of Parcel Select volume was
DDU-entered. If not confirmed, please provide the correct figure.

(b) Please confirm that you estimate that, in the Test Year Before Rates, 75
percent of Parcel Select (excluding PRS) will be DDU-entered. if not
confirmed, please provide the correct figure.

(c) Please confirm that you estimate that, in the Test Year After Rates, 76
percent of Parcel Select (excluding PRS) will be DDU-entered. If not
confirmed, please provide the correct figure.

RESPONSE

(a) Confirmed, if PRS volumes are excluded. If PRS volumes are included in
Parcel Select, DDU’s share was approximately 73%.

{b) Confirmed.

(c) Confirmed.
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PSA/USPS-T37-6. Please refer to USPS-T-37, WP-PP-1 and WP-PP-27.

(a) Please confirm that, in FY 2005, 68.52% of DBMC parcels were barcoded. If
not confirmed, please provide the correct figure.

(b) Please confirm that, in TYAR, you estimate that 100% of DBMC parcels will
be barcoded. If not confirmed, please provide the correct figure.

(c) Please provide your best estimate of the TYAR cost savings that will result
from the increase in the proportion of DBMC parcels that will be barcoded and
provide your undertying calculations.

(d) Please confirm that the cost savings specified in subpart (c) of this
interrogatory have not been incorporated into the TYAR costs for the Parcel Post
subclass. If not confirmed, please explain your response fully.

(e) Assume that, in TYAR, the proportion of DBMC-entered parcels that are
barcoded remains at 68.52%. How much higher would your estimate of TYAR
Parcel Post revenue be? Please explain your calculations fully.

(f) Please confirm that the additional revenue specified in subpart (e) of this
interrogatory has not been incorporated into the TYAR revenues for the Parcel
Post subclass. If not confirmed, please explain your response fully.

(g) Please explain the basis of your assumption that, in TYAR, all Parce! Post
pieces entered at the DBMC will be barcoded.

RESPONSE

a. | can confirm that 68.52% of DBMC parcels received the barcode discount
in FY 2005. While it is reasonable to assume that most DBMC barcoded
pieces would claim the discount, we do not have data that specifically
counts barcoded pieces as opposed to pieces claiming the discount.

b.  Not confirmed. In the TYAR | am assuming that all machinable pieces will
be barcoded. Since a small percentage of DBMC pieces are nonmachinable
the ratio of assumed barcoded pieces to total DBMC pieces is actually
93.6%.

c. Raising the barcoded percentage from 68.5% to 93.6% of DBMC pieces
would mean about 14 million more pieces would be barcoded in the TYAR:
(56,301,666 DBMC pieces * (0.936 — 0.685) ). For the purposes of
responding to this question | will assume that the additional barcoded

pieces save three cents per piece, the cost savings estimated by witness
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Miller. Using this figure the estimated cost savings is about $424 thousand
(14,131,666 * $0.03).

Confirmed.

| do not know. The 14 million pieces in question would pay a range of Intra-
BMC rates. | do not know how these pieces would be distributed among the
various Intra-BMC rates.

it can be confirmed that no additional revenue arising from pieces moving
from DBMC to Intra-BMC rates because of failure to barcode is included in
the TYAR revenue calculation. No such migration of these pieces is
assumed.

Please see my response to subparts (e) and (f). The assumption that no
pieces would migrate was a simplifying assumption for revenue calculation
purposes. My assumption is reasonable in light of two facts. First, | have no
studies that indicate how many pieces would migrate from DBMC to Intra-
BMC rate schedules as a resuit of failing to meet the barcoding requirement.
Moreover, if that number were known, | do not have information that
adequately describes what DBMC rates these pieces currently pay, and
what Intra-BMC rates they would pay. Second, | believe it is reasonable to
assume that few, if any, DBMC mailers would choose to pay higher intra-

BMC rates rather than affix barcodes to their parcels.
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PSA/USPS-T37-7. Please refer to USPS-LR-L-59, Attachment 14A, “Shift Other
Special Services Cost to Respective Subclass” and USPS-T-37, WP-PP-1.
(a) Please confirm that the Parcel Post Delivery Confirmation Finai Adjustment
increases TYAR Parcel Post costs by $39.3 million. If not confirmed, please
explain fully.
{b) Please confirm that the $39.3 miilion was calcuiated by multiplying 267.83
million TYAR pieces by a unit cost of $.1467 per piece. If not confirmed, please
explain fully.
{c) In the test year, for how many TYAR Parcel Select pieces do you expect no-
fee delivery confirmation to be used? Please explain your calculation.
(d) Taking into account your response to subpart (c) of this interrogatory, please
provide your best estimate of how much the Parcel Post Delivery Confirmation
Final Adjustment should increase TYAR Parcel Post costs. Please provide your
underlying calculations.

RESPONSE

a. Redirected to witness Page (USPS-T-23).
b. Redirected to witness Page (USPS-T-23).
c. 195,291,269 (= 80% * 244,114,086 (TYAR drop-shipped volume))
d. Redirected to witness Page (USPS-T-23).
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PSA/USPS-T37-8. Please refer to USPS-T-37, WP-PP-33, 34, 37, and 40.
Please also refer to lines 4 through 8 on page 20 of your testimony where you
state, “As discussed in Postal Service witness Scherer's (USPS-T-33) testimony,
some Priority Mail pieces are expected to leave the subclass entirely to avoid
dim-weighted pricing. He estimates that approximately 2.7 million Priority Mail
pieces will migrate. Based on the mail characteristics of these pieces, | assume
about a third of pieces leaving Priority Mail will migrate to Inter-BMC Parcel
Post.”

{a) Please confirm that you project that the Postal Service's Priority Mail Dim-
Weight Pricing proposal will result in approximately 877 thousand pieces
migrating from Priority Mail to Inter-BMC Parcel Post. If not confimed, please
explain fully.

(b) Please confirm that you project that the pieces specified in subpart (a) of this
interrogatory will cost a total of $17.3 million in the Test Year.

(c) Please confirm that you project that the pieces specified in subpart (a) of this
interrogatory will generate approximately $10 million in revenue.

(d) Please confirm that excluding the costs and revenues for “Dim-Wt Migrants”
would increase the TYAR Parcel Post cost coverage from 115.2% to 116.0%. If
not confirmed, please explain fully.

(e) Please explain why you assumed that one-third of the pieces leaving Priority
Mail will migrate to Parce! Post.

(f) Please explain why you assumed that the pieces specified in your response to
subpart (e) of this interrogatory will be mailed at Inter-BMC rates.

RESPONSE

a Confirmed.
b. Confirmed.

Confirmed.

o

d. | can confirm that excluding $17.3 million from Parcel Post TYAR costs and
$10.0 million from Parcel Post TYAR revenue yields a cost coverage ratio of
116.0%.

e. Witness Scherer (USPS-T-33) projected that approximately 2.7 million
pieces currently paying Priority Mail rates would leave Priority Mail in the
test year to avoid dimensional weight pricing. It is reasonable to assume
that some fraction of those pieces wouid migrate to Parcel Post to avoid the

higher pricing being proposed for Priority Mail. We do not know what the
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actual fraction will be, so for net revenue calculation purposes, an
assumption was made that it would be approximately one-third. We do not
have any mail studies that suppért this assumption.

It is my understanding that many of the pieces that would qualify for
dimensional weight pricing are currently entered at retail, rather than in buik.
It is also my understanding that witness Scherer is proposing dimensional
weight pricing only for pieces falling into Zones 5 through 8. Except for Zone

5, only Inter-BMC has retail rates that cover these distant zones.
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PSA/USPS-T37-9. Please refer to USPS-LR-L-59, ‘Summary of Final
Adiustments by Cost Segment ($000s).’

(a) Please confirm that withess Page estimates that a change in the Parcel Post
mail mix between the Base Year and TYAR will increase Parcel Post costs by
$32 million. If not confirmed, please provide the correct figure.

(b) Please explain how Parcel Post mail mix will change between the Base Year
and TYAR and why this change will occur.

(c)} By how much did these same Parcel Post mail mix changes increase TYAR
revenue?

RESPONSE

a.

b.

Redirected to witness Page (USPS-T-23).

Between the Base Year and the Test Year After Rates, Inter-BMC Parcel
Post is expected to gain two percentage points in volume share and Parcel
Select is expected to lose volume share (approximately one percentage
point for each component of Parcel Select). Intra-BMC is expected to
maintain its share. | understand from witness Thress that the principal
driving factors in determining the different growth paths for Parcel Post rate
categories between the Base Year and the Test Year After Rates are the
own-price elasticities and changes in rates.

| have not made such a calculation, since it was unnecessary for calculating
TYAR revenues. The TYAR volume forecast already includes the mail mix

changes.
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PSA/USPS-T37-10. Please refer to your response to PSA/USPS-T37-1(a) where
you estimate per piece “assigned costs” for Intra-BMC parcels of $5.36 and
calculate an average revenue per piece for Intra-BMC parcels of $5.39.

(a) Please confirm that your best estimate of the TYAR average unit contribution
of Intra-BMC parcels is 3 cents. If not confirmed, please provide the correct figure
and provide all of your underlying calculations.

(b) Is the unit contribution figure specified in your response to subpart (a) of this
interrogatory also your best estimate of the average TYAR unit contribution of
RDU parcels if mailed as intra-BMC parceis? If not, please provide your best
estimate of the TYAR unit contribution of RDU parcels if mailed as intra-BMC
parcels and provide all of your undertying calculations.

(c) Is the unit contribution figure specified in your response to subpart (a) of this
interrogatory aiso your best estimate of the average TYAR unit contribution of
RBMC parcels if mailed as intra-BMC parcels? If not, please provide your best
estimate of the TYAR unit contribution of RBMC parcels if mailed as intra-BMC
parcels and provide all of your underiying calcutations.

RESPONSE

a. Not confirmed. Please see my response to PSA/USPS-T37-1(a). In that
response | pointed out that the Postal Service does not have costs by rate
category (i.e. Intra-BMC Parcel Post). Rather, for the purposes of
developing rates, | assign costs to various categories. | do not know
whether these assigned unit costs can produce reliable estimates of “per-
piece contribution” when subtracted from estimates of per-piece revenues. |
have not made any estimates of TYAR average unit contributions for intra-
BMC Parcel Post.

b-c. Please see my response to subpart (a), which applies to RDU, RBMC and

all other rate categories of Parcei Post as well.



RESPONSE OF POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS KIEFER TO

INTERROGATORIES OF THE PARCEL SHIPPERS ASSOCIATION

PSA/USPS-T37-11. Please refer to WP-ParceiPost-R0601 xls, WP-PP-39.
For the purpose of this interrogatory, please assume that WP-ParcelPost-
R0601.xIs accurately calculates all PRS cost savings.

Table 1. Per-Piece PRS Financial Summary

Cost Savings | Revenue Reduction | increase in Contribution
1) (2] BiI=1)-2
RDU $4.23 $2.47 $1.76
RBMC $2.10 $1.15 $0.95

(a) Please confirm that Table 1 above accurately summarizes the TYAR per-
piece financial impact of PRS. If not confirmed, please update Table 1 with the
correct figures and provide your underlying calculations.

{b) Please confirm that the TYAR unit contribution of PRS parcels can be
calculated by summing the unit contribution specified in your response to

PSA/USPS-T37-10(a) and the figures in the “Increase in Contribution” column in
Table 1. If not confirmed, please provide your best estimate of the TYAR unit
contribution of RDU and RBMC parcels and your underlying calculations.

RESPONSE

a. With the qualification that the PRS cost savings estimates in WP-

ParcelPost-R0601.xls are assumed to be an accurate reflection of the

actual savings, the numbers in the table can be confirmed.

b. Not confirmed. Please see my responses to PSA/USPS-T37-1(a) and

PSA/USPS-T37-10. | have not made any estimates of TYAR total average

unit contributions for Intra-BMC, RDU or RBMC Parcel Post rate categories.
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PSAJ/USPS-T37-12. Please refer to your response to PSA/USPS-T37-1(c).
Please provide your best estimate of the extent to which the per-piece
transportation cost savings figures in WP-PP-29 and WP-PP-30 may have been
overstated and provide your underlying calculations.

RESPONSE

Please see my response to PSA/USPS-T37-1(c). in that response | attempted to
make clear that | do not know whether the per-piece transportation cost savings
in WP-PP-29 and WP-PP-30 are overstated or not. Since | do not know whether
there is actual, or even highly probable, overstatement of unit costs, | have not
attempted to measure the size of any potential overstatement. The thrust of my
response was to point out that there was good reason for the Postal Service's

cautious approach when pricing Parcel Return Service pieces.
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PSA/USPS-T37-13. Please refer to your response to PSA/USPS-T36-8 and your
workpaper WP-PP-29. Please confirm that in your calculation of the average revenue of
PRS pieces if mailed as Intra-BMC parcels, the denominator should have used the PRS
TYBR volume.

RESPONSE:

Confirmed. Since the calculation of total “benchmark revenue” used PRS TYBR
volumes, the divisor used to produce the average revenue should have been PRS
TYBR total volume, not PRS TYAR volume as shown in WP-PP-29. Correcting this
error reduces the estimated unit revenue of PRS pieces if mailed at Intra-BMC rates
from $4.79 to $3.93. To maintain the proposed price of $2.32 per piece the “Adjustment
Factor” (i.e. passthrough) shown in WP-PP-29 would have to be%gercent, rather
than 78.5 percent. Despite this change in the reference revenue and the resulting

effective passthrough, | believe that my original proposail is still a reasonable rate for

RDU pieces.
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UPS/USPS-T37-1. Provide the back-up calculations for each of the rate increase
figures cited on page 22 of USPS-T-37 in Section VII., Financial Impact of Rates.

RESPONSE

The calculations supporting the overall percentage change in line 3 are in WP-
PP-37. Calculations for the remaining percentage changes by rate categary can
be found in the two attached workbooks, UPS-USPS-T37-1 WORKSHEET-A xis
and UPS-USPS-T37-1 WORKSHEET-B xls in the sheets with the tab titles "Rale
Class Increases” and “"Constant Mix increases.” The "A” version of the worksheet
assumes migration of pieces from Priority Mail 1o avoid dim weight pricing; the
“B” version assumes no migration. The onginal calculations supporting the
percentage changes on page 22 of my testimony were developed before | made
some small corrections to the workpapers. These corrections were cited in my
testimony in footnote 10 on page 19. The attached workbooks therefore were
updated to contain those corrections, plus several further minor corrections made
in response to POIR 3. In addition, | discovered and corrected an inconsistency
in WP-PP-13 in the PRS Adjusted Revenue. In WP-PP-13 (Adjusted TYBR
Revenue) the PRS revenue was multiplied by the Parcel Select revenue
adjustment factor, whereas in WP-PP-36 the TYAR PRS revenue was not
multiplied by the same factor. In the attached workbooks, neither calculation
applies the Parcel Select revenue adjustment factor since | am not persuaded
that this adjustment is appropriate for PRS pieces. As a result of my corrections
to the original (i.e. pre-filing) workpaper~ several of the percentage changes
reported in my testimony on page 22 change slightly. The 13.2 percent figure in
line 10 should become 13.3 percent; the 14.0 percent figure in line 11 should
become 14.1 percent; and the 13.1 percent figure in line 18 should become 14.0

percent.
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UPS/USPS-T37-2. Refer to library reference USPS-LR-L-82, WP-PP-1, in this
docket, and Docket No. R2001-1, USPS-T-33, WP-PP-1. Confirm that OMAS
volume is no longer being separately identified for inter-BMC parcels in the
R2006-1 Parcel Post rate design. If confirmed. explain the reason and explain
how OMAS volume is being treated in Postal Service rates. if not confirmed.
explain in detail.

RESPONSE

Confirmed that OMAS volume is no longer separately idenlified in the inter-BMC
rate design. OMAS volume is no longer separately reported in the RPW or bithng
determinants data. OMAS volume is combined with private sector volume, so
that, for example, the inter-BMC volumes. revenues and weights thal are
reported contain data for both private sector and OMAS pieces. inter-BMC
OMAS pieces pay the applicable Inter-BMC rates. so that all voiume or revenue
figures that are reported for the Inter-BMC category either in RPW or in my

workpapers are composites of private and OMAS pieces.



2136

RESPONSE OF POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS KIEFER TO
INTERROGATORIES OF UNITED PARCEL SERVICE

UPS/USPS-T37-3. Refer to library reference USPS-LR-L-82, WP-PP-1 and WP-
PP-20.

(a) Confirm that the cost of no-additional-fee electronic Delivery
Confirmation for Parcel Select is used to arrive at the $0.107 per piece
“Additional Parcel Select Per-Piece Charge” in line [y] of WP-PP-20 via the
following steps:

1. Electronic Delivery Confirmation Unil Cost of $0.1073 per piece;

2. multiplied by 286,738,488 Parcel Select TYBR pieces;

3. multiplied by 80%, the “Share of Parcel Select Using No-Fee
Delivery Confirmation;”

4. mulliplied by 124.2% Gross Markup Factor (including
contingency}),

5. divided by 286,738,488 Parcel Select TYBR pieces.

If any step is not confirmed, explain in detail.

(b)  Confirm that the source listed on WP-PP-1 for the Eleclronic
Delivery Confirmation Unit Cost of $0.1073 per piece on line [17k] is "Estimaled
value.” If not confirmed, explain in detail.

(c) Confirm that the source listed on WP-PP-1 for the "Share of Parcel
Select Using No-Fee Detivery Confirmation™ on line [13] is “Assumption.” If not
confirmed, explain in detail.

(d)  Refer to library reference USPS-LR-L-59, Attachment 4D and
Attachment 14A, page 3.

i. Confirm that the cost of no-additional-fee electronic Delivery
Confirmation for Package Services applied in the final
adjustments process is $0.1467 per piece per Attachment 4D,
“Volume Variable Costs Summary — Delivery Confirmation TY
2008(BR).” If not confirmed, explain in detail.

ii. Confirm that in the final adjustment process in Altachment 14A,
“Shift Other Special Services Cost to Respective Subclass,”
this cost of $0.1467 per piece is appiied to 100% of the Parcel
Select volume. If not confirmed, explain in detail.

(e) Confirm that if the cost of electronic Delivery Confirmation is
$0.1467 per piece and is applied to 100% of the Parcel Select volume, then the
“Additional Parcel Select Per-Piece Charge” in WP-PP-20 would increase from
$0.107 per piece to $0.1822 per piece, all else equal. If not confirmed, explain in
detail.

RESPONSE

a. Confirmed.
bh. Confirmed.

c. Confirmed.
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Redirected to witness Page (USPS-T-23).
Confirmed.
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UPS/USPS-T37-4. Refer to library reference USPS-LR-L-82, WP-PP-33 and
WP-PP-34.

(a}  Confirm that 33% of the Prionty Mail volume lost due to the
commencement of dimensional weight pricing is assumed to migrate to Inter-
BMC Parcel Post. If confirmed, provide the source for this assumption. If not
confirmed, explain in detail.

(by  Confirm that 877,033 Priority Mail pieces are assumed to migrate to
Inter-BMC Parcel Post in the TYAR, yielding additional Parcel Post revenue of
$9,976,403. if not confirmed, explain in detail

(c) Refer to library reference USPS-LR-L-59, Attachment 14A, page
18. Confirm that the migrating pieces yield $17,337.698 of additional Parcel Post
costs in the TYAR. If not confirmed, explain in detail.

{d) Provide and describe in detaii all studies and analyses regarding
the likely loss of Priority Mail volume due lo the commencement of dimensional
weight pricing, the likely migration of this volume to Parcel Post, or the likely
migration of this volume to other Postal Service services or to Poslal Service
competitors.

RESPONSE

a. Confirmed. The source for this assumption is a judgment, made n
consuttation with witness Scherer (USPS-T-33), that a not insignificant
amount of the volume leaving Priority Mail will migrate to Parcel Post
(despite the loss in service standard), if only owing to the convenience of
continuing to be able to tender a parcel at the post office retail window. On
the other hand, | understand from witness Scherer that Priority Mail without
dim-weighting is significantly lower-priced than the dim-weighted 2- and 3-
day air competition. This has no doubt caused Priority Mail — and the
Postal Service — to attract many parcels that it otherwise would not have
attracted. Once Priority Mail dim weight pricing is implemented it is
reasonable to believe that many of these parcels are susceptible to leaving
the Postal Service altogether. Hence | am assuming that 33 percent would
migrate to Parcel Post with 67 percent going elsewhere. For Parcel Post,

the assumption was made that 100 percent of the migrating volume would
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pay Inter-BMC rates because Priority Mail dim-weighting will apply only in
Zones 5 - 8, where there is very little Intra-BMC Parce! Post volume.

I can confirm the volume estimate. Due to minor corrections to my
workpapers (cited in footnote 10 to my testimony) the prices in the
workpapers differ in a few cells from the Inter-BMC prices that | am
proposing. Using the proposed prices {(rather than the prices in the
workbook), the migrating pieces are estimated to generate additional
revenue of $9,975,465.

! can confirm that this figure appeared in USPS-LR-L-58 Due to a
correction in my workpapers in response o PCIR 3, my best estimate of the
additional cost is now $17,303,502.

The likely loss of Priority Mail volume due to the implementation of
dimensional weight pricing is documented in witness Scherer's USPS-LR-L-
120. No study has been conducted on where this volume may migrate.

Instead, | made the assumption discussed in subpart {a) above.
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UPS/USPS-T37-5. Refer to library reference USPS-LR-L-82.

(a)  Confirm that in the Parcel Post rate design you have applied a
100% passthrough for DBMC-entry, DSCF-entry, and DDU-entry worksharing
savings. If confirmed, explain why a 100% passthrough was selected. |f not
confirmed, explain in detail, provide the passthrough(s) thal you have applied,
and explain why you seiected these passthrough(s).

(b}  Confirm that, assuming a 100% passthrough of worksharing
savings, the contribution per piece for workshared categories of Parcel Post in
the preliminary rates should be the same as that of the non-workshared
categories from which the workshared categones’ preliminary rates are derived.
If not confirmed, explain in detail.

RESPONSE

a. | can confirm that my rate design passes through 100 percent of the non-
transportation cost differentials for DBMC, DSCF and DDU rate categories
in developing the preliminary rates for these rate categories. Since this
portion of my rate design was focused on developing preliminary rates, |
saw no need to alter the full passthrough of the cost differentials. Later
adjustments were made to the preliminary rates to achieve the final
proposed rates. These adjustments were made to the rates themselves, and
not to components like the cost differentials. | do not have comparable
“worksharing savings” figures for transportation costs, so transportation
costs were not treated in the same way.

b. Please see my response lo UPS/USPS-T33-27 in Docket No. R2001-1. The
reasoning, which in that response applied tQ DDU Parcel Select, also

applies to DSCF and DBMC Parcel Select as well.
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UPS/USPS-T37-7. Refer to library reference USPS-LR-L-82.

(a)  Confirm that the “pound charges™ by rate category derived in
workpaper WP-PP-21 include the transportation charges by rate category
derived in workpaper WP-PP-15. If not confirmed. explain in detail.

(b) Confirm that the pound charges denved in workpaper WP-PP-21
include a markup, through application of a markup taclor of 123%, 1o the
underlying costs. Hf not confirmed, explain in detatl

{c) Confirm that DBMC destinalion-entry parcels, DSCF destination-
entry parcels, and DDU destination-entry parcels represent workshared rate
categories of Parcel Post. If not confirmed. explain in detail.

{(d) Confirm that it is standard Postal Rate Commission practice in
deriving worksharing category rates 1o deduct the passed-through worksharing
cost savings from the rate assigned to the non-workshared rate category. If not
confirmed, explain in detail and provide references to where the Commission in
its Opinions and Recommended Decisions has accepted alternative practices

{e)  Confirm that deriving preliminary rates by marking up the
underlying transportation costs for each individual non-workshared rate category
and each workshared rate category resulls in transportation workshanng cos!
avoidances being marked up. If not confirmed, explain in detail

(f) Confirm that the Commission exphcitly stated in its Opinion and
Recommended Decision in Docket No. R87-1, at 489, that Parcel Post
transportation worksharing cost differences should not be marked up in denving
Parcel Post rates. If not confirmed, explain in detail.

(g) Explain in detail why you have chosen to markup transportation
worksharing cost avoidances in your derivation of Parcel Post rates.

(h) Confirm that deriving preliminary rates by marking up the
underlying transportation costs for each individual non-workshared rate category
and each workshared rate category results in conltributions per piece for
workshared rate categories that are less than the contributions per piece for non-
workshared rate categories.

RESPONSE

a. | can confirm that the preliminary pound charges derived in WP-PP-21
include the transportation charges by rate category derived in WP-PP-15.

b.  Confirmed for the preliminary pound charges in workpaper WP-PP-21.

c. Confirmed.

d. Please see my responses to UPS/USPS-T33-17 subparts (d) and (h} in
Docket No. R2001-1.
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Please see my response to UPS/USPS-T33-17 subpart (f) in Docket No.
R2001-1. if by “being marked up” the question means applying markup that
is equivalent to the markup that would be applied to unit costs if a wholly
top-down rate setting approach were used, then the slatement is not
confirmed. Please see my response to UPS/USPS-T33-17 subpart {(e) in
Docket No. R2001-1. | can confirm thal the approach | have followed does
result in transportation costs for different rate categories receiving a markup,
thereby resulting in the cost differences between the rate categories also
being marked up.

Please see my response to UPS/USPS-T33-17 subpart (g) in Dockel No.
R2001-1.

Please see my response to UPS/USPS-T33-17 subpart {(h) in Docketl No
R2001-1. It should be borne in mind thal these markup calculations are
performed to achieve the preliminary charges, and that this is just the
starting point for developing the final proposed rates. Please see also my
responses to UPS/USPS-T33-42 subpart (¢} and UPS/USPS-T33-41, both
in Docket No. R2001-1.

Not confirmed. Please see my response to PSA/USPS-T37-10 in this
docket. Since CRA costs for Parcel Post are measured only at the subclass
tevel, all cosis below the subclass level are assigned, using reasonable
methodologies, for the purpose of developing rates. As | pointed out in my
response {o the PSA question, | do not know how precisely these assigned
costs correspond to actual costs on a rate category basis. For this reason, |
do not know the rate category level unit contributions actually produced by
my preliminary rates, and | cannot confirm that the unit contributions for the

inter-BMC and Intra-BMC rate categories are higher than the unit
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contributions for the Parcel Select rate categories. In any event, lthe
preliminary rates are not the final rates, and differences or lack of
differences between rate category unit contributions in the preliminary rates
are likely to change between the preliminary rates and the rates that are
ultimately proposed. To illustrate the danger of trying to infer actual urit
contributions by performing calculalions on my assigned cosls, please see
PSA/USPS-T37-10, subpart (a) as well as my response. Based on assigned
costs, PSA has inferred that the “average umit contnbution of Intra-BMC
parcels is 3 cents.” While | do not confirm that amount, consider that
statement in conjunction with UPS’s assertion in this question that my
methodology will lead to the circumstance where “contributions per piece for
workshared rate categories ... are iess than the contributions per prece for
non-workshared rate categories.” If UPS's and PSA's assertions were both
true, then the unit contributions for all of Parcel Select (as well as Intra-BMC
Parcel Post) would be less than three cents per iece. The TYAR volume
for all of these pieces is 290 million pieces, or more than 78 percent of
Parcel Post subclass mail. Multiplied by three cents per piece the total
“contribution” from Intra-BMC plus Parcel Select would be less than $9
million. What, then, accounts for the remaining $181 million in Parcel Post
contribution? It is unrealistic to conclude that Inter-BMC rate pieces (78
million in TYAR) pay on average $2.31 per piece in contribution ($181
mittion divided by 78 million pieces) while all the other rate categories
contribute less than three cents per piece. | can only conciude that PSA's
and UPS's attempts to infer unit contributions at the rate category level run

the risk of .roducing seriously misleading results.
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UPS/USPS-T37-8. Refer to library reference USPS-LR-L-82, WP-PP-19 and
WP-PP-20.

(a) Explain in detail your reasoning for deducting each of the following

items in deriving the per piece charge:

i. Other Revenue —- Alaska Bypass Revenue;

ii. Other Revenue — Combination Enclosure Revenue;

fi. Other Revenue — Pickup Revenue; and

iv. Excess Cosls of Oversized and Balloon Parcels.

(b)  Explain why the unit costs for the Non-Machinable surcharges were
used to arrive at the “Surcharges” to deduct in the calculation of the per
piece charge.

i Explain why the proposed rates for the Non-Machinable
surcharges were nol used to arrive at the “Surcharges™ to
deduct.

il. Confirm that using the unit costs is a change from the Postal
Service's melthodology used in Docket No. R2000-1. If
confirmed, explain why the change was made. If not
confirmed, exptain in detail.

RESPONSE

d.

The per piece charge is the basic charge per piece for the benchmark piece.
a non-workshared Inter-BMC machinable piece that is not a balloon or
oversized piece. The excess costs of balloon and oversized pieces is
covered by the “extra” charges for these pieces and so i1s not included in
developing the basic charge per piece. Similarly the other revenue sources
are deducted because they are separately recovered and so should not be
part of the basic charge per piece (otherwise they would be double-
recovered).

(i) In general, my approach views the development of the preliminary rates
as reflecting the rates that would obtain before any mitigation or policy
adjustments are made. For this reason | use the cost differences (i.e.
assume a 100 percent passthrough), rather than impose an a priori
passthrough adjustment, when | develop the preliminary rates. This puts all

of the revenue shifts caused by rate change mitigation and other policy



2145

RESPONSE OF POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS KIEFER TO
INTERROGATORIES OF UNITED PARCEL SERVICE

adjustments (such as, maintaining the Priority Mail / Inter-BMC and DBMC-
Intra-BMC rate differentials) on the same footing when the preliminary rates
are adjusted to obtain the final proposed rates.

(ii) | can confirm that a different approach was followed in Docket No.
R2000-1. Unless one knows in advance whether, or lo whal degree, the
nonmachinable costs wiil be mitigated in the finat rates, | think my preferred

approach is better for the reasons | cited in subpart (i), above.
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UPS/USPS-T37-9. Refer to library reference USPS-LR-L-82, WP-PP-1 and
WPPP-19.

(a) Confirm that Alaska Bypass mail volume in the TYBR is 1,671,068 pieces.
If not confirmed, explain in detail. Alsg, provide lhe RPW dala used to
calculate this figure per note "6e".

(b) Confirm that Alaska Bypass revenue is assumed to be 12.081% of Non-
Alaska intra-BMC revenue. If not confirmed, explain in detail. Also, provide
the RPW data used to calculate this figure per note "5a-b”.

{c) Confirm that Alaska Bypass revenue in the TYBR is calcuiated to be
$19,048,805. If not confirmed, expiain in detail.

(d) Confirm that the TYBR cost for Alaska non-preferential air is $1,063.000
{per library reference USPS-LR-L-89. Attachment B, page 8, row 3). If not
confirmed, explain in detail.

{e) Explain in detail the reasons for the significant differential between the
Alaska Bypass revenue that you estimate and the cost for Alaska non-
preferential air.

RESPONSE

a.

Confirmed. The calculation supporting the specific figure, 1,671,068, 1s
shown in WP- PP-1, cell D29. It is the product of the TYBR total Intra-BMC
volume forecast and the share of Intra-BMC pieces that are “Alaska Bypass™
pieces, 4.627%, shown in cell D30. This ratio is obtained by dividing the
RPW number of Alaska Bypass Intra-BMC pieces in the base year
{1,578,095) by the RPW total Intra-BMC volume in the base year
(34,107,784).

Confirmed. This ratio is obtained by dividing the RPW revenue from Alaska
Bypass Intra-BMC pieces in the base year ($17,085,340) by the RPW total
Intra-BMC non-Alaska revenue in the base year ($141,428,465).
Confirmed.

Not confirmed. Please see witness * ‘ayes’ response to UPS/USPS-T25-6.
I understand from witness Mayes that the corrected Alaska non-preferential
air costs will be significantly higher than the $1 million figure mentioned in
the question. This will narrow the difference between the Alaska Bypass

revenue and the Alaska non-preferential air costs. | should note that the
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question sets up a comparison between one companent of costs and total
revenues for a single mail category. A more reasonable comparison would
be between tolal unit costs for Alaska Bypass mail and unit revenues. As |
have pointed out in earlier responses to UPS interrogatonies, the Poslal
Service does not have cost information that is designed to adequately
caicuiate unit costs and contributions below the subclass level. This
reservation was expressed with respect to rate calegories like Intra-BMC
Parcel Post. it applies even more strongly 1o sub-components of Intra-BMC,
like Alaska Bypass mail. | do not know what the difference i1s between

Alaska Bypass revenue and actuai Alaska Bypass total costs.
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UPS/USPS-T37-10. Refer to your response to PSA/USPS-T37-1 and
PSA/USPS-T37-3. Provide the TYAR average cost per piece and TYAR average
revenue per piece, and your underlying calculations, for:

(a) Inter-BMC parcels;

(b) DBMC parcels;

(c) DSCF parcels; and

(d) Intra-BMC Alaska Bypass parcels.

RESPONSE

(a)(c) Please see UPS-USPS-T37-10.XLS. attached. Please also see my
responses o PSA/USPS-T37-1a) and PSA/USPS-T37-3, in particular,
the reservations | expressed that these costs are assigned costs and that |
do not know how close these assigned costs are o the actual costs of
inter-BMC, DMBC and DSCF parcels.

(d) The TYAR average revenue per piece for Alaska Bypass pieces i1s $13 41
(= $21,239,491 divided by 1,583,409 pieces). | do not know the average

cost for these pieces and have not developed an assigned cost for them.
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RESPONSE OF POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS KIEFER TO
INTERROGATORIES OF UNITED PARCEL SERVICE

UPS/USPS-T37-11. Refer to your response to POIR No. 3, Question 19(b).
(a) What was the share of Non-PRS Parcel Select volume using no-fee
Delivery Confirmation in:

i FY2003?

ii. FY20047?

iii. FY20057?

iv. FY2006 thus far?

(b) Explain why some non-PRS Parcel Select mailers do not use no-fee
Delivery Confirmation.

(c) Explain specifically what steps a non-PRS Parcel Select mailer must
perform in order to use no-fee Delivery Confirmation,

(d) Refer to USPS-LR-L-77, pages H-1 and K-12.

i Confirm that the Parcel Select Electronic delivery confirmation
transactions in FY2005 were 231,931,226. If not confirmed,
explain in detail.

it Confirm that Non-PRS Parcel Select volume in FY2005 was
269,931,243 (sum of 64,993,386 DBMC parcels, 2,013,256
DSCF parcels, and 202,924,601 DDU parcels). if not confirmed.
explain in detail.

ii. Confirm that Parcel Select Electronic delivery confirmation
transactions in FY2005 represented 85.9% of the Parcel Select
volume in FY2005.

1. If confirmed, explain the reascon for the difference between
your 80% assumption and this 85.9% figure. If not
confirmed, expiain in detail.

2. If this 85.9% figure does not match the figure provided in
response to part (a)iii abave, explain in detail.

RESPONSE:
a. (i) 60.7 percent
(i} 86.1 percent
{iii) 85.9 percent
{iv) | am informed that audited data to calculate this share is not available
on a part-year basis.
b. I do not know.
¢. Redirected to the Postal Service.
d. (i) Confirmed.

(i) Confirmed.
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RESPONSE OF POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS KIEFER TO
INTERROGATORIES OF UNITED PARCEL SERVICE

(i) Confirmed.

(1) The 80 percent figure was based on an estimate from staff in the
Postal Service marketing department. Apparently, al the ime, staft
was unaware of the more detaited transaction data available from
the Postal Service RPW system.

{2) Not applicable.



RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS KIEFER
TO INTERROGATORIES OF UNITED PARCEL SERVICE

UPS/USPS-T37-12. Refer to your response to UPS/USPS-T37-2.
(a) What was the OMAS volume in FY2005?

(b) What was the OMAS Parcel Post volume in FY2005?
RESPONSE

(a){b) I am informed that this information is no longer compiled.

2154
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS KIEFER
TO INTERROGATORIES OF UNITED PARCEL SERVICE

UPS/USPS-T37-13. Refer to your response to UPS/USPS-T37-7(d), which
references your response to UPS/USPS-T33-17 subparts (d) and (h) in Docket
No. R2001-1. Your response to UPS/USPS-T33-17{d) in Docket No. R2001-1
was:
“This statement cannot be confirmed in the aosolute. The Commission has
accepted a range of practices for handling worksharing transportation
costs, including applying a markup to separately derived transportation
costs for destination-entry rate calegones.”
Your response to UPS/USPS-T33-17(h) in Docket No. R2001-1 was:
“The Commission has recently shown its willingness to accept the
transportation cost markup approach for independently derived
destination-entry transponr costs, in addition to the discount approach. My
use of the transportation cost markup approach in this docket follows the
procedure adopted by the Commission in its own Parcel Post workpapers
in Docket No. R2000-1."
Do you continue to be unaware of any other instances (per your response to
UPS/USPS-T33-28 in Docket No. R2001-1) in which the Commission has
applied the same markup to separately dernved transportation costs for non-
destination entry categories and destination-entry rate categones other than "the
procedure adopled by the Commission in its own Parcel Post workpapers in
Docket No. R2000-1"7

RESPONSE

I am unaware of any other instances save the Doclet No. R2000-1 rate case,
which was the last omnibus case in which the Commission produced a set of

Parcel Post workpapers in support of its recommended rates.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS KIEFER
TO INTERROGATORIES OF UNITED PARCEL SERVICE

UPS/USPS-T37-14. Refer to USPS-LR-L-82, page WP-PP-18 and WP-PP-21.
Confirm that the excess weight-related costs of baltoon mail are recovered in the
preliminary pound charges assigned to 1 through 70 pound pieces. If not fully
confirmed, explain in detail.

RESPONSE

Confirmed. The excess costs in question are the transponiation and non-

transportation weight-related costs in excess of the costs for a 15-pound parcel.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS KIEFER
TO INTERROGATORIES OF UNITED PARCEL SERVICE

UPS/USPS-T37-15. Refer to USPS-LR-L-82, WP-PP-19, Confirm that the pickup
revenue in line {t] is the revenue received for the pickup by the Postal Service of
intra-BMC and inter-BMC parcels. If not fuily confirmed, explain in detail.

RESPONSE

I can confirm that this item is the revenue received for the use of the Postal
Service's Pickup On-Demand® service which, in Parcel Post, is available only to

Intra-BMC and Inter-BMC parcels.
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RESPONSE OF POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS KIEFER (USPS-T-37)
TO INTERROGATORIES OF UNITED PARCEL SERVICE
REDIRECTED FROM WITNESS KELLEY

UPS/USPS-T15-1. Refer to USPS-T-15, page 8, USPS-T-9, page C-16; and

USPS-LR-L-77, page H-1.

(d} Confirm that Alaska Bypass revenue for Parcei Post was $17,085,340 in
BY2005. If not confirmed, explain in detail.

(e} Explain in detail why $17,085,340 of BY2005 Alaska Bypass revenue was
assigned to Parcel Post if only $7,773,000 of BY2005 Alaska
nonpreferential air costs were attributed to Parcel Post.

RESPONSE

d. Confirmed.

e. Alaska Bypass pieces pay Parcel Post Intra-BMC rates. The revenues
assigned to Parce! Post reflect the postage actually paid by Alaska Bypass
mail at Intra-BMC Parcel Post rates. Please see also my response to

UPS/USPS-T37-9(e).
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RESPONSE OF POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS KIEFER (USPS-T-37)
TO INTERROGATORIES OF UNITED PARCEL SERVICE
REDIRECTED FROM WITNESS MILLER

UPS/USPS-T21-19. Refer to your response to UPS/USPS-T21-9(d).

(b)

(c)

Confirm that the parcel characteristic (“nonrectangular™} used to classify
non-machinable parcels in Section H of USPS-LR-L-77 (Billing
Determinants, Fiscal Year 2005}, which is used as the basis for the billing
determinants listed in USPS-LR-L- 82, WP-PP-4 and WP-PP-5, does not
accurately correspond with the parcel charactenstics used o assess mailers
a non-machinable rate surcharge for Parcel Post listed in Domestic Mail
Manual, § 101.7.2. If not confirmed, expiain in detall.

Confirm that an incorrect estimate of the share of non-machinable parcels
can impact the RPW Revenue Adjustment Factors for Parcel Post listed in
Section H-1, page 10 of 10, USPS-LR-L-77. and derived from the
Calculated Revenues listed in Section H-1, pages 7-9 of 10, USPS-LR-L-77.
If not confirmed, explain in detail.

RESPONSE:

b.

I can confirm that the “nonrectangular” characteristic used to estimate the
number of nonmachinable pieces for RPW reporting and. therefore, for
billing determinants purposes, does not correspond precisely with the list of
nonmachinable parcel characteristics in the DMM (Section 101.7.2). Since
there is no exact count of nonmachinable pieces, | am unable to determine
how accurate this estimate actually is. | have been involved in scme
discussions on this subject with the Postal Service's revenue and volume
reporting staff and they have informed me that they believe an alternate
estimation technique (which also does not correspond to the DMM
nonmachinability definitions exactly; see the response to UPS/USPS-T21-
19(a)) provides better estimates. This alfternate technique uses the physical
characteristics outlined in part (a) of this question.

Confirmed.
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CHAIRMAN OMAS: Is there any additional
written cross-examination for Witness Kiefer?

(No response.)

CHAIRMAN OMAS: This then brings us to cral
cross-examination. Two particilpants have requested
oral cross-examination, the United Parcel Service and
Valpak Direct Marketing Systems and Valpak Dealers
Association, however counsel for Valpak has indicated
that he no longer intends to cross-examine this
witness.

Is there any other participant, again, who
would like to cross-examine? If not, Mr. McKeever,
you may begin.

MR. MCKEEVER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

John McKeever for United Parcel Service.
CRCSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. MCKEEVER:

Q Mr. Kiefer, I have just a very few questions
and they’'re going to be limited to the inter-BMC,
intra-BMC, DBMC, DSCF and DDU rates. I guess that’'s a
lot, but --

A It is an exhaustive subclass, but --

o) Well, we will not cover the PRS rates, the
parcel return rates, or the oversize rates, et cetera,
all the other rates, but those major categories.

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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A Thank you.

Q So keep that in mind --

A Sure.

Q -- as I ask the questions. In general,

though, you took cost and volume data from other
witnesses and you also tocock Mr. O’Hara’'s revenue
target for parcel pest and came up with what you call
preliminary rates for each rate category?

A Yes, sir.

Q Okay. The preliminary rates are designed to
cover volume variable costs, the contingency and a
reasonable contribution to the Postal Service's
institutional costs?

A Yes. As a whole.

Q Okay. Now, after developing the preliminary
rates you decided for a number of reasons to

incorporate what you call constraints and rate

adjustment factors into your rate design. Is that
correct?

A That'’'s correct.

Q One of the constraints was to cap rate

increases at 20 percent for the parcel select rates,
that'’'s DBMC, DSCF and DDU?

S That's correct.

Q Those are what you and I think others

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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referred to as the commercial categories of parcel
post?

A That’s a convenient shorthand. I should
point out that there is a nontrivial amount of
commercial mail that does pay for example intra-BMC
rates. There’s the mail that takes advantage of the
BMC presort discount or the OBMC presort discount.
Since it requires I think 50 pieces it’'s obviously not
single piece retail type mail, but in general the
common parlance is that’'s our commerclial group versus
the retail.

Q QOkay. Just confining ourselves now, forget
about inter-BMC and intra-BMC for example --

A Ckay.

Q -- I'm talking about the composition of
DBMC, DSCF and DDU,.

A Yes.

Q Those categories are used almost exclusively
by business mailers?

A Yes. I would agree with that.

Q Okay. Now, you capped the inter-BMC and
intra-BMC rate increases at 30 percent, correct?

A That's correct.

Q As we were discussing there are sometimes
called the retails categories which are predominantly

Heritage Reporting Corporation
(202) &628-4888
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not commercial, but do have a not insignificant amount

of commercial traffic in them?

A That is correct.

Q They are primarily retail?

A Yes. That 1is correct.

Q Okay. Why the 10 percent difference?

Twenty percent for the parcel select categories and 30
percent for the retail categories?

A That was based upon a number of
considerations. We are concerned in particular about
the fact that if we compare the costs that we
generally assign to the so-called retaill categories
that over time we believe that there’'s been a need to
collect more revenue from those categories, and so we
are willing to sort of let the rates float up a little
bit more in those categories.

Q Why is there a need to collect more revenue
from those categories?

A Ag I said when we allocate the costs to the
individual categories the amount of revenue that we
have been collecting from those categories is not much
higher than the allocated costs.

In other words if you look at the
preliminary rate schedules in the model you’ll see
that infrequently the preliminary rates tend to show

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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significant growth or clarify a significant rate
increase I should say would be a better way to put it
and from that looking at sort of the cost is giving us
a signal in the direction we should move our prices.

We believe that we should be increasing the
retail rates a little bit faster so that there 1s less
of a discrepancy between the existing rates and what
we get when we develop the preliminary rates, and so
that when we look at the preliminary rates in some of
the for example inter, intra-BMC rate cells cn the
preliminary rate page you see that there’s an
indication that these would go up by well over 30
percent, and so we cap it, but we don’t cap it as
tightly as for the parcel select prices.

Q So it was primarily based on a comparison of
the revenue for the retail categories versus the costs
of those categories?

a Again, with the caveat that I said that the
costs are what we assign using reascnable
methodologies to those categories. We don’t have

specific CRA type cost by the categories.

Q You call them allocated costs?

A Allocated costs is the term I've been using.
Yes.

Q Okay. BAm I correct that you didn’t cap rate

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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decreases for the parcel select categories, DBMC, DSCF

and DDU, except in the case of the DDU oversized

parcels?
A I believe that’'s correct. Yes.
o] S0 those rates, the DBMC, DSCF and DDU

rates, the constrained or £final rates, 1f the
preliminary rates yielded rate decreases those would
have been passed-through?

A I think I should actually amend that last
statement. There is a formula in a rate change
constraint that actually does limit the change that s
called for between the existing rate and the
preliminary rate and allows a certain portion of 1t to
go through so that if the rate change factor were
let’s say 90 percent and the preliminary rates were
calling for let’s say a 10 percent decrease then the
formula would actually bring it let’s say down to a
nine percent decrease.

So that formula deces not kick in only with
increases, so I wigh to amend that. I mean, we did
not put -- in the same way I believe there’s a line
item for specific rate decrease factoring I believe
that only applies to the oversized pieces.

Q What about with respect to the retail
categories? Did you do anything with respect to

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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decreases there?

A That same formula was used. In other words
I believe it was the preliminary rate minus the
current rate times a factor and then you add back in
the current rate. So it allows sort of a percentage
of what the preliminary rate 1s calling for to be sort
of passed along.

Q Now, you adopted other constraints and
adjustments as well, correct, to make sure for example
that the parcel post rates would be lower than
corregponding priority mail rates, et cetera?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. When you were done incorporating all
of the rate constraints and adjustments that you made
virtually every rate that you propose is different
than the corresponding preliminary rate produced by
your rate design methodology. Isn’'t that correct?

A Of necessity that was the case because in
most cases we were constraining rate increases. That
means that in order to achieve the revenue target
other rates had to increase. Because we've

constrained certain cells to not increase at a certain
rate we needed to raise other rates. That was
generally spread among all other rates by the
methodology.

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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Q S0 every preliminary rate was changed before
you proposed it as a final rate?

A That’s correct.

Q In the overwhelming majority of the rates
the final proposed rates are less than the preliminary
rates aren’'t they?

A If you count the rates by rate cells -- 1
haven’'t actually counted them, but I've looked at the
charts and if you look and you see where there’'s 30
percent or 20 percent you can tell that presumably has
been constrained. By the absoclute number of rate
cells that’'s probably the case, although I’'m not sure
whether it’s the case if you did it by let’'s say where
you weighted the cells by the volumes of the pieces.

I haven’t done that calculaticn.

Q Okay. Would it surprise you 1if I told you
that the proposed rates differ from the preliminary
rates produced by your rate design methodology by more
than 25 percent in over 25 percent of all rate cells?

72\ That would not surprise me for two reasons.
One is that if one looks at the preliminary rates
there are a good many cells that have very, very
substantial rate increases called for, sometimes even
over _00 percent, but on the other hand one has to
understand that the preliminary rates that are shown

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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are influenced by the mark up factor which in the end
the mark up factor that is reported is the mark up
factor that is needed to achieve the target revenue.

It is not the mark up factor -- if there had
been absolutely no rate constraints or no rate
increase constraints the mark up factor would have
been less, and so the preliminary rates in the cells
that end up being constrained would have also been
less, and so that once you hit the constraint as you
keep increasing the mark up factor in order to Lry to
achieve the target revenue the preliminary rate that
is shown for the constrained cells, let’s say the ones
that have gone up teo 20 or 30 percent, really has a
lot less meaning than it would have if you had started
off from 115 or 116 percent which is where the
original target cost coverage would have been.

Q Would it surprise you if I told you that the
proposed rates differ from the preliminary rates by
more than 10 percent in over half of all rate cells?

A No, it wouldn’t with the same explanations
and the same reasons that I gave for the previous
question.

Q The preliminary rates as we discussed are
designed to cover the volume variable costs, the
contingency and make a reasonable contribution. Is

Heritage Reporting Corxporation
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that correct?

A That’s correct. Well, with the caveat that
I expressed in the last but one question that if one
actually took the preliminary rates in the final
workpapers and multiplied them by the volumes they
would actually produce a revenue that is higher than
the required target because as I said before once you
start capping some of the rate cells you have to
increase the mark up factor which affects the
unconstrained rates so as to actually achieve the
required revenue.

That means that in the constrained rate
cells the preliminary rates keep marching up, but they
shouldn’t be given too much weight I would say in that
regard. Once they hit the target they should be
retired in some sense I guess 1f you wanted to
actually calculate a revenue.

Q So you did make calculations of cost
coverages by rate cell? Is that what I'm hearing or
not?

A No.

Q You didn’'t do that?

A No, no. No. ©No. I'm talking about the
actual rates that when we had the preliminary --
leaving aside cost issues we allocate the costs, we

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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mark them up using the mark up factor, but given the
fact that we have constrained certain cells to not
increase by more than 20 percent or 30 percent, once
those cells reach that constraint they cannot
contribute any more to the total revenue, all right,
no matter how high you mark those cells up.

You look at the sheet and it may say 115
percent. Well, I mean, that doesn’t figure actually
into a revenue calculation.

Q S0 because you couldn’t get more revenue
from the cconstrained cells you had to get that revenue

from other cells? Is that what you’'re saying?

A From the unconstrained cells. That 1is
correct.
Q Which of course then were adjusted? They

weren’'t constrained, but they were adjusted from what
they otherwige would have been in the preliminary
rates?

A They were adjusted, yes, although there may
have been a constraint that was not an absoclute cap
type of constraint, the kind that I mentioned about
the rate change factor, so that there was multiple
layers of constraints that were put on there, too.

Q As a result the constrained rates, the ones
you proposed, are very different from the preliminary

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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rates?
A They are different from the preliminary
rates. Yes.

MR. MCKEEVER: That's all I have, Mr.

Chairman.

MS. DREIFUSS: Mr. Chairman?

CHAIRMAN OMAS: Thank you.

MS. DREIFUSS: I just wanted to let you know
that I do have one or two follow-ups. T don’'t want o

jump ahead of any Commissioners, but just to let vyou
know I did have one or two.

CHAIRMAN CMAS: If you’d have given me a
chance I was going to give ycu the opportunity.

MS. DREIFUSS: Thank you. Sorry. Sorry.
Hit the button too quickly.

CHAIRMAN OMAS: Are there any follow-up
cross-examination of Mr. Kiefer.

Ms. Dreifuss?

MS. DREIFUSS: Great intuition, Mr.
Chairman. Thank you.

CRCSS-EXAMINATION
BY MS. DREIFUSS:
Q Mr. Kiefer, I just wanted to ask you about

one matter that Mr. McKeever tocok up with you. You
explained to him that you capped the parcel select

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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rates at 20 percent, but allowed the retail rates to

drift upward to approximately 30 percent. Is that

correct?
A That’'s correct.
Q You said the reason for doing that was you

felt that there was insufficient cost recovery in the

retail rates. Is that correct?
A That is one of the motivating factors. Yes.
Q I didn’'t hear you say anything about service

performance, comparing the service performance of
parcel select pileces in contrast with retail pieces.

Was that a consideraticn in how you set those caps?

A I do not believe that was a major
consideration.
Q I'm going to ask you to accept this subject

to check. I went to the Postal Service’'s website
after listening to you and Mr. McKeever having this
exchange. I went to a section where service
performance data is reported by the Postal Service and
I went specifically to the service performance data
for package services.

What I find there -- and I’'1ll read this to
you, again, you can check it later or counsel can
check it now if you would like -- it says that retail
packages were delivered 54 percent on time in the most

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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recent quarter while parcel select packages were

delivered %6 percent on time in the most recent

quarter.
A Okay.
Q So the service performance for parcel select

is almost twice as good as that of retail packages
isn't itz

A Did that information break out the parcel
post or other package services retail from priority
mail?

Q I can‘t tell from looking at this, but with
that qualification let’s say for the sake of argument
or as a hypothetical, which perhaps I can establish
later with real facts, that parcel select performance
is almost twice as good as retall parcel post
performance. Did that enter into the caps that you
established in any way?

A Not that I'm aware of. I should point out
that the dominant category of parcel select is in fact
the DDU drop ship so that these are pieces which are
brought to the delivery unit and if they’re brought by
a certain time, and I'm not sure exactly what the cut
off time is, but if it’s brought in by a certain cut
off t_me it has a very high chance, not a 100 percent
chance, but it has a significant chance of being taken

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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out and delivered let’s say the next day.

That is a lower hurdle than for example a
retail package that 1is maybe an inter-BMC package that
may be entered in Los Angeles and delivered in
Washington and which may go through many more steps,
so the hurdle is a little bit higher.

That'’'s why for example 1if somebody says that
the parcel select may have a higher performance on a
standard I would not be surprised at that because
knowing that parcel select 1s dominated by pieces that
actually have a fairly lower hurdle as I said.

Q Isn’'t it correct that the DDU rates for
parcel post are already set lower to reflect the fact
that many steps are avoided by DDU parcel post?

A That’'s correct.

Q I'1]1l characterize this. You can disagree
with my characterization, but just accept this as a
theoretical question.

A Sure.

Q Is it your testimony that dramatically
different levels of service performance should not be
taken into account in deciding how much to allow
retail parcel post rates to go up as contrasted with
commercial parcel post rates?

A I think that in our pricing decisions we try

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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to take all relevant factors into account and
definitely a difference in performance should be
considered a relevant factor.

Q Okay. So you just agree that it’s a
relevant factor, however you did not take it into
account in setting those caps did you?

A At this point I guess I would have to say
that I am not aware of the weight that was given. As
you heard me say earlier I adopted this testimony. I
realize that careful consideraticn was given within
pricing to various factors. I cannot tell you
precisely what weight was given to that specific
factor in the decision, so I car’'t answer that
specifically to that specific number.

Q Am I correct that nowhere in USPS-T-37 1s
service performance discussed? Would I be right in
gaying that?

A I do not believe that service performance is
discussed in the testimony. My recollection is it’'s
not in there.

MS. DREIFUSS: Thank you.

Thanks, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN OMAS: Thank you, Ms. Dreifuss.

MR. MCKEEVER: Mr. Chairman, if I may I have
some follow-ups to that.

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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CHAIRMAN OMAS: I was going to ask.

MR. MCKEEVER: Thank you. We seem to be
jumping the gun on you today. I apologize.

CHAIRMAN OMAS: I know the time 1s short,
but we’'re doing pretty good.

FURTHER CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. MCKEEVER:
Q Mr. Kiefer, you indicated in some <f vour

responses to Ms. Dreifuss that you’re not surprised
that the parcel select categories would have a better

on time percent than the retail categorles, correct?

A That’s correct.
Q The figures she gave you were on time
measurements. I think I jotted them down correctly.

Fifty-four percent on time for retail and 90 percent
on time for parcel select. Now, on time means
measured against a service standard doesn’'t it?

A I don't know exactly how -- I'm not familiar
with that portion of the website. That website is
prepared for sort of public viewing. I’'m not sure
exactly how on time is measured or determined for the
use in that website.

Q It is true that the service standard for DDU
for example might be one day after it reaches the
office whereas the service standard for an inter-BMC
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might be -- and I'm just trying to 1illustrate here,
not tie you down -- six days frcm when the parcel 1is
tendered to the Postal Service and to measure whether
it’s on time or not you would measure either how many
are delivered in one day versus how many are delivered
in six days. Is that correct?

A To the extent that there are different
service standards for the different categories, and
I'm not really sure that we have them for the
different subcategories of parcel post, you would wanrt
to have them reflect the differ=nt pathways.

Q Right. I think you indicated you weren’':t
sure whether the data that she mentioned to ycu may
have included priority mail?

A Yes. I said I'm not sure just what 1is
included for the purposes of this sort of public
information website.

Q Ig there a retail category of priority mail
as opposed to a commercial one?

A As far as I'm aware there’s no distinction.

Q There 1is no parcel select category for
example for priority mail?

A No.

MR. MCKEEVER: Just a few more, Mr.
Chairman.
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BY MR. MCKEEVER:
Q Am I correct that the preliminary rates for
parcel select in many instances would increase by over
30 percent over current rates? You might want to

refer to your workpaper PP-24.

A I believe that many would increase
significantly.

Q By over 30 percent? This 1s preliminary
rates.

A Yes. With the caveat I menticned before
about -- yeah, these preliminary rates reflect the

increased mark up factor that was needed to achieve
the revenue target, but yes, I agree with that
statement.

Q Does that indicate that those rate cells
where there are higher rate increases would require
more revenue compared to allocated costs than are
being recovered in current rates as you indicated were
the case for the retail categories?

A Could I ask you to repeat that question?

Q Sure. It was a little tough. The fact that
a high rate increase would be required under the
preliminary rates for a number of these rate cells
indicates -- I'm asking you to do the same analysis
that you did for the retail categories that therefore
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more revenue would have to be recovered compared to
allocated costs in the case of those rates taking into
account allocated costs.

A Yeah. Taking into account the allocated
costs. That’'s correct.

MR. MCKEEVER: That’'s all, Mr. Chairman.
Thank you.

CHATIRMAN OMAS: Thank you, Mr. McKeever.

Is there any additicnal questions? Are
there any questions from the bench?

COMMISSIONER GOLDWAY: Can I ask --

CHAIRMAN OMAS: Commissioner Goldway?

COMMISSIONER GCLDWAY: I think this is
appropriate to fellow-up on. Were you able in looking
at setting rates and making a distinction between the
20 percent increase for the parcel select and 30
percent for retail the volume trends in the last year
or two of whether parcel select has grown, and whether
retail parcel post has grown and what the differences
were?

THE WITNESS: I am aware that the parcel
select has not grown recently anywhere near the rate
at which it had grown previously.

COMMISSIONER GOLDWAY: What about retail?

THE WITNESS: I think retail has fared a bit
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better. We have lost a lot of DBMC parcel post, which
igs part of the parcel --

COMMISSIONER GOLDWAY: Select?

THE WITNESS: -- select.

COMMISSIONER GOLDWAY: So did you have
differences in price elasticity in mind when yocu were
developing these rates?

THE WITNESS: As far as a formal price
elasticity one is calculated for parcel post
generally, so I don’t believe that a formal price
elasticity was an issue.

COMMISSIONER GOLDWAY: You don’t have
distinctive price elasticities for the retail versus
the parcel select?

THE WITNESS: I may have to check on that,
Commissioner Goldway.

COMMISSIONER GOLDWAY: I was just trying to
establish whether there were some other factors other
than just attributable costs which seem to be the
major factor. You seem to be able to distinguish the
cost for retail versus parcel select and you have
distinctions in that to look at when you were
establishing rates, but what other distinctions did
you have? Clearly you weren’t considering service
standards.
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I‘'m trying to think of some others. The
obvious one would be price elasticity.

THE WITNESS: I think that the volume trends
suggest that sensitivity 1n parcel select to price and
to other factors that parcel post as a whole has a
high elasticity, so I think that was a concern that
was in there to not have that particular price, the
price of the parcel select, go up too much in order to
not have significantly greater attrition in the parcel
select area.

Specifically what weight might be given to
the elasticity of this category I can’t say
specifically.

COMMISSIONER GOLDWAY: Thank you.

MR. MCKEEVER: Mr. Chairman, 1if I may?

CHAIRMAN OMAS: Yes.

FURTHER CROSS-EYAMINATICN

BY MR. MCKEEVER:

Q You indicated in response to Commissioner
Goldway that DBMC has been experiencing volume
decline. Is that correct?

A That’s my understanding. Yes.

Q My recollection is that you used that as an
example for parcel select. Now, isn’t it correct,
though, as you state on page 4 of your testimony,
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lines 22 and 23, that since FY2001, "this decline in
DBMC has been cffset by a growth in DDU volume". Is
that correct?

A That's correct, but that statement 1is
intended not to necessarily imply a one to one.

Q Understood, but DDU volume has been growing?

A Yes. There is no question that during the
longer timeframe, let’s say 1f you look back to 2000-
2001, that DDU definitely has grown.

Q You say in your testimony there over 50
percent of parcel select is DDU entered. I believe
it’s over 50 percent of all parcel post is DDU

entered. Isn't that correct?

A I believe that's correct.

Q About 75 percent of parcel select 1s DDU
entered?

A That is correct.

MR. MCKEEVER: That’s all. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN OMAS: Thank you.

Mr. Reiter, would you like some time with
your witness?

MR. REITER: 1f you’ll just give me a minute
I'll let you know if we are done or not.

CHAIRMAN OMAS: Fine. Take two.

MR. REITER: We will not have any redirect.
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CHAIRMAN OMAS: Thank you, Mr. Reiter.

Mr. Kiefer, that completes your testimony
here today and we, again, appreclate your appearance
and your contribution to our record. You are now
excused.

THE WITNESS: Thank you.

(Witness excused.)

CHAIRMAN OMAS: This cencludes today's
hearing. We will reconvene Monday morning at 9:30
a.m. when we will receive testimony from Postal
Service Witnesses Pajunas, Pifer, Pafford and Bozzo.
Thank you. We will see you Monday morn:ing.

{(Whereupon, at 1:02 p.m., the hearing :n the
above-entitled matter was adjourned, to reconvene orn
Monday, August 14, 2006, at 9:30 a.m.}
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